e

Foothill Transit AGENDA

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING

9:15 AM, MAY 29, 2020

Foothill Transit Administrative Office
2" Floor Board Room

100 South Vincent Avenue

West Covina, CA 91790

FOOTHILL TRANSIT IS TAKING ALL PRECAUTIONS POSSIBLE TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF
COVID-19. FOR THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF ALL EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS, FOOTHILL
TRANSIT STAFF, AND THE PUBLIC, PARTICIPATION IN THE MEETING WILL BE DONE
REMOTELY VIA TELECONFERENCE USING THE FOLLOWING ZOOM MEETING LINK:
https://foothilltransit.zoom.us/j/88649861223. ALTERNATIVELY, TO PARTICIPATE VIA
PHONE, DIAL (669) 900-6833 AND ENTER MEETING ID: 886-4986-1223.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL: MEMBERS BARAKAT, BOYER, CALAYCAY, MOSS, STERNQUIST

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP OF
FEBRUARY 28, 2020, SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 13, 2020, SPECIAL
MEETING OF MARCH 18, 2020, AND SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 27, 2020

S. PUBLIC COMMENT

IF PARTICIPATING VIA ZOOM, CLICK ON “RAISE YOUR HAND” TO INDICATE YOU
WOULD LIKE TO SPEAK. IF PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE CALL, SUBMIT A REQUEST TO
BOARD.SECRETARY@FOOTHILLTRANSIT.ORG BY CLOSE OF BUSINESS ON MAY 28,
2020.

Public Comment: Members of the public shall have the right to address the Board on any item of interest which is
within the jurisdiction of the Board before or during the Board’s consideration of the item. Presentation shall not
exceed two minutes in length. Action may be taken on any item identified on the agenda. Persons wishing to
comment should submit a “Request to Speak” form to the Secretary. Note: ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM
IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA.

The public may view and obtain all written information supporting this agenda provided to the board both initially
and supplementary prior to the meeting by calling (626) 931-7300 extension 7204 or at the agency’s offices located
at 100 S. Vincent Ave., Suite 200, West Covina, CA 91790. Documents, including PowerPoint handouts, distributed
to Board Members by staff or Board Members at the meeting will simultaneously be made available to the public
upon request.


https://foothilltransit.zoom.us/j/88649861223
mailto:BOARD.SECRETARY@FOOTHILLTRANSIT.ORG

Foothill Transit AGENDA

9:15 AM, May 29, 2020
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790
Page 2

5.1.  Executive Director Response to Public Comment

CONSENT CALENDAR: Items 7 through 10 are consent items which may be received
and filed and/or approved by the board in a single motion. If any member of the
Executive Board wishes to discuss a consent item, please request that the item be
pulled for further discussion and potential action.

6. MAY 2020 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

Recommended Action: Receive and file the May 2020 Legislative Summary.

7. HOLIDAY SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021

Recommended Action: Approve the proposed FY 2021 Holiday Service Schedule.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability-related modification or
accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the
Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

If you require translation services, please contact the Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204,
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Si necesita servicios de traduccion, por favor pongase en contacto con la oficina del Director Ejecutivo en el (626)
931-7300, extensidn 7204, al menos 48 horas antes de la reunién.

WMRFBEIERS, BELTIWA4)\NBBESREENAZE: (626 ) 931-7300 74 7204,

Néu Quy vi c6 yéu cau dich vu dich thuat, xin vui long lién hé véi van phong Giam dbc Diéu hanh tai (626) 931-7300 s6 Ié 7204, it
nhat 48 gio trwede khi cudc hop.

Kung nangangailangan ka ng mga serbisyo sa pagsasalin, pakisuyong makipag-ugnayan sa opisina ng Executive Director sa (626)
931-7300 extension 7204, ng hindi bababa sa 48 oras bago ang pulong.

HA MH|AZHQSHAIH OE XA 48A17F 0|0 Y2l AFRAHE (626-931-7300, LHAM Bl 7204) M2t A| 7] HEgfL|CE,
HRY—EXNRBEL AL, SEOISERATE TIZ(626) 931-7300 RER 7204D T €Y T4 TT 4 LY B —BHE/MIZTEK S
é L\O
0 (7204 A3 3 1) (626)931-7300 o Ao o€all gaunill poaally JiaaiV) pla p ddan f lead ) Aalay o€
B e delu 48 o plaal)
Bph 2tq pupquuiywlut Swnwnipnibibph b hwpluwynp, hwinhynulhg wrtijuqt 48 dud wpwy unpnid kup quiquhwipty
Qnpswnhp nbopkith qpuiukiyuly (626) 931-7300 pugnighs 7204 hknwlunuwhwiwpni:
waEsitinAEMIGNRYURTUM AN guSIASIgAmMIMUWSIwRUSUS Muiuggiain: (626) 931-7300
IUSUMSUS 7204 18U SIWINMUENNSEG 48 1818 USINUAGIUN™
le B Jeals Wi 7204 Ak

mnamdeiN i smaudamsnsandadediinaulsmismsuimai (626) 931-7300 sia 7204, atisiien 48 41 lasneaufiezimadsvan



Foothill Transit AGENDA

9:15 AM, May 29, 2020
2" Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790
Page 3

8.

10.

CONTRACT AMENDMENT - ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING DESIGN FOR
MT. SAN ANTONIO COLLEGE TRANSIT CENTER

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 2 to
Contract No. 18-017 with Psomas in the amount of $87,902 for additional design services for the
Mt. San Antonio College Transit Center.

CONTRACT AWARD - FIREWALL REPLACEMENT

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to finalize contract terms and conditions
and enter into Agreement No. 20-09]7 with Digital Scepter Corporation in the amount of
$147,493.15 for the purchase and installation of a replacement firewall for the Foothill Transit Data
Center located at the West Covina administrative offices.

CONTRACT AWARD - ON-CALL ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING
SERVICES

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate final terms and conditions
and execute Contract No. 20-038 with Stantec for the provision of On-Call Architectural &
Engineering Services.

REGULAR AGENDA:

1.

12.

13.

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2021 FINANCIAL BUDGET

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of Foothill Transit’s proposed first quarter budget
for Fiscal Year 2021 to the Foothill Transit Governing Board.

TRANSIT FUND EXCHANGE

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute an assignment agreement
with Temple City to exchange Foothill Transit general use funds for the City’s Proposition A
Transportation Local Return funds.

ZERO-EMISSION BUS (ZEB) ROLLOUT PLAN

Recommended Action: Approve Foothill Transit’s Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) Rollout Plan.



Foothill Transit AGENDA

9:15 AM, May 29, 2020
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790
Page 4

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

DISCONTINUATION OF TAP BUS MOBILE VALIDATOR PURCHASE

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to discontinue the procurement of TAP
enabled Bus Mobile Validators (BMVs) for Foothill Transit revenue vehicles.

COVID-19 TRANSIT OPERATIONS

Recommended Action: If needed, provide direction to staff regarding service and operational
policy during the COVID-19 pandemic and Los Angeles County Safer-At-Home order.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

A Joint Meeting - Annual Governing Board
and Executive Board is scheduled for
Friday, June 26, 2020 at 7:45 a.m.



STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP OF THE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD

KELLOGG HOUSE - CAL POLY POMONA

] . 3801 WEST TEMPLE AVENUE
Foothill Transit POMONA, CALIFORNIA 91768

Friday, February 28, 2020
8:00 a.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Sternquist at 8:12 a.m.
2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary.

Present: Member Richard Barakat, Member Gary Boyer, Member Cory
Moss, Vice Chair Corey Calaycay, Chair Cynthia Sternquist

Also in attendance were Becky Shevlin, Executive Board Alternate and Sam
Pedroza, Executive Board Alternate.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
No members of the public addressed the Foothill Transit Executive Board.
4, DOWNTOWN LOS ANGELES MID-DAY LAYOVER

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to: 1. Amend Foothill
Transit’s existing lease agreement with Caltrans for the lot at the intersection
of 16t Street and Maple Avenue to include a lease provision that would allow
the City of Los Angeles to utilize that location; and 2. Enter into a
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the City of Los Angeles for the
City’s short-term use of the leased property at 16t Street and Maple Avenue
for temporary bridge housing and services for people in the area who are
experiencing homelessness.

Kevin Parks McDonald, Deputy Executive Director, presented this item.

Mr. McDonald reported that the city of Los Angeles requested to use the 16th
Street and Maple Avenue layover site for short-term use for temporary
housing and services for individuals in the area who are experiencing
homelessness. This would assist the Mayor of Los Angeles’ office with



— Statement of Proceedings February 28, 2019
Foothill Transit

addressing the crises of homelessness in the city and assist with Governor
Gavin Newsom’s Executive Order N-23-20 directing agencies to develop a
plan to utilize state-owned property on a temporary basis for housing and
services for persons experiencing homelessness.

Member Barakat and Member Boyer expressed concern about how the
request would affect Foothill Transit’s plan for the site, and the possibility
that the city of Los Angeles may request to extend their use of the site. Mr.
McDonald stated that Foothill Transit could possibly consolidate all Foothill
Transit’s use to the 17t and Grand location. AVTA and LADOT could share
the 16t and Maple site. Michelle Lopes Caldwell, Director of Finance and
Treasurer, indicated that there are some financial issues that would need to
be worked out with the other transit agencies due to a shared grant.

The recommendation was revised to request that LADOT control the 16th
Street and Maple Avenue site and negotoate with AVTA use of the site.
Foothill Transit would consolidate its use to the 17th Street and Grand
location. Motion by Member Barakat, second by Vice Chair Calaycay, to
approve. Motion carried 5-0.

5. TRANSPORTATION FUND EXCHANGE

Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute an
assignment agreement with the City of San Gabriel to exchange Foothill
Transit general use funds for Proposition A Transportation Local Return
funds.

Michelle Lopes Caldwell, Director of Finance and Treasurer, presented this
item.

Ms. Caldwell reported that the city of San Gabriel would like to exchange $1
million of uncommitted Proposition A Transportation Local Return funds, In
return, Foothill Transit will provide the city of San Gabriel with $750,000 of
available general use funds.

Motion by Vice Chair Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

6. STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP
Peter Stark, Moderator

Mr. Stark, representing Peter Barron Stark & Associates, Inc., retreat
moderator, greeted attendees, provided opening statements covering the

Page 2 of 4



—_— Statement of Proceedings February 28, 2019

Foothill Transit

10.

overall emphasis of the workshop, and distributed the workshop workbook
for discussion and completion by attendees.

Review of Past Year/Pre-Retreat Interviews and Self-Assessment

In addition, Mr. Stark gave an overview of Executive Board and staff member
interviews conducted on February 5, 2020.

Discussion Topics

Staff provided verbal presentations on the past, current history, and status
of the following topics:

Financial Forecast

Ridership Trends

Zero Emission Bus

Automated Bus Consortium Program
West Covina Park and Ride

Foothill Transit Mission and Values

On consensus, the Executive Board Members accepted the verbal
presentations by Staff.

CLOSED SESSION: PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
(Gov’'t Code § 54957)
Title: Executive Director

CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING
LITIGATION Existing Litigation, Government Code § 54956.9(a)

Name of Cases: Julian Bryant, et al. v. City of Pomona, Foothill Transit, et al.,
Los Angeles Superior Court Case No. 19STCV46308

Rochelle Bryant v. Foothill Transit, Los Angeles Superior Court Case No.
19STCPO5019.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT

Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that there were no reportable
actions.

ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment for the February 28, 2020 Foothill Transit Executive Board
Strategic Planning Workshop.

Page 3 of 4



— Statement of Proceedings February 28, 2019
Foothill Transit

There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board
Strategic Planning Workshop adjourned at 1:50 p.m.

Page 4 of 4



STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
) ] 2ND FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
Foothill Transit 100 S. VINCENT AVENUE
WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790

Friday, March 13, 2020
5:30 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Sternquist at 5:35 p.m.
2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary.

Present: Member Richard Barakat, Member Gary Boyer, Member Cory
Moss, Vice Chair Corey Calaycay, Chair Cynthia Sternquist

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION
No members of the public addressed the Foothill Transit Executive Board.
4, CLOSED SESSION: THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

Consultation with Darold Pieper, General Counsel and G. Kent Woodman,
Special Counsel.

The Executive Board recessed into Closed Session at 5:37 p.m.

5. CLOSED SESSION REPORT
The Executive Board reconvened at 6:21 p.m.

Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that there were no reportable
actions.

6. ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment for the March 13, 2020 Foothill Transit Special Executive Board
Meeting.



— Statement of Proceedings March 13, 2020
Foothill Transit

There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board
meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m.

Page 2 of 2



STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD
FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
Foothill Transit 2N CONFERENCE ROOM
100 S. VINCENT AVENUE
WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790
Friday, March 18, 2020
8:00 a.m.
1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Chair Sternquist at 8:04 a.m.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Sternquist.
3. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary.

Present: Member Richard Barakat, Member Gary Boyer, Member Cory
Moss, Vice Chair Corey Calaycay, Chair Cynthia Sternquist

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

After discussion, by Common Consent, and there being no objection, the
Board approved the agenda as presented.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT
No members of the public addressed the Foothill Transit Executive Board.
5.1. Executive Director Response to Public Comment
There was no response to Public Comment by the Executive Director.

6. CLOSED SESSION: THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

Consultation with Darold Pieper, General Counsel and G. Kent Woodman,
Special Counsel.



— Statement of Proceedings March 18, 2020

Foothill Transit

The Executive Board recessed into Closed Session at 8:06 a.m.
CLOSED SESSION REPORT
The Executive Board reconvened at 8:52 a.m.

Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that the Executive Board voted
unanimously to authorize and instruct staff to immediately implement rear-
door boarding.

ARCADIA/IRWINDALE TRANSIT SERVICES CONTRACT

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to terminate all
procurement activities related to Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 20-010,
and either: A. Negotiate terms and conditions and enter into a sole-source
agreement with Transdev for a period of 24 months for the provision of
continued transit services at Foothill Transit’s Arcadia/Irwindale operations
and maintenance facility; or B. Execute the available four-year option on
Contract No. 16-021 with Transdev Services.

Kevin Parks McDonald, Deputy Executive Director, presented this item.

Mr. McDonald reported that in August 2019 the Executive Board authorized
the issuance of RFP 20-010 for the operation of transit services for Foothill
Transit’s Arcadia/Irwindale Facility. As procurement activities were
approaching a conclusion, it became apparent that issues related to COVID-
19 could have a negative impact on day-to-day service.

Mr. McDonald stated that it would be in Foothill Transit’s best interest to
limit service disruption by canceling the procurement, and either exercise
the four-year option with Transdev or negotiate a sole-source agreement
with Transdev for a period of 24 months.

Motion by Member Barakat, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

HYDROGEN FUEL CELL BUS REPLACEMENT AND FUELING
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT APPLICATIONS

Recommendation: Authorize pursuit of various federal and state grant funds
to support the purchase of 20 Hydrogen Fuel Cell buses and the
construction of a hydrogen fueling station to fuel the buses.

Page 2 of 4



Foothill Transit

Statement of Proceedings March 18, 2020

10.

1.

12.

Michelle Lopes Caldwell, Director of Finance and Treasurer, presented this

item.

Ms. Caldwell reported that the board item was related to authorizing staff to
pursue various federal and state grant funds for the purchase of 20
hydrogen fuel cell buses and construction of a fueling station.

The project will be in included in the FY20-21 budget and business plan that
will be presented in April 2020 to the Executive Board, and in May 2020 to
the Governing Board. In addition, Foothill Transit must have an authorization
of project implementation from the Executive Board in order to apply for the
VW Mitigation Grant.

Motion by Member Moss, second by Vice Chair Calaycay, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT

Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit.

Mr. Barnes reported the following:

Consistent with the directives, Foothill Transit implemented a plan to
have as many positions as possible to work from home.

It is anticipated that the customer facing function of the Transit Stores
will be closed and the intention is to maintain phone line access so
customers can call in.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Executive Board.

Member Barakat thanked Doran Barnes, Executive Director, for the
update on the Foothill Transit Stores. Member Barakat suggested that
signage be created that tells customer how to attain information they
need. Mr. Barnes stated that the Marketing and Communication staff is
working on putting materials together.

Chair Sternquist thanked Executive Board Members and staff for being
flexible during this time.

ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment for the March 18, 2020 Foothill Transit Executive Board

Page 3 of 4



— Statement of Proceedings March 18, 2020
Foothill Transit

Meeting.

There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board
meeting adjourned at 9:07 a.m.

Page 4 of 4



STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
VIDEO CONFERENCE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE
2N° FLOOR BOARD ROOM
Foothill Transit 100 S. VINCENT AVENUE
WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790

Friday, March 27, 2020
8:30 a.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Chair Sternquist at 8:37 a.m.
2. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary.

Present: Member Richard Barakat, Member Gary Boyer, Member Cory
Moss, Vice Chair Corey Calaycay, Chair Cynthia Sternquist

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

After discussion, by Common Consent, and there being no objection, the
Board approved the agenda as presented.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

No members of the public submitted comments via email or fax to the Board
Secretary.

4.1. Executive Director Response to Public Comment
There was no response to Public Comment by the Executive Director.

S. EMERGENCY SOLE-SOURCE CONTRACT AWARD - ARCADIA/IRWINDALE
TRANSIT SERVICES

Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into an
emergency sole-source agreement in the amount of $103,968,371 with
Transdev Services for a period of 24 months for the provision of continued
transit services at Foothill Transit’s Arcadia/lrwindale operations and
maintenance facility.



— Statement of Proceedings March 27, 2020
Foothill Transit

Kevin Parks McDonald, Deputy Executive Director, presented this item.

Mr. McDonald reported that at the March 18, 2020 Executive Board Meeting
the board authorized the cancellation of RFP 20-010 for transit services for
the Foothill Transit’s Arcadia/Irwindale Operations and Maintenance Facility.
Negotiations were initiated with Transdev to discuss terms and conditions
for an emergency sole-source 24-month agreement. The agreement would
take effect on July 1, 2020.

Motion by Member Barakat, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

6. CLOSED SESSION: THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES

Consultation with Darold Pieper, General Counsel and G. Kent Woodman,
Special Counsel.

The Executive Board recessed into Closed Session at 8:45 a.m.

7. CLOSED SESSION REPORT

Darold Pieper, General Counsel, reported that the Executive Director was
instructed to negotiate contract amendments with Keolis and Transdev for
90 days to facilitate workforce continuity during the COVID-19 pandemic.

8. RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING AN EMERGENCY AND AUTHORIZING
EMERGENCY ACTIONS

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2020-01 proclaiming an emergency
and authorizing emergency actions.

Kevin Parks McDonald, Deputy Executive Director, presented this item.

Mr. McDonald reported that on March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom
proclaimed a State of Emergency due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Mr.
McDonald recommended that the Executive Board proclaim that an
emergency exists throughout the Foothill Transit service area, and that the
emergency be deemed to continue until its termination is ordered by the
Executive Board.

During the period of the emergency, Mr. McDonald also recommended that
the Executive Director and his designees be authorized to take those
personnel and contracting actions necessary to maintain appropriate levels

Page 2 of 3



— Statement of Proceedings March 27, 2020

Foothill Transit

10.

11.

of transit service, maintain readiness to assume normal service, and provide
for the health and economic welfare of Foothill Transit and contracted staff.

Motion by Member Calaycay, second by Member Moss, to approve. Motion
carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT

Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit.

Mr. Barnes reported the following:

o A majority of the administrative staff is working from home.

) Coach Operators are being allowed to wear masks and eye protection.
LaShawn King Gillespie, Director of Customer Service and Operations,
also reported that rear-door boarding is being conducted and a 12-foot
barrier area is being created between the coach operator and
customers.

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT

Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Executive Board.

) Member Barakat thanked staff for meeting and providing updates.
) Member Moss thanked staff and wished everyone stay safe.
ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment for the March 27, 2020 Foothill Transit Executive Board
Meeting.

There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Executive Board
meeting adjourned at 9:36 a.m.

Page 3 of 3



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020

To: Executive Board

Subject: May 2020 Legislative Summary

Recommendations

Receive and file the May 2020 Legislative Summary.

Analysis

A summary of state and federal legislation and corresponding status is
attached.

State Issues:

Seven weeks after adjourning due to the COVID-19 emergency, the members
of the Assembly returned to Sacramento on May 4 and the State Senate on
May 11. Neither house plans to reconvene for final votes on bills until June.
Governor Newsom has asked the Legislature to only consider moving forward
on bills related to COVID-19, housing, or wildfires.

On May 14, Governor Newsom released his May Revision, based on the latest
economic forecasts available to the Governor and his Department of Finance.
The update focuses squarely on the massive adverse economic impacts of the
worldwide COVID-19 pandemic on California’s revenues and calls for drastic
spending reductions across most programs, in order to address a projected
General Fund deficit of more than $54 billion through Fiscal Year 2022.

As in the January Budget, the May Revision is light in specific discussion on
public transit. That said, it provides a worrisome update on the status of
various funding programs that support transit capital and operations. Initially,
the January Budget estimated the State Transit Assistance (STA) program
would receive approximately $806 million in FY 2021. Now, the program is
projected to see revenues of approximately $528 million, a decrease of about
$278 million. Intercity and Commuter Rail would receive an estimated $164
million in the coming fiscal year, a drop of approximately $106 million.

Cap and Trade funding remains mostly stable but faces some new
uncertainty. The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is
expected to provide $116 million, distributed using the State Transit
Assistance (STA) formula. Lastly, the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital

Agenda Item No. 6


https://caltransit.org/lt/?http://cert1.mail-west.com/jkS/xFy/anmc7rm/yuzj/n2u71xFgtm/vnqxFmac14jqqqv/iu2u71xFq/mb375b1l/0egh?_c=d%7Cze7pzanwmhlzgt%7C17h2hvy1o573oz0%26_ce=1589487060.c309784fcb137ec865e1ec6a1bc9b154==ACE9519A-705E-4161-90AA-B115E783A360/FUND-05-14-20

Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
May 2020 Legislative Summary
Page 2

Program (TIRCP) is expected to receive approximately $493 million in FY
2021, as transportation improvement fee (TIF) revenues as well as Cap and
Trade remain steady, if not showing a slight increase over the current year.

Federal Issues:

On May 15, the U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 6800, the Health
and Economic Recovery Omnibus Emergency Solutions Act, or the HEROES
Act, by a vote of 208-199, a $3 trillion fourth package of novel coronavirus
(COVID-19) response emergency funding. The bill includes $15.75 billion of
emergency funding for public transportation.

The bill provides $11.75 billion of formula grants to 14 very large urbanized
areas (urbanized areas with populations over 3 million). Eighty-five percent of
these funds are distributed by the State-of-Good-Repair formula (5337) and
15 percent of the funds are distributed by the Urbanized Area formula (5307).
The 14 urbanized areas are: Atlanta, GA; Boston, MA-NH-RI; Chicago, IL-IN;
Dallas-Fort Worth-Arlington, TX; Detroit, Ml; Houston, TX; Los Angeles-Long
Beach-Anaheim, CA; Miami, FL; New York-Newark, NY-NJ-CT; Philadelphia,
PA-NJ-DE-MD; Phoenix-Mesa, AZ; San Francisco-Oakland, CA; Seattle, WA
and Washington, DC-VA-MD.

The bill also provides $4 billion for Emergency Relief grants to transit
agencies that require significant additional assistance to maintain basic transit
services. These funds would be distributed through an application process
and requires the Secretary of Transportation to make awards within 120 days
of the date of enactment. The bill requires applicants for Emergency Relief
grants to provide estimates of financial need, data on reduced ridership, and a
spending plan for the funds. The bill directs the Secretary to give priority to
public transit agencies with the largest revenue loss as a percentage of their
operating expenses. Not more than $750 million of the Emergency Relief
funding is available for intercity bus providers for workforce retention and
employee costs associated with providing these intercity bus services.

Like the CARES Act, the funds are available for both operating expenses and
capital expenses. These operating expenses are not required to be part of
statewide or metropolitan transportation improvement programs or statewide
or long-range transportation plans. The federal share for grants made
available under the bill is 100 percent.

The bill does not allow the Secretary to waive prevailing wage or labor
standards. However, the bill also includes a new limitation on both these funds
and CARES Act transit funding. It directs that, to the maximum extent

Agenda Item No. 6



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
May 2020 Legislative Summary
Page 3

possible, these transit funds and CARES Act transit funds shall be used for
payroll and public transit service, unless the recipient certifies to the Secretary
that it has not furloughed any employees. The bill is now in the Senate where
it is not expected to pass in its current form.

Sincerely,
David Reyno Doran J. Barnes
Director of Government Relations Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 6



Attachment A

2020 Legislation Summary

Current as of 5/15/2020

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)

supporting infrastructure as well as budget
constraints continues to be a challenge for
transit agencies throughout the state as they
begin compliance with the California Air
Resources Board (CARB) December adoption
of their Innovative Clean Transit regulation.

costs of $775,000 for a
battery-electric bus, this bill
would save Foothill Transit
approximately $35,000 in
state tax savings per bus for
this technology.

Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency | Recommended
Positions Position
AB 315 Garcia This bill would prohibit trade associations, The bill would undermine Died in Assembly CTA - Oppose |Oppose

comprised of public agency members and core functions the Committee on Local Position
established for the expressed purpose of Association’s members, Government Adopted
lobbying, from expending public dollars for which includes Foothill 8/23/2019
purposes beyond lobbying the State Transit, have come to expect.
Legislature or United States Congress or on In particular, this bill would
strictly educational activities. This bill would undermine their ability to:
further prohibit associations from incurring engage in litigation against
any travel-related expense except as may be |the state/federal
necessary for the association to hold an annual [government; lobby the
conference or other gathering of its members. |California Air Resources
This bill’s proposed limitations on the use of Board (CARB), California
public dollars is a majority of the California Public Utilities Commission
Transit Association’s (CTA) operating budget. [(CPUC) and Governor’s

Office; form workgroups or

task forces for external or

internal policy development;

conduct their iTransit

campaign; and, manage their

finances.

AB 784 Mullin Would exempt zero-emission transit buses This bill will provide cost Signed by the CTA - Support |Support

from the state portion of the sales tax until savings to agencies in Governor and Position
January 1, 2024. The high upfront cost of California including Foothill Chaptered and Adopted
zero-emission transit buses (ZEBs) and Transit. Assuming average Effective 10/9/2019 4/26/2019




2020 Legislation Summary

Current as of 5/15/2020

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)

county roads enacted by SB 1- The Road
Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

labor organizations from
across the state to advocate
to enact SB 1. The Coalition
was successful protecting the
bill from being used for
general fund purposes
through passage of
Proposition 69, and a
referendum to overturn it by
defeating Proposition 6.

This bill would withhold
transportation funding for
streets, roads, or public
transit. This goes against the
will of the voters who have
repeatedly and
overwhelmingly dedicated
transportation funds for local
transportation improvements
and transit needs.

Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency | Recommended
Positions Position
AB 1568 McCarty Would attempt to increase housing production | Foothill Transit is a member [Died in Assembly CTA - Oppose |Oppose
by requiring local governments to meet of the Fix Our Roads Committee on Position
specified housing production targets before Coalition that united Appropriations Adopted
receiving the funding for city streets and transportation, business, and 4/26/2019




2020 Legislation Summary

Current as of 5/15/2020

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)

improvements to bus operations in order to
address the rising concern of assaults on bus
drivers and avoidable accidents due to blind
spots on buses. The bill requires transit
agencies to develop Bus Operations Safety
Risk Reduction Programs to improve safety by
reducing the number of bus accidents due to
blind spots, preventing assaults on bus drivers,
and improving bus driver seating to reduce
ergonomic injuries. It gives transit agencies
two years to create these programs in
partnership with their transit workforce, and
with oversight from the U.S. Department of
Transportation (DOT). The bill authorizes $25
million/year for 5 years to pay for the
implementation of these programs.

Transit agencies will be required to implement
the following safety improvements as a part of
their Bus Operations Safety Risk Reduction
program:

e Assault mitigation infrastructure and
technology, including barriers to
prevent assault on bus drivers.

e De-escalation training for bus drivers.

e Modified bus specifications and
retrofits to reduce visibility
impairments.

e Driver assistance technology that
reduces accidents.

e Installation of bus driver seating to
reduce ergonomic injuries.

The bill will also require transit agencies to
report all assaults on bus drivers to the U.S.
DOT’s National Transit Database (NTD).

adequate federal funding to
assist transit agencies in
order to comply as well as its
one size fits all approach, its
intent to improve overall
safety for our operators and
customers is what is most
important. The authors
understand the transit
industry concerns and has
expressed willingness to
work with us to find
appropriate solutions.

Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency | Recommended
Positions Position
HR 1139 Napolitano/ |The Bus Operator and Pedestrian Protection While this bill has some areas [Subcommittee on Support
Katko Act, authored by Congress Members Grace of concern including its driver [Highways and Transit Position
Napolitano (D, CA) and John Katko (R, NY) barrier, ergonomic and Adopted
will provide much needed safety retrofit provisions without 3/29/2019




2020 Legislation Summary

Current as of 5/15/2020

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)

ensure that transit agencies have the
resources necessary to purchase and deploy
zero-emission bus fleets and requiring all
buses purchased with federal funds be
zero-emission, starting Oct. 1, 2029.
Specifically, the law will increase funds for the
Federal Transit Administration’s Low or No
Emission Vehicle Component Assessment
Program from $3 million to $5 million,
annually. It will also increase funds for the
FTA’s Transit Cooperative Research Program
(TCRP) from $5 million to $20 million,
annually, which will prompt more federal
research on ways to reduce emissions and
develop and deploy zero-emission technology
nationwide.

buses and charging
infrastructure. The increased
research funding at the
national level could lead to
future cost savings for all
transit agencies.

Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency | Recommended
Positions Position
HR 2164 Brownley The Green Bus Act would take the state policy | This bill will support Foothill |Subcommittee on Support
to the federal level by increasing funding to Transit’s Electric Bus Highways and Transit Positon
improve green bus technology and help Program by providing more Adopted
deploy it nationwide, increasing funding to opportunities for funding our 6/28/2019




Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020

To: Executive Board

Subject: Holiday Service Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021

Recommendation
Approve the proposed FY 2021 Holiday Service Schedule.

Analysis

Foothill Transit traditionally operates a weekend schedule on most federal
holidays. On these holidays ridership on both our local and commuter lines is
very low, indicating that Foothill Transit’s weekend schedule would better
meet ridership demand. As such, it is recommended that Foothill Transit
operate a Sunday schedule on the following federal holidays:

Holiday Day of Week Date
Independence Day Friday July 3
Labor Day Monday September 7
Thanksgiving Day Thursday November 26
Christmas Day Friday December 25
New Year’s Day Friday January 1
President’s Day Monday February 15
Memorial Day Monday May 31

Budget Impact

Operating Sunday schedules on the above listed holidays will result in
approximately $801,452 in reduced operating cost than if regular weekday
service was provided on these dates.

Sincerely,
Joseph Raquel Doran J. Barnes
Director of Planning Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 7



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Executive Board
Subject: Contract Amendment - Architectural and Engineering Design for

the Mt. San Antonio Transit Center

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract
No. 18-017 with Psomas in the amount of $87,902 for additional design
services for the Mt. San Antonio College Transit Center.

Analysis

At the August 2017 Executive Board Meeting, the Executive Board authorized
the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Psomas to provide
consulting services to Foothill Transit for the design of a transit center on the
Mt. San Antonio College (Mt. SAC) campus. The scope of work included A&E
design services in preparation of conceptual designs to support the
development of environmental clearance documents for the proposed 10-bay
transit center; preparation of detail design, construction documents, and
technical specifications; and, provision of construction administration services
during construction of the project. Since that time, Mt. SAC informed Foothill
Transit of plans for a future parking structure connecting to the campus via a
pedestrian bridge that would traverse the future transit center site, resulting
in additional design and coordination efforts by our design team with Mt SAC
and Mt SAC’s design team through design and currently through plan check
approval. In July 2019, the Transit Center plans were submitted to the Division
of State Architect (DSA) and were reviewed simultaneously with Mt. SACs
Pedestrian Bridge design as a number of elements on both projects are inter-
dependent.

In April of 2020, DSA approved the transit center design plans, however, the
design team will need to go back to DSA to update the plans based on DSA
Plan Check review and comments for the foundation design of the pedestrian
bridge. In a letter dated May 13, 2020, Psomas submitted a formal request to
Foothill Transit for additional services required to update approved Transit
Center designs in coordination with the Pedestrian Bridge design changes.

Agenda Item No. 8



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 5/29/2020

Contract Amendment - Architectural and Engineering
Design for the Mt. San Antonio Transit Center

Page 2

Summary of additional services:

Pedestrian Bridge foundation pile caps - Additional hours to update the
approved Transit Center construction documents to reflect the
upcoming DSA approved pedestrian bridge pile caps. Mt. SAC’s design
consultants are responsible for the design of the pedestrian bridge.

Bus canopy - Additional hours to coordinate the canopy height with the
DSA approved design of the pedestrian bridge. Scope of additional
services include: study modified canopy design options, present revised
options to Foothill Transit, coordinate with the Pedestrian Bridge design
team and provide renderings of revised design.

Geotechnical recommendation - Additional hours required for review of
waterproofing and drawings of landscape planters over pile caps.
Psomas to review the proximity of storm water infiltration system
adjacent to pile cap. Mt SAC’s design consultant is responsible for the
final geotechnical design.

Construction Coordination - Additional hours required to coordinate
items identified by Mt SAC Construction Manager, Tilden Coil
Contractors (TCC). Examples such as the following: review of amenity
foundation and pile cap clearances; coordination for existing pedestrian
ramp demolition and removal; address electrical encasements within
pile cap zone of influence; review tree and plant selection over the pile
caps; and, revise horizontal control to coordinate with and match
pedestrian bridge grid system.

Additional construction support - Psomas’ original construction support
scope of work includes support for the Transit Center project only and
does not include contractor RFIs or coordination meetings to address
the Pedestrian Bridge or the phasing of the transit center project with
the Pedestrian Bridge.

Foothill Transit has reviewed the proposal submitted by Psomas for additional
services. Discussions were held with Psomas and additional information was
requested to substantiate their request. Based on staff review of the original
request and discussions with Psomas and the College, staff concludes that the
additional design efforts were outside of the base scope of work and were
necessary to advance designs for the transit center.

Agenda Item No. 8



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 5/29/2020

Contract Amendment - Architectural and Engineering
Design for the Mt. San Antonio Transit Center

Page 3

The Board had previously approved Add Services (Amendment 1) for
additional hours required to attend steering committee meetings, design
review meetings and additional design directives that came during design
development. Currently under the permitting phase of the project, this new
amendment is for the additional hours required for the design changes
needed to respond to the DSA questions as it relates to connection points
between the pedestrian bridge and the transit center. This Add Services will
allow the Transit Center project to move forward and receive final approval
from DSA before issuing Invitation for Bids (IFB) documents. Below is a
summary of the contract amounts:

Contract 18-017 - A/E Design Services for Mt SAC Transit Center

Prime contract amount $852,336

Amendment 1 Design Development $176,709

Amendment 2 Permitting and $87,902

additional coordination for pedestrian

bridge

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $1,116,947 | Amendment 1& 2 is

31% of base prime
contract amount

LIFE OF PROJECT BUDJECT $9,750,000

The Life of Project (LOP) Budget for the construction of the Mt. SAC Transit
Center is $9,750,000. With the additional cost for Add Services in
Amendment 2, the architectural and engineering design services will comprise
11.46% of the LOP budget. In general, the contract price (or fee) for architect-
engineering services for the preparation of design, plans, drawings,
specifications and construction administration services ranges from 10-15% of
the project’s estimated construction cost.

Pending approval by the Executive Board, Psomas will update the DSA
approved Transit Center construction documents based on DSA plan check
comments and coordination with Mt. SAC’s design consultants for the

Agenda Item No. 8



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 5/29/2020

Contract Amendment - Architectural and Engineering
Design for the Mt. San Antonio Transit Center

Page 4

pedestrian bridge. The revised construction drawings shall be submitted back
to DSA as a single addendum for review and approval. Once the transit center
addendum is approved by DSA and final approval by the City of Walnut and
the Los Angeles County Fire Department is obtained, a formal solicitation for
Issued for Bid procurement will be released. The anticipated start date for
construction is December 2020 with a forecast completion date of Fall 2022.

Budget Impact

Funding for these activities is included in the approved capital project #115,
Mt. SAC Transit Center.

Sincerely,

Sharlane R. Bailey Doran J. Barnes
Director of Facilities Executive Director
Christopher Pieper Michelle Lopes Caldwell
Director of Procurement Director of Finance and

Treasurer

Agenda Item No. 8



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Executive Board
Subject: Contract Award - Firewall Replacement

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Director to finalize contract terms and conditions and
enter into Agreement No. 20-091 with Digital Scepter Corporation in the
amount of $147,493.15 for the purchase and installation of a replacement
firewall for the Foothill Transit Data Center located at the West Covina
administrative offices.

Analysis

Network security is a key part of any defense against cyber-attacks. While
there is no network that is immune these attacks, a stable and efficient
network security system is essential to protecting enterprise data. Foothill
Transit’s network firewall is the first layer of defense against these threats.
The cyber security landscape is always changing as attackers are constantly
developing new tools and methods to compromise their victims. The existing
firewall was installed over four years ago, and has reached the end of its
useful life.

In order to maintain a high level of security and protection against the latest
threats, as well as to maintain business continuity, replacement of the firewall
is recommended. Foothill Transit staff reached out to multiple vendors to get
demonstrations on their firewall solutions. Palo Alto Networks next-
generation network firewall was found to best fit Foothill Transit’s goal in
securing the network environment. Palo Alto Networks was founded in 2005
and is the leading multinational cybersecurity firm based in Santa Clara
California. Palo Alto network firewalls are positioned in the Leaders quadrant
report by Gartner. Palo Alto network firewalls are used in over 70,000
organizations, including LA Metro.

Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 20-091 was issued for bids from authorized sellers
of Palo Alto Networks next generation firewall. A total of three quotes were
received, with Digital Scepter Corporation being the lowest priced responsive
vendor. Digital Scepter Corporation is a Palo Alto authorized vendor based
out of Irvine California.

Agenda Item No. 9



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Contract Award - Firewall Replacement
Page 2

Budget Impact

The funding for this project is included in the FY2020 budget under Project
No. 0188, Data Center Update and Replacement.

Sincerely,

Roy Eseyan Doran J. Barnes
Information Technology Manager Executive Director
Christopher Pieper Michelle Lopes Caldwell
Director of Procurement Director of Finance and

Treasurer

Agenda Item No. 9



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Executive Board
Subject: Contract Award - On-Call Architectural & Engineering Services

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate final terms and conditions and
execute Contract No. 20-038 with Stantec for the provision of On-Call
Architectural & Engineering Services.

Analysis

On February 11, 2020, Foothill Transit issued Request for Qualification (RFQ)
No. 20-038 seeking proposals from architectural and engineering (A&E) firms
to provide necessary A&E services on an on-call basis for multiple possible
construction projects.

Four submittals were received on March 10, 2020. Virtual interviews were held
on April 16, 2020. The highest-rated proposer was Stantec Architecture, Inc.
(Stantec). Stantec is a leading design firm providing architectural and
engineering design services for various cities, transit agencies, and counties in
the State of California for many years.

The on-call A&E contract will be awarded for two years with one one-year
option. Foothill Transit will issue a task order as specific services are required.
Each task order is equivalent to a separate contract whereby, the Executive
Director is authorized to approve and execute separate task order
amendments. Task orders under the on-call A&E Services contract will be
issued on an as-needed basis and are specifically limited to projects where the
value of the services provided is less than $75,000.

Budget Impact

Funding for on-call Architectural & Engineering services is included in Foothill
Transit’s proposed FY21 Budget in the specific capital projects which require
the task order.

Sincerely,
Vincent Sauceda Doran J. Barnes
Construction Project Manager Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 10



Foothill Transit o sl sl b oy et i
Special Executive Board Meeting - 03/24/17

Request to Issue RFQ NO. 17-069 - On-Call Architectural &
Engineering Services

Page 2

Christopher Pieper Michelle Lopes Caldwell

Director of Procurement Director of Finance and
Treasurer

Agenda Item No. 13



Fcu:;thill Transit
May 29, 2020

To: Executive Board

Subject: Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 First Quarter Budget

Recommendation

Recommend approval of Foothill Transit’s proposed first quarter budget for
Fiscal Year 2021 to the Foothill Transit Governing Board.

Analysis

Historically, the annual budget for the upcoming fiscal year is brought to the
Executive Board for consideration in April and to the Governing Board for
adoption in May of the current fiscal year. Although the first draft of the
FY2021 budget has been completed, it is obvious that there are many
unknowns related to service operation, ridership, fare collection, and sales tax
revenues for the next fiscal year due to the COVID-19 pandemic experienced
in 2020. While we continue to gather data on these important budget factors,
we propose that the Board adopt the FY2021 fiscal year budget in two parts:

1. Present a budget for July, August, and September to the Executive
Board for consideration in May and to the Governing Board for
adoption in June; and

2. Present the full budget and Business Plan to the Executive Board for
consideration in July and to the Governing Board for adoption in
August.

This will allow us to bring a more informed FY2021 budget and Business Plan
to the Board for adoption later this summer.

The First Quarter Fiscal Year 2021 budget is provided in Attachment A. The
budget includes both operating and capital expenses and revenues to fund
those expenses for the months of July, August, and September. Important
assumptions include the following:

e All commuter express service will be reinstated to full operation

e The Capital Program will continue as scheduled

e In order to best protect coach operators with social distancing from
riders, no fares will be collected resulting in no fare revenues

e Sales tax revenues from LA Metro will continue at their current level
through September 2020 as confirmed by LA Metro

Agenda Item No. 11



Foothill Transit

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Proposed First Quarter Fiscal Year 2021 Budget
Page 2

e Federal CARES Act funds will be available to cover any revenue
shortfalls and extraordinary COVID-19 expenses.

Capital Program

The Foothill Transit Financial Stability Policy adopted by the Board in 2016
requires the capital program budget be integrated into the annual budget
process. The capital budget includes all capital program activities associated
with bus acquisition, bus capital improvements, facility construction, and
other capital improvements such as information technology improvements.
The Board approves a capital project as part of the annual budget adoption; it
authorizes the schedule and total expenditures over the life of the project.

There are two new capital projects that must move forward during the first
guarter of FY2021. Those projects and their requested life-of-project (LOP)
budgets are the following:

Project# 212 Hydrogen Fuel Cell Bus Replacement and Fueling Infrastructure
LOP budget $33,000,000

This project is for the replacement of 20 CNG buses and construction of the

fueling infrastructure to fuel the buses. The project has received a grant that
must be authorized by the California Transportation Commisssion in October
2020.

Project #226 IT COVID-19 Capital Investment FY2021 LOP budget $250,000
This project will be used in the first quarter of FY2021 to fund equipment
required to respond to working conditions that have been adjusted in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This includes computers, ancillary
equipment, and safety equipment, such as body temperature scanners.

Financial Impact

Foothill Transit’s proposed first quarter FY2021 budget is balanced between
revenues and expenses with an estimated $27,105,040 million operating
budget and a $21,729,909 million capital budget, for a total first quarter
budget of $48,834,949 million.

Sincerely,

Michelle Lopes Caldwell Doran J. Barnes
Director of Finance and Treasurer Executive Director
Attachment

Agenda Item No. 11



Revenue Summary

For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2020

FY2020 Adopted FY2021 Proposed
Revenue Summary Budget Budget
Operating and Other Revenues
Fare Revenue 4,232,250 S -
Operating Subsidies 21,936,850 27,016,290
Property Management Revenue 88,750 88,750
Special Service Revenue 150,000 -
Total Operating and Other Revenues 26,407,850 S 27,105,040
Capital Revenues
Total Capital Revenues 19,186,465 S 21,729,909
Total Budget Revenues 45,594,315 S 48,834,949




Expenditure Summary
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2020

Expenditure Summary

FY2020 Adopted
Budget

FY2021 Proposed
Budget

Operating and Other Expenses
Transit Operating Expenses
Non-Operating Expenses

Total Operating and Other Expenses

Capital Expenditures
New Capital Programs
Existing Capital Programs
Total Capital

Total Budgeted Expenditures

S 26,169,100

238,750

S 27,016,290
88,750

S 26,407,850

S 1,752,000

17,434,465

S 27,105,040

S 2,050,000
19,679,909

S 19,186,465

S 21,729,909

S 45,594,315

S 48,834,949




Budgeted Operating Expenses
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2020

FY2020 Adopted FY2021 Proposed
Transit Operating Expenses by Department Budget Budget
Customer Service and Operations S 22,108,750 S 23,146,410
Maintenance and Vehicle Technology 204,910 224,510
Marketing and Communications 559,670 538,410
Information Technology 616,200 507,700
Administration 830,600 550,900
Procurement 223,510 219,050
Government Relations - 239,930
Finance 510,290 488,730
Planning 505,340 468,490
Facilities 609,830 632,160

Total Transit Operating Expenses

Non-Transit Operating Expense
Property Management

Special Services

Total Non-Transit Operating Expense

Total Operating Expense

S 26,169,100

S 27,016,290

S 88,750 $ 88,750
150,000 -
S 238,750 $ 88,750

S 26,407,850

S 27,105,040




Budgeted Capital Expenditures
For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2020

FY2020 Adopted FY2021 Proposed

Summary By Program Budget Budget
New Capital Programs

Buses/Fleet Maintenance S 319,500 1,800,000
Facilities Construction/Maintenance 1,132,500 -
Information Technology 300,000 250,000
Total New Capital Programs S 1,752,000 2,050,000
Existing Capital Programs

Buses/Fleet Maintenance S 7,322,500 13,274,500
Facilities Construction/Maintenance 8,192,003 4,182,246
Information Technology 1,919,963 2,223,163
Total Existing Capital Programs S 17,434,465 19,679,909
Total Capital S 19,186,465 21,729,909




— p ‘w

Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Executive Board
Subject: Transportation Fund Exchange

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Director to execute an assignment agreement with
Temple City to exchange Foothill Transit general use funds for the City’s
Proposition A Transportation Local Return funds.

Analysis

Temple City has $750,000 of uncommitted Proposition A Transportation
Local Return funds which may be made available to Foothill Transit to assist
in providing transit services. In exchange, Foothill Transit will provide Temple
City with $562,500 of available general use funds. The Proposition A
Transportation Local Return funds may only be used for transportation-
related expenditures.

The exchange will take place a) within 30 days of execution of the assignment
agreement, and b) with the approval of the exchange by Los Angeles County
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LACMTA).

Budget Impact

Foothill Transit will benefit from this exchange by receiving a net gain of
$187,500 more than our contribution. Temple City will benefit from this
exchange by receiving funds that provide more flexibility to meet the city’s
expenditure needs. Foothill Transit will program the funds into eligible transit
operating and capital expenses.

Sincerely,
Michelle Lopes Caldwell Doran J. Barnes
Director of Finance and Treasurer Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 12



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Governing Board
Subject: Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan

Recommendation

Approve Foothill Transit’s Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) Rollout Plan.

Analysis

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) issued the Innovative Clean
Transit (ICT) regulation on October 1, 2019 requiring public transit agencies to
gradually transition their fleets to zero-emission technology. The ZEB
purchase requirements begin in 2023 for large transit agencies and 2026 for
small transit agencies. The ICT Regulation defines large agencies as having at
least 100 buses in annual maximum service operated in an urbanized area
with a population of at least 200,000.

Large Transit Agencies must begin transitioning to zero-emissions fleet based
on the schedule laid out in the ICT regulation as described below:

January 1, 2023: 25% of all new bus purchases must be zero-emissions.
January 1, 2026: 50% of all new bus purchases must be zero-emissions.
January 1, 2029: 100% of all new bus purchases must be zero-emissions.
January 2, 2040: 100 % of fleet must be zero-emissions.

The ICT Regulation requires each transit agency to submit a complete Zero-
Emission Roll Out Plan before ZEB purchase requirements take effect. The
Plan should be a living document to help guide the implementation of zero-
emissions bus fleets.

CARB issued guidance to support transit agencies in preparing their Rollout
Plans. The guidance stipulates that agencies’ plans provide responses in the
following nine areas:

Section A: Transit Agency Information

Section B: Rollout Plan General Information

Section C: Technology Portfolio

Section D: Current Bus Fleet Composition and Future Bus Purchases
Section E: Facilities and Infrastructure Modifications

Section F: Providing Service in Disadvantaged Communities

Agenda Item No. 13



Foothill Transit
Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan
Page 2

Section G: Workforce Training
Section H: Potential Funding Sources
Section I: Start-up and Scale-up Challenges

Each Rollout Plan must include all of the required components and must be
approved by the transit agency’s governing body through the adoption of a
resolution, prior to submitting it to CARB. Large transit agencies must submit
their approved plans by July 1, 2020 and smaller agencies by July 1, 2023.

Foothill Transit’s Rollout Plan incorporates the Burns and McDonnell report
that was issued and presented to the Executive Board in September 2019,
which report satisfies Sections A through E of the guidance mentioned above.

Section A: Transit Agency Information - The Burns and McDonnell Report in
Section 2, Subsection 2.1, Page 2-1 provides a description of
Foothill Transit’s service area, location and agency size. Section
2.4 also summarizes some key metrics for Foothill Transit such as
ridership, number of routes, and weekday and annual ridership.

Section B: Rollout Plan General Information - This section requests
information on when Foothill Transit’s Board approved the
Rollout plan, the Resolution number, and requests a copy of the
Resolution, agency contact information for CARB to follow up on
details of the Rollout Plan, who created the Rollout Plan, the cost
for the creation of the Rollout Plan, and how many person-hours it
took to create the Rollout Plan. All of the information above will
be provided in the cover letter to CARB.

Section C: Technology Portfolio - This section asks for information on the
types of zero-emission bus technologies our transit agency plans
to deploy through 2040. This is addressed in Section 5, Fleet
Electrification Planning. In this section, conceptual plans
describing how Foothill Transit can transition its current CNG bus
fleet to BEBs are discussed for each bus type in operation and for
each operating facility. This transition plan is based on applying
the methodology for prioritizing routes as discussed in Section 5.1
and by selecting buses and chargers that can support Foothill
Transit routes as discussed in Section 4. By applying this phased
strategy to the suitable BEB and charging infrastructure, Foothill
Transit can move toward 100 percent electrification over the next
decade.

Agenda Item No. 13



Foothill Transit
Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan
Page 3

Section D: Current Bus Fleet Composition and Future Bus Purchases -
Section 2, Subsection 2.5, Pages 2-4 of the Burns and McDonnell
report provides Foothill Transit’s 100 percent fleet electrification
by 2030, much earlier than CARB’s 2040 requirement.

Section E: Facilities and Infrastructure Modifications - The following sections
of the Burns and McDonnell report describes the necessary
infrastructure and facility upgrades necessary.

Section 8.0 - Depot Physical Layout Assessment presents an
assessment on the current configuration of Foothill Transit’s
depots and how buses operate at each depot and considerations
for a future electrified state. This section provides options for
future charging equipment and the recommended future depot
charging infrastructure layouts based on the charging and
equipment requirements established in Section 4.0 and 7.0.

Section 9.0 - Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development
provides options and recommendations for a phased transition to
reach full electrification by 2030. The year by year civil, electrical,
and charging equipment is described for each depot along with
total installed costs by year. The phasing and development plan is
based on Foothill Transit’s fleet replacement schedule provided in
March 2019.

Sections F through |, not addressed in the Burns and McDonnell report are
addressed as follows:

Section F: Providing Service in Disadvantaged Communities - Foothill Transit
provides service to disadvantaged communities as listed in the
latest version of CaEnviroScreen. We serve the following cities as
highlighted in the survey: Azusa, Baldwin Park, Covina, Duarte, El
Monte, Hacienda Heights, La Puente, Los Angeles, Monrovia,
Montclair, Montebello, Pomona, South El Monte, West Covina, and
Whittier. Based on the survey, 41 percent of Foothill Transit’s bus
stops are currently located in these communities. Since we do
not assign buses to specific routes, these buses will still serve
these communities based on our service area and stop
distribution.

Agenda Item No. 13



Foothill Transit

Section G:

Section H:

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan
Page 4

Workforce Training - Together with original equipment
manufacturers (OEMs), Foothill Transit has provided training on
zero-emission buses to our bus operators and mechanics since
2010, when we procured our first battery electric buses. For bus
operators, it is imperative that they learn how to drive battery-
electric buses efficiently. Unlike conventional CNG buses, frequent
acceleration and braking can significantly reduce bus ranges
because such driving habits consume a significant amount of
energy. Therefore, bus operators receive initial trainings, as well
as continued training as necessary. Operators who demonstrate a
higher need for training are provided additional courses to ensure
they perfect their skills.

Mechanics are likewise trained on the nuances of servicing a
battery electric bus. While it is true that there are fewer parts to
battery electric buses, there are new components that mechanics
need to be familiar with in order to safely service buses.

Foothill Transit looks forward to continuing our relationship with
the OEMs to provide proper training to our staff and ensure that
operations continue safely, smoothly, and efficiently.

Potential Funding Sources - Potential funding sources for zero-
emission buses include Federal Transit Administration (FTA) bus
replacement funding, as well as $300,000 per bus from the
Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive
Project (HVIP). OEMs will apply for HVIP funding at the time the
buses are purchased, reducing the initial capital cost. CARB’s Carl
Moyer Program is another potential funding source. This program
has a $80,000 cap per bus, so long as the funding does not
exceed 50 percent of the vehicle cost.

The VW Mitigation Trust has $130 million in funds available to the
transportation industry to replace old vehicles with battery or
fuel-cell buses. This program would offer up to $400,000 per
vehicle.

Other funding sources include the Transit and Intercity Rail
Capital Program (TIRCP), which has $291 million available, as well
as various funding opportunities from the California Energy
Commission and South Coast Air Quality Management District.

Agenda Item No. 13



Foothill Transit

Section I:

Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan
Page 5

Foothill Transit has also been selling LCFS credits that we earn
from deployment of our CNG and battery electric buses.
Assuming that the value of LCFS credits remains at approximately
$200 and the program is not discontinued, we would anticipate
increased revenues once we add more fuel cell buses to our fleet.

Regarding infrastructure, Foothill Transit is open to discussing a
public-private partnership with entities that are willing to pay the
capital cost of infrastructure and lease the equipment to us. If
such a partnership made economic sense for our agency it would
also reduce the upfront cost of transitioning to a zero-emission
fleet.

Foothill Transit’s efforts to comply with CARB’s ICT Ruling is
subject to its ability to secure funding from one or more of the
above mentioned sources. While we will attempt to apply for all
the potential sources, it is difficult to predict how much, if any, we
will be awarded in the near future and over the next two decades.
It is also unclear what our chances are to receive the
aforementioned funding as the entire state is in the process of
transitioning to zero-emission bus fleets and California transit
agencies are all competing for the same funds. Therefore, it
becomes difficult to provide specific figures that predict our
expenses and costs in the coming years. As always, we will
continue working with our industry partners to ensure a smooth
transition to a zero-emission bus fleet to the best of our ability.

Start-up and Scale-up Challenges - Foothill Transit has been the
pioneer in deploying battery electric buses in transit service. With
ten years of experience, we have identified several disadvantages
in operating battery electric buses versus CNG buses. These
include bus range, infrastructure cost, complex utility rates,
operational impacts, and unknown battery life.

With the enormous charging infrastructure cost and the higher
price of zero-emission buses, there is a lack of funding available
to meet the capital demands to meet CARB’s ICT Regulation.
Current funding levels only provide for small-scale pilot
deployments. Funding for large-scale deployments of at least 100
buses with different zero-emissions technology (battery electric

Agenda Item No. 13



Foothill Transit : :
Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Zero-Emission Bus (ZEB) Rollout Plan
Page 6

and fuel cell) is necessary to further learn how zero-emissions
buses perform in transit applications.

Sincerely,
Roland M. Cordero Doran J. Barnes
Director of Maintenance and Executive Director

Vehicle Technology

Attachment: Board Resolution
ICT Rollout Plan Cover Letter
Burns and McDonnell In-Depot Charging and Planning Study

Agenda Item No. 13



Attachment A

A RESOLUTION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD OF
FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADOPTING THE ZERO-EMISSION
BUS (ZEB) ROLLOUT PLAN
Resolution #2020-03

The Executive Board of Foothill Transit does resolve as follows:

1.

Findings. The Executive Board hereby finds and declares the following:

a. On October 1, 2019, the California Air Resources Board (CARB) issued
the Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) Regulation, which requires public
transit agencies to transition to a 100 percent zero-emission bus (ZEB)
fleet by 2040.

b. The ICT includes the following requirements for bus purchases for
large transit such as Foothill Transit:

i. 25 percent of all new bus purchases must be zero-emission by
January 1, 2023;

ii. 50 percent of all new bus purchases must be zero-emission by
January 1, 2026;

iii. 100 percent of all new bus purchases must be zero-emission
by January 1, 2029;

iv. 100 percent of fleet must be zero-emission by January 1, 2040;
and

v. Annual compliance reports must be submitted to CARB by
March of every year from 2021 to 2050.

c. The ICT Regulation requires each agency to submit a ZEB Rollout
Plan (“Rollout Plan”) to CARB by July 1, 2020. The Rollout Plan is a
living document intended to guide the agency’s conversion to a ZEB
fleet.

d. CARB issued guidance to support transit agencies in preparing their
Rollout Plans. The Rollout Plan includes the following components:

i. Transit agency information, including Foothill Transit’s
operations and service area;

ii. Current bus fleet composition and bus procurement plan
through 2040;



Attachment A

iii. Facilities and Infrastructure Modifications, including a
description of each operating and maintenance facility and
potential facility modifications needed to support a ZEB fleet;

iv. Service provided in disadvantaged communities (DACs) that
are affected by existing and future ZEB deployment.

v. Workforce training, which provides background on personnel
training requirements for ZEB implementation;

vi. Costs and funding opportunities, which outlines estimated
costs and potential funding sources for ZEB implementation.

e. The Rollout Plan must be approved by the transit agency’s
governing body through the adoption of a resolution prior to
submission to CARB.

2. Action. The Executive Board hereby:

a. Adopts the CARB Zero-Emission Rollout Plan and approves it for
submission to CARB.

3. Adoption. PASSED AND ADOPTED at a meeting of the Executive Board
held on May 29, 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
CYNTHIA STERNQUIST, CHAIR
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:
DAROLD PIEPER, GENERAL COUNSEL CHRISTINA LOPEZ, BOARD SECRETARY

By: By:




Foothill Transit

June 30, 2020 Attachment B
Yachun Chow, Ph.D.

Manager

Zero Emission Truck and Bus

Mobile Source

California Air Resources Board

1001 | Street

Sacramento, California

RE: Zero-Emission Bus Rollout Plan.

Dear Yachun Chow:

On behalf of Foothill Transit, | respectfully sulbmit this Zero-Emission Bus Rollout Plan
(Rollout Plan) in compliance with the Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) regulation, which
became effective on October 1, 2019. Enclosed, please find a supplemental report by
consulting firm Burns & McDonnell titled, “In-Depot Charging and Planning Study.”

The goals set forth in this Rollout Plan are based on information that is currently available
to us. As you have acknowledged in the Rollout Plan Guidance, our Rollout Plan is a living
document that will be amended as new information becomes available to us over the
coming years. Foothill Transit is committed to continuing to update this plan to ensure
that our fleet transitions to zero-emission in compliance with the ICT regulation.

Section A: Transit Agency Information

Foothill Transit is the primary public transit provider in the Pomona and San Gabriel
Valleys of eastern Los Angeles County. This service area is approximately 327 square
miles. Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, we provided service to more than 48,000 riders
per work day, or 14 million riders per year. Weekday ridership is down currently just over
17,000 per day due to COVID-19 crisis. Foothill Transit is under the jurisdictions of the
South Coast Air Quality Management District and the South Coast Air Basin.

Since our first deployment of zero-emission buses (ZEBs) in 2010, Foothill Transit has
been a leader in zero-emission efforts. Today, we have 33 battery electric buses in
operation. Our remaining fleet consists of 340 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) buses.

MEMBER CITIES Arcadia, Azusa, Baldwin Park, Bradbury, Claremont, Covina, Diamaond Bar, Duarte, El Maonte, Glendora,
Industry, Irwindale, La Puente, La Verns, Monrovia, Pasadena, Pomona, San Dimas, South El Monte, Ternple City, Walnut,
West Covina and Los Angeles County A PUBLIC AGENCY



June 29, 2020
Page 2
Re: Zero-Emission Rollout Plan

Regarding Joint Zero-Emission Bus Groups, Foothill Transit is not a member of such a
group and will be submitting an individual Rollout Plan.

Below are the names and contact information of Foothill Transit staff that will be involved
in the continued development of this Rollout Plan:

Doran J. Barnes
Executive Director
dbarnes@foothilltransit.org

Kevin Parks McDonald
Deputy Executive Director
kmcdonald@foothilltransit.org

Roland Cordero
Director of Maintenance and Vehicle Technology
rcordero@foothilltransit.org

Ritta Merza
Policy and Programs Manager
rmerza@foothilltransit.org

Section B: Rollout Plan General Information

This Rollout Plan is in large part based on the In-Depot Charging and Planning Study
(hereinafter, the Report) created for Foothill Transit by consulting firm Burns & McDonnell.
Foothill Transit worked with Burns & McDonnell to better understand the infrastructure
needs associated with transitioning our fleet to a full battery electric fleet by 2040. After
almost a year of data acquisition and analysis, Burns & McDonnell released to us a final
report. The Report summarizes a plan to build out infrastructure in our Pomona and
Arcadia/lrwindale bus depots and transition to battery-electric buses over the next
decades.

Most recently, the Foothill Transit Executive Board agreed to move forward with
procurement and deployment of 20 hydrogen fuel-cell buses. They will be deployed on
Line 486, which is a 35-mile roundtrip route traveling between the Pomona Transit Center
and El Monte Station. Unlike battery electric buses, hydrogen fuel-cell buses have range
capabilities that are more comparable to CNG buses. Fueling hydrogen fuel cell buses also
compares favorably to the fueling system we currently use for our CNG buses. However,
hydrogen fuel-cell buses have a higher upfront capital cost than battery electric buses.
These are all changes we need to account for as we move forward with this new transition.

As such, the goals and predictions in this report are based on initial estimates created by
Burns & McDonnell with adjustments for hydrogen fuel-cell buses and infrastructure based
on the best estimates available to us today.

> el


mailto:dbarnes@foothilltransit.org
mailto:kmcdonald@foothilltransit.org
mailto:rcordero@foothilltransit.org
mailto:rmerza@foothilltransit.org

June 29, 2020
Page 3
Re: Zero-Emission Rollout Plan

This Rollout Plan was approved by our Executive Board on May 29, 2020, [resolution
number]. | have included a copy of the board approved resolution with this submission.

Section F: Providing Service in Disadvantaged Communities

Foothill Transit provides service to disadvantaged communities as listed in the latest version
of CaEnviroScreen. We serve the following cities as highlighted in the survey: Azusa,
Baldwin Park, Covina, Duarte, El Monte, Hacienda Heights, La Puente, Los Angeles, Monrovia,
Montclair, Montebello, Pomona, South El Monte, West Covina, and Whittier. Based on the
survey, forty-one percent of Foothill Transit’'s bus stops are currently located in these
communities. Since we do not assign buses to specific routes, these buses will still serve
these communities based on our service area and stop distribution.

One specific disadvantaged community is serviced by Foothill Transit’s Line 291. This route
runs from La Verne to South Pomona and has already been fully electrified for many years.
Other communities mentioned above are also served by zero-emission buses based on
service areas and bus stop distribution.

Currently, we have focused our continued electrification efforts on Line 486, where
hydrogen fuel-cell buses will soon serve the community while reducing carbon emissions.

When planning to deploy zero-emission buses on routes that serve disadvantaged
communities, we must take into account the length of the route and whether zero-
emission buses will have the range capacity to meet that demand. We face a general
challenge of range capability with regards to battery-electric buses. However, we are
confident that hydrogen fuel-cell buses will meet longer range demands and ensure that
we can continue to serve all of our communities, especially those that suffer a higher
exposure to pollution.

Section G: Workforce Training

Together with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs), Foothill Transit has provided
training on zero-emission buses to our bus operators and mechanics since 2010, when we
procured our first battery electric buses. For bus operators, it is imperative that they learn
how to drive battery-electric buses efficiently. Unlike conventional CNG buses, frequent
acceleration and braking can significantly reduce bus ranges because such driving habits
consume a significant amount of energy. Therefore, bus operators receive initial trainings,
as well as continued training as necessary. Operators who demonstrate a higher need for
training are provided additional courses to ensure they perfect their skills.

Mechanics are likewise trained on the nuances of servicing a battery electric bus. While it
is true that there are fewer parts to battery electric buses, there are new components that
mechanics need to be familiar with in order to safely service buses.

> el



June 29, 2020
Page 4
Re: Zero-Emission Rollout Plan

Foothill Transit looks forward to continuing our relationship with the OEMs to provide
proper training to our staff and ensure that operations continue safely, smoothly, and
efficiently.

Section H: Potential Funding Sources

As you know, a key reason transit agencies are struggling to transition to a zero-emission
bus fleet is the incredibly high upfront cost of zero-emission buses and the accompanying
infrastructure. At Foothill Transit, we relied heavily on grants and rebate programs, such
as Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP) or Low or
No Emission Vehicle Program (Low-No) grants, among others, to obtain and operate our
33 battery electric buses. In the next phase of our transition to zero-emission buses, we
are planning to add 20 hydrogen fuel cell buses to our fleet. The data suggests that
hydrogen fuel cell buses are more expensive than battery electric buses. However,
hydrogen fuel cell bus fleets tend to scale easier.

During initial discussions with Clean Energy, we have found that it will cost an estimated
$3 to $6 million to build a liquid hydrogen station that can provide 800 kg of hydrogen

per day to fuel approximately 30 hydrogen fuel-cell buses. This is a big investment that

will require significant funding.

Potential funding sources for zero-emission buses include Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) replacement money, as well as $300,000 per bus from HVIP. OEMs will apply for
HVIP funding at the time the buses are purchased, reducing the initial capital cost. CARB’s
Carl Moyer Program is another potential funding source. This program has a $80,000 cap
per bus, so long as the funding does not exceed 50 percent of the vehicle cost.

The VW Mitigation Trust has $130 million in funds available to the transportation industry
to replace old vehicles with battery or fuel-cell buses. This program would offer up to
$400,000 per vehicle.

Other funding sources include the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP),
which has $291 million available, as well as various funding opportunities from the
California Energy Commission and South Coast Air Quality Management District.

Foothill Transit has also been selling LCFS credits that we earn from deployment of our
CNG and battery electric buses. Assuming that the value of LCFS credits remains at
approximately $200 and the program is not discontinued, we would anticipate increased
revenues once we add more fuel cell buses to our fleet.

Regarding infrastructure, Foothill Transit is open to discussing a public-private partnership
with entities that are willing to pay the capital cost of infrastructure and lease the
equipment to us. If such a partnership made economic sense for our agency it would also
reduce the upfront cost of transitioning to a zero-emission fleet.

> el


https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/lowno
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/lowno

June 29, 2020
Page 5
Re: Zero-Emission Rollout Plan

Foothill Transit’s efforts to comply with CARB’s ICT Ruling is subject to its ability to secure
funding from one or more of the above mentioned sources. While we will attempt to apply
for all the potential sources, it is difficult to predict how much, if any, we will be awarded
in the near future and over the next two decades. It is also unclear what our chances are
to receive the aforementioned funding as the entire state is in the process of transitioning
to zero-emission bus fleets and California transit agencies are all competing for the same
funds. Therefore, it becomes difficult to provide specific figures that predict our expenses
and costs in the coming years. As always, we will continue working with our industry
partners to ensure a smooth transition to a zero-emission bus fleet to the best of our
ability.

Section I: Start-up and Scale-up Challenges

Foothill Transit has been the pioneer in deploying battery electric buses in transit service.
With ten years of experience, we have identified several disadvantages in operating
battery electric buses versus CNG buses. These include bus range, infrastructure cost,
complex utility rates, operational impacts, and unknown battery life.

With the enormous charging infrastructure cost and the higher price of zero-emission
buses, there is a lack of funding available to meet the capital demands to meet CARB’s ICT
Regulation. Current funding levels only provide for small-scale pilot deployments.
Funding for large-scale deployments of at least 100 buses with different zero-emissions
technology (battery electric and fuel cell) is necessary to further learn how zero-emissions
buses perform in transit applications.

We thank you for your attention to this Rollout Plan. Foothill Transit is committed to

continuing to work with CARB to transition to a ZEB fleet and reduce emissions. If you
have any questions or concerns, | would be happy to discuss those with you.

Sincerely,

Doran J. Barnes
Executive Director




BURNS\\MSDONNELL, ‘

In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Foothill Transit

Foothill Transit

Report
Project No. 110549

Final
9/9/2019

\—



In Depot Charging and Planning
Study

prepared for

Foothill Transit
Final Report
West Covina, CA

Project No. 110549

Revision Final
9/9/2019

prepared by

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.
Kansas City, MO

ebusplan
Aachen, Germany

Greenlots, A Member of the Shell Group
Los Angeles, CA

AMMA Transit Planning
Riverside, CA

COPYRIGHT © 2019 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Page No.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..ottt e ettt et et e eeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1
1.0 INTRODUCTION ..ooitiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeesasessssssseeseseessesssssnennees 1-1
1.1 SCOPE OF WOTK ..ottt 1-1

1.2 Organization 0f REPOI .......coveiiiiiciece e 1-1

1.3 SOUICES OF DALA .. .ccueiiiieiiiiie ettt sre e nte s e 1-3

1.4 Statement Of LIMITAtIONS......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiniee e 1-4

2.0 FOOTHILL TRANSIT BACKGROUND AND ELECTRIFICATION PLAN ........ 2-1
2.1 Foothill Transit BaCKGrouNnd...........cccciiveiiiieiieeie e se e 2-1

2.2 BUS DBPOLS ...ttt 2-1

2.3 BUS ROULES ... 2-3

24 KEBY STALISTICS ...ttt ettt e 2-3

2.5  Fleet TranSition PIANS ........ccociiiiiiiiiiiee s 2-3

2.6 Renewable ENergy GOalS........ccviiiiieiiiiiiiinieee e 2-4

2.7  Fleet Reliability and Resiliency GOals............cccocviveiierviie e 2-4

3.0 STUDY ASSUMPTIONS OF TECHNICAL PARAMETERS........ccccoiiiiiiiinnns 3-1
3.1 Reference Bus SEIECION .......cccoviviiiiiiicce e 3-1

3.2 Usable Battery CapaCity ........ccocorviiiiiiieieiiesiesie st 3-3

3.3 Auxiliary Power ConSUMPLION .......ccveiveririiiieese e sne e 3-3

3.4 Operations Planning Parameters..........ccoovieieereniie e 3-4

4.0 ROUTE ANALYSIS SCHEDULING AND CHARGING OPTIMIZATION .......... 4-1
4.1 CUITeNt OPEIATIONS....cceiiiieiteeieitie e eie sttt sttt st e beesbeeseesreesteeseesbeenne s 4-1

4.2 Detailed ROULE ANAIYSIS ...c..ocviiieiieie e 4-2

421 BUS LINES ..ttt ettt 4-2

4.2.2  Route Data BIOCKS ..........ccoiiiiiiiiieccee e 4-3

4.3 Energy Consumption ANAIYSIS ........coiiiiiiiiiiieee e 4-4

4.4  Technical Feasibility of Current Operating BIOCKS .........cccoovvevviieiiieiiniciienns 4-6

45  Adjusting Non-Feasible BIOCKS ...........ccoiiiiiiiiii e 4-8

4.6  Charging Scheme OptimizZation ...........ccovveieiieiiere e 4-9

46.1 Non Optimized Charging.........ccooeeieiieiiiiiee e 4-9

4.6.2  Optimized Charging.........ccoooveieiieeiieie e se e 4-13

4.6.3  Optimized Charging with an On-Peak Time Window................c....... 4-15

4.7  Summary of Charging Scheme Optimization.............cccocevveieiiese e 4-18

5.0 FLEET ELECTRIFICATION PLANNING ......uui s 5-1
5.1  Electrification Phasing Method............ccccoviiiiiiii i 5-1

Foothill Transit TOC-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

5.2  Electrification Concepts for Transitioning to BEB’S............cccccevvviveinieieennn, 5-3
521 Electrification Concept for Double Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard ........ 5-3
5.2.2  Electrification Concept for Single Deck Buses at Arcadia and
POMONG ... 5-4
6.0 BUS EQUIPMENT MARKET ANALYSIS ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeneeees 6-1
6.1  Survey of Charger DemographiCs........ccooviiiieiiiiesieicee e 6-1
6.2  Different Types of Charging System Architecture...........ccccoevviveiiveieseieennn, 6-3
6.3  Survey Of BEB MAarKet.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiicie e 6-3
7.0 CHARGING EQUIPMENT MARKET ANALYSIS AND SELECTION................ 7-1
7.1 Summary of Findings from EVSE RF1..........cccooiiiiiiii e 7-1
7.2 Initial RFI Results and Scoring Criteria.........cccovvveieeieieese e 7-1
7.3 Charger Constructability CONSLraintS..........ccoooueririieniieiiiie e 7-2
7.4  Preliminary Recommendations for EVSE Selection ............cccccevvvivevviieinennenn, 7-3
8.0 DEPOT PHYSICAL LAYOUT ASSESSMENT ......uuiins 8-1
8.1  Existing Depot Layout ASSESSIMENT .......ccvevueieerieeieieesieeeesreeseeseesraeseesseeseeeneenns 8-1
8.2  Depot Policies and Procedures ASSESSMENT.........cervriririeierierieniesiesese s 8-3
8.3  Operational Limitations and Space Availability........c...cccccovveviniiiiiniiciee, 8-4
8.4 Electric Bus Charging Equipment and Configurations..........c.cccocevvnieiennennnnne 8-6
8.5  Proposed Depot INfrastructure LAYOULS .........ccceveeeeiieerieniesieerieseese e se e 8-7
9.0 DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE PHASING AND DEVELOPMENT .......ccccceeiinnnns 9-1
9.1  Depot Infrastructure Deployment Options and Plan.............cccccovvvveieieinennnnn, 9-2
9.2 Depot INFrastrUCtUIE COSES ......ccveiieiieiieie et 9-5
10.0 DEPOT OPERATIONAL ASSESSMENT ....oovtiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 10-1
10.1 Review of Critical Operational and Non-Operational Concerns at Depots....... 10-1
10.1.1 Critical Travel Lanes, Entrances, and EXItS..........ccccoevvenininiinnnnne. 10-1
10.1.2 Remote Bus Storage CONCEIMNS........c.ooiiriiieiieiieeniee e 10-1
10.1.3  BUS Staging CONCEIMNS ......ccueeverieeieeieseesieeiesee e eee e seesee e esee e nnas 10-1
10.1.4  Fueling, Charging, and Washing/Cleaning Concerns..............c.......... 10-2
10.1.5 Space for Relief/Supervisor Vehicles and Employee Parking............ 10-2
10.1.6  Depot Operator Labor.........ccocoiiiiiiiiiieesieseee e 10-2
10.1.7  SUMMAIY cooiiiieiiiie ittt snb e e nnn e e nnnees 10-2
10.2 Pomona Depot Charging and Operational Plan............cccccooeiiniiinninieiens 10-3
10.3  Arcadia Depot Charging and Operational Plan ...........cccccceveiiviieiienesiecieins 10-5
11.0 UTILITY GRID INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT .....ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiieee, 11-1
11.1 Identification of SCE’s Distribution Grid Infrastructure............ccccccevvvvnnnnnnn 11-1
11.2  Forecasted Bus Load at Arcadia and Pomona Yard ..........ccccevveeveninneniieneennns 11-3
11.3  Summary of SCE’s Charge Ready Program...........ccccoevererieeseeresieesesniesinennens 11-4

Foothill Transit TOC-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

12.0 RENEWABLE ENERGY SUPPLY AND BACK UP POWER PLAN............... 12-1
12.1  Foothill Transit Energy REQUITEMENTS.........ccoveiirriiiieiieie e 12-1
12.2  Foothill Transit Renewable Power Supply Plan..........ccoccvveiiiiieiienieciccienn 12-3
12.3  SCE Renewable Energy SUpply Plan ... 12-1
12.4  Arcadia On-Site Renewable Energy Plan.........ccccooeiieieiieiicie e 12-1
12,5 Pomona On-Site Renewable Energy Plan..........ccccoeiiiiiieniiie e 12-4
12.6  Off-Site Renewable Energy Plan ..........ccooe i 12-8

12.6.1  Off-Site Renewable Energy Solicitation and Analysis....................... 12-9
12.7 Emergency Response Planning and On-Site Backup Power ..............ccccuene... 12-11

13.0 FLEET ELECTRIFICATION LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS .....covvvvvviiriinnee 13-1
13,1 APPIOACH ... ne s 13-1
13.2  StUAY ASSUMPLIONS ....viiieitieieeiie sttt sttt sbe et et sneesre e b 13-1
13.3  Fleet Transition PIan ... 13-2
13.4  BUS EQUIPMENT COSES.....eiitiiiiiiieiiieieeiie sttt sttt nne s 13-2
13.5 Bus Operation & Maintenance COSIS........ccuvivereerieiiiereereseeseesieseeseeeeseesaeas 13-2
13.6  EIECIIICITY COSIS ...itieiiiieiieeiie sttt sttt re b 13-3
13,7 CNG FUEL COSES ...ttt sttt 13-3
13.8 Bus Major Overhaul and Replacement COSES..........cccevverereeniniesienesie e 13-3
13.9 Charger Equipment O&M and Replacement COSES.........cccccevvereiiveiesiiesiennnns 13-3
13.10 Charging INfrastruCture COSES........cceiurrieirieiieiieie et 13-4
13.11 LCC ANAlYSIS RESUITS .....ccvveiiiiesiieie ettt nne s 13-4
13.12 Electric Bus Rebates and INCENTIVES .........ccoiiiiiiiiiiieiieieseeneee e 13-6

13.12.1 HVIP REDALES. .....eeveeiiieiiiciieiieie e 13-6
13.12.2 SCE Charger REDALES. .......ccoouiiieiiiie e 13-6
13.12.3 Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits..........cc.coovviiiniinineni s 13-7
13.12.4 Electric Bus Rebates and Incentives Scenario LCC Analysis

RESUITS. ...ttt 13-7

APPENDIX A - DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE COST ESTIMATES
APPENDIX B - DEPOT YARD LAYOUTS

Foothill Transit

TOC-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Ch

arging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

LIST OF TABLES

Page No.
Table 2-1: Arcadia Single Deck BUS TranSitioN .........cccccviieiiieeic i 2-1
Table 2-2: Arcadia Double Deck BUS TranSitioN...........coiiieieieeie e 2-2
Table 2-3: Pomona Single Deck BUS TranSItioN..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiceeeeese e 2-3
Table 3-1: Summary of Specifications for Electric Buses S1, S2, D3, and D4 ...........cccccvvvevvvivineviesnene. 3-2
Table 3-2: Summary of HVAC ASSUMPLIONS ......cviiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt ste e sreene 3-4
Table 4-1: Summary of BEB Requirements for Conversion with Non-Optimized Charging ................. 4-12
Table 4-2: Summary of BEB with Optimized Charging.........cccccvveiiiiiieiesesc s 4-15
Table 4-3: Overview of Optimized Chargers with an Enforced On-Peak Time Window ....................... 4-18
Table 6-1: List of Surveyed Charging EQUIPMENT .........coiiiiieieeie ittt 6-2
Table 6-2: Summary of Available BEB'S...........ccooiiiiiiee e 6-5
Table 7-1: Summary of EVSE DY VENUOI ........ccociiiiiiice ettt 7-2
Table 8-1: Electric Bus Charging Equipment REQUIFEMENTS..........ccooviiiiiirieieieisese e 8-6
Table 8-2: Electric Bus Charging Infrastructure Alternatives Cost Analysis...........ccccovvveiiininiencnenn. 8-14
Table 9-1: Electric Bus Charging Infrastructure ReqQUIrEMENLS........ccccveviiieieiiiie e 9-2
Table 12-1: Arcadia Depot Load and ENergy GrOWEN ...........ccoeiieiiiiiie e 12-2
Table 12-2: Pomona Depot Load and Energy GrowWth...........coooiiioieiinieieiece e 12-2
Table 12-3: Arcadia Depot Energy USES and SOUICES ..........ccvivirierieiieieiiisiesesesie e 12-1
Table 12-4: Pomona Depot Energy USES and SOUICES.........cccveueiieierieiieiieseseesiesteeiesresseesiesneesesse s 12-2
Table 12-5: Arcadia On-Site Solar and Energy Storage Economic Analysis Results ...........cc.ccoceeuenen. 12-4
Table 12-6: Pomona On-Site Solar and Energy Storage Economic Analysis Results.............c.ccoceeeeee. 12-8
Table 12-7: Off-Site Renewable Power Supply Proposals Received and Analyzed .............ccccevveneeee. 12-10
Table 12-8: Off-Site Renewable Power SUPPIY RESUILS ........c.coiiieiiiiie s 12-10
Table 12-9: Emergency Fleet and Back Up Power Demand Requirement.............ccooovvovevvnenininnennnn 12-12
Table 13-1: Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet COSt SUMMATIES .........cccereririerniininine e 13-4

Table 13-1: Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet Cost Summaries with Rebates and
INCEINTIVES. ...ttt sttt bttt bbb e 13-7

Foothill Transit TOC-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

LIST OF FIGURES

Page No.
Figure 2-1: Arcadia BUS DEPOL .........cii ittt sttt be et e ste e sbesbeeneetenre e 2-2
Figure 2-2: POMONA BUS DEPOL.........oiiiiieieie ettt ettt ettt sttt e e ste s e seeeneeneeseeeneeneeeneans 2-2
Figure 2-3: Overview of Foothill Transit BUS ROULES ..........ccccueiriiiieeiiee e 2-3
Figure 3-1: 40" Single Deck Bus AVailability ............ccccoviiiiiiiic e 3-1
Figure 3-2: Double Deck Bus AVailability ..........cccoviiiiie i 3-2
Figure 3-3: Usable vs. Installed Battery CapaCityln ...........cocooieiiiiiiieniee e 3-3
Figure 4-1: Active Buses by Day and Over Time for Arcadia and Pomona Yard...........c..cccccevvivvennnnenn, 4-2
Figure 4-2: Journey Distance for Foothill Transit Bus LINES .........cccceiiiieiiiiiie e 4-3
Figure 4-3: Average Speed for Foothill Transit BuS LINES.........cccooveiiiiiiiiiiiercse e 4-3
Figure 4-4: Block Distances for Arcadia and POmona Yard...........ccoceviiienininiene s, 4-4
Figure 4-5: Estimated Energy Consumption for Reference Bus S1 and S2...........cccccevevviveveineviesieenen, 4-5
Figure 4-6: Estimated Energy Consumption for Reference Bus D3 and D43 ..........ccoooivveiiiiieeicnieennen, 4-5
Figure 4-7: Feasible BIOCks at Arcadia Yard..........ccooeiiiioneieee et 4-7
Figure 4-8: Feasible BIOCKS at POMONA YAIQ ........ccoccviiiiieie ettt 4-7
Figure 4-9: Splitting Non-Feasible Blocks into Two Feasible BIOCKS.............cccceviiiiieiiiicccc e, 4-8
Figure 4-10: Number of Active S2 Buses from Arcadia Yard..........ccccooeoerininineneneeseseseseseneeas 4-10
Figure 4-11: Number of Active D3 Buses from Arcadia Yard..........ccooeooeveieeinieneee e 4-11
Figure 4-12: Number of Active S2 Buses from POmona Yard..........cccccveveveieeiieve e 4-11
Figure 4-13: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging for Bus S2 at Arcadia Yard ................ 4-13
Figure 4-14: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging at for Bus D3 Arcadia Yard................ 4-14
Figure 4-15: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging for Bus S2 at Pomona Yard................ 4-14
Figure 4-16: Optimized Charging with On-Peak Window for Bus S2 at Arcadia Yard.............c.ccc.o..... 4-16
Figure 4-17: Optimized Charging with On-Peak Window for Bus D3 at Arcadia Yard............c..ccc....... 4-16
Figure 4-18: Optimized Charging with Enforced On-Peak Window for Bus D3 at Pomona Yard......... 4-17
Figure 5-1: EXAMPIE DAY COUISE......ccuiiireiiiieeeeite st eie st st e steste et et e ste et be e e s testaestesbeasaestesreesaesreaneeeenneens 5-1
Figure 5-2: EIeCtrifiCation PRASES........coiiieiieiee ettt ee e 5-2
Figure 5-3: Example Day Course in Phase A .......ooi e 5-2
Figure 5-4: Example Day Course iN Phase B ........ccoeiiiiiie ettt 5-2
Figure 5-5: Example Day Course iN Phase C .......ooooiiiiiee et 5-3
Figure 5-6: Transition of Double Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard.........cccccoooveviiiiiinieniee e, 5-4
Figure 5-7: Transition of Double Deck Buses Per Route from Arcadia Yard...........cccccoovevvevivnevieiinnenn, 5-4
Figure 5-8: Transition of Single Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard ..........cccccooveveiiiiieie i 5-5
Figure 5-9: Transition of Single Deck Buses Per Route from Arcadia Yard...........ccocooeveiiiniincncnenn 5-5
Figure 5-10: Transition of Single Deck Buses at POMOoNa Yard...........cccccvevvevviiereiesie e 5-6
Figure 5-11: Transition of Single Deck Buses Per Route from Pomona Yard ..........cccccocvveveveieincinennenn, 5-6
Figure 6-1: Architecture of a Modular Charging SYSIEIM ..........coiiiiiiii e 6-3
Figure 8-1: Bus Path within Arcadia DEPOL..........cccuiiiiiieieie et 8-2
Figure 8-2: Bus Path within POMONa DEPOL .........cccueiviiiiie et 8-2
Figure 8-3: Proposed Bus Parking Scheme Pomona Depot with CNG Fleet ............ccoccovviiiiiiieiieneen, 8-5
Figure 8-4: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Alternative 1 (High Capital + No Depot Labor) ...................... 8-9
Figure 8-5: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Alternative 2 (Low Capital + Existing Depot Labor) ............ 8-10
Figure 8-6: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Alternative 1 (High Capital + No Depot Labor).................... 8-12
Figure 8-7: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Alternative 2 (Low Capital + Existing Depot Labor)............ 8-13
Figure 9-1: Foothill Transit Fleet Replacement Plan and Cumulative Electric Buses by Depot............... 9-1
Figure 9-2: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Phasing Plan (Year by Year Deployment).........ccccccoevevveivnnneen, 9-3
Figure 9-3: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Phasing Plan (Year by Year Deployment).........ccccccoovevvenuennenn. 9-4

Foothill Transit TOC-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Table of Contents

Figure 9-4: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Cost (Year by Year Deployment) ........ccccccevevvivevennseenieenen, 9-5
Figure 9-5: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Cost (Year by Year Deployment) .........ccocecevoviieeieirneenennnn. 9-5
Figure 10-1: Pomona Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (9 pm —11 pm) .....cccecverrnnnne. 10-4
Figure 10-2: Pomona Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (11pm—21am) ........c..ccceveneeee. 10-5
Figure 10-3: Arcadia Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (9 pm — 11 pm)........c.cccevveneeee. 10-7
Figure 10-4: Arcadia Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (11 pm —1am)......c.ccccceeveeeee. 10-8
Figure 11-1: Arcadia Yard Local Distribution NEtWOrK..........c.cccvvveviiiiii i 11-1
Figure 11-2: Pomona Yard Local Distribution NEtWOrK ...........ccccovviviiiiiieie e 11-2
Figure 11-3: Load Forecast as of NOvember 2018..........ccouo oo 11-3
Figure 11-4: Revised Load Forecast as of March 2019 ..........ccooiiiiiiiiieie e 11-4
Figure 12-1: Foothill Transit Energy Uses and Sources (KWh).........cccccvieiiiieie i 12-3
Figure 12-2: Arcadia Depot SOIar LAYOUL..........ccoiie ittt 12-3
Figure 12-3: Arcadia Load and Solar Generation versus Time of Use Rates (Phase 1 - Year 1)............ 12-3
Figure 12-4: Pomona Depot SOIar LAYOUL ...........ccccveiiieiie ettt 12-6
Figure 12-5: Pomona Load and Solar Generation versus Time of Use Rates (Phase 1 - Year 2)............ 12-7
Figure 12-6: Arcadia Depot Preliminary Natural Gas Backup Generator Power Concept.................... 12-14
Figure 12-7: Pomona Depot Preliminary Natural Gas Backup Generator Power Concept ................... 12-15
Figure 13-1: Electric Bus Fleet Incremental Annual and Cumulative COStS ..........ccccevvrverniiniencnienienen, 13-5
Figure 13-2: CNG Bus Fleet Incremental Annual and Cumulative COStS..........cccoeeveveeiiieiiccececee, 13-5
Figure 13-3: Annual Levelized cost of Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet..........cccccceeeveiennenen. 13-6

Foothill Transit TOC-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final

List of Abbreviations

Abbreviation

BEB

BMcD

Burns & McDonnell

CCS

CNG

CPUC

DC

EOL

EV

EVSE

LCC

HVAC

kW

kWh

MW

NPV

NREL

O&M

OEM

PPA

PVR

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Term/Phrase/Name

Battery Electric Bus

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

Combined Charging System
Compressed Natural Gas

California Public Utilities Commission
Direct Current

End of Life

Electric Vehicle

Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment
Life Cycle Cost

Heating ventilation, and air conditioning
Kilowatt

Kilowatt hour

Megawatt

Net Present Value

National Renewable Energy Laboratory
Operation & Maintenance

Original Equipment Manufacturer
Power Purchase Agreement

Peak Vehicle Requirement

Foothill Transit

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final

List of Abbreviations

Abbreviation

RFI

RPS

SAM

SCE

SOC

TOU

\%

Term/Phrase/Name

Request for Information
Renewable Portfolio Standard
System Advisor Model
Southern California Edison
State of Charge

Time of Use

Volt

Foothill Transit

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Executive Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2016 Foothill Transit’s Executive Board set a goal of transitioning its fleet to 100% electric by 2030.
To work toward this goal Foothill Transit hired Burns and McDonnell to better understand the challenges
in growing the fleet and develop solutions. The scope of this study is to bolster this initial plan by
providing route-based energy analysis and charging optimization, equipment market analysis,
infrastructure and yard layout assessments at Foothill Transit depots, utility grid interconnection
assessments, the development of a renewable energy integration and backup power plan, and a financial
analysis of the fleet conversion. This report summarized the findings and recommendations and
formulates an actionable work plan that Foothill Transit can use to work towards its goal of a reliable and

sustainable 100% electric bus fleet.

The study assumes that Foothill will transition its fleet of approximately 373 buses to an all-electric fleet
by 2030. The proposed study plan assumes that the fleet will be comprised of both 40 ft single deck 540
kwh BEBs and 864 kWh double deck BEBs. The Study made various assumptions regarding available
battery operating capacity, battery performance impacts and efficiency impacts for cold weather
conditions and heavy loading conditions respectively. Battery degradation was assumed as well to

validate that the BEB operating plan would be feasible under all conditions and all years.

Based on the detailed route analysis conducted in this Study, Foothill Transit will be able to transition to a
fully electrified fleet in the future, but it will require changes to its existing operations and bus
procurement plan. Based on the analysis conducted, approximately 60% of the single deck bus blocks are
feasible with the 540kWh BEBs and less than 50% of the double deck blocks are feasible with an 864
kWh battery BEB. The median energy use for single deck BEBs under worst case conditions is 2.94 kWh
per mile while the double deck BEBs are 3.3 kWh per mile, with a high variation between the different
blocks. To maintain operational feasibility, Foothill’s total fleet peak vehicle requirement (PVR) will
need to increase. Many of the existing blocks will need to be split and adjusted in the future. To maintain
an existing minimum reserve ratio of 15 percent, Foothill will need to purchase additional BEBs.

In order to support the proposed plan, Foothill will require charging equipment to be installed at each of
the depots over the next 10 to 12 years. Various charging equipment sizes and quantities were considered
in the study to minimize the total PVR and total number of chargers and dispensers. The lowest cost
charging plan is to utilize 325 kW overhead charging at each of the depots. Daily operational timetable
models were developed for each depot to validate that the BEBs could be charged with 325 kW chargers.

Foothill Transit 1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Executive Summary

The proposed operating plan assumes that Foothill will conduct the majority of BEB charging during low-

cost off-peak hours.

Prior to developing site infrastructure plans, the Study team conducted a comprehensive market
assessment and survey of charger vendors and bus manufacturers. Using the proposed charging power
requirements and available charging equipment, the project team developed an infrastructure development
plan for each depot based on the most recent fleet replacement plan. Dual port charging coupled with
J3105-1 pantographs was assumed to maximize the utilization of each charger and minimize total
infrastructure costs. The total infrastructure cost to Foothill over the next 12 years is estimated to be $120

million without rebates or subsidies.

The two existing depots’ operations will need to change as the fleet transitions from CNG fueling to BEB
charging. The project team prepared hourly models and layouts of how buses would operate within the
depot in the future to validate that Foothill Transit’s operators could charge the total PVR of 320 BEBs
(130 at Pomona and 190 at Arcadia) with 95 chargers (40 at Pomona and 55 at Arcadia). The existing
layouts and operating procedures will need to gradually change as the fleet is electrified.

The impacts of the additional load on the electric grid were quantified and provided to SCE, the local
electric utility. Under SCE’s current programs, SCE will fund all distribution system upgrades and line
extension upgrades up to the new Foothill charging equipment. The layouts were developed and reviewed
with SCE representatives in order to best utilize SCE capital investment. As part of the SCE Fleet Transit
Ready program, the study plans for SCE to fund its own site infrastructure at a cost of $12 million.

Foothill could also potentially receive up to $6 million in rebates for the 95 chargers proposed.

As Foothill Transit transitions to a 100 percent electric fleet, the proposed plan includes provisions for
obtaining renewable power both onsite and offsite with a goal of reaching 100 percent renewable power
supply. Based on the available footprint at Arcadia and Pomona depots, roughly 5 percent of Foothill’s
power supply can be generated from onsite canopy solar. The balance of Foothill Transit’s renewable
power will need to be obtained from SCE through their state RPS and other economical offsite contracts.
While SCE transitions to 100 percent renewable by 2045, Foothill can secure other contracts. Procuring
renewable power offsite could have other financial benefits such as additional LCFS credit revenue.

As detailed within this report, a future BEB fleet will include new onsite charging infrastructure costs and
more costly BEBs. These incremental costs will be partially offset with lower bus maintenance costs and
lower energy costs. Under a base case scenario which assumes no incentives or rebates are available in

the future, Foothill Transit will pay over $15 million per year more on average over the next 25 years. If

Foothill Transit 2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Executive Summary

the existing California HVIP rebate of $110,000 per BEB, SCE 50% charger rebate, and California LCFS
credits historically valued at $100 per Ton continue to be available, the incremental cost to convert from

CNG buses to electric buses could be closer to $6.3 million per year.

Foothill Transit 3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Introduction

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Scope of Work

Foothill Transit has set the goal to advance towards a 100% electrified bus fleet by 2030. To work toward
this goal Foothill Transit has planned to purchase battery electric buses (BEB’s) and install the necessary
charging infrastructure on an annual basis until all existing compressed natural gas (CNG) buses are
replaced. The scope of this study is to bolster this initial plan by providing route-based energy analysis
and charging optimization, equipment market analysis, infrastructure and yard layout assessments at
Foothill Transit depots, utility grid interconnection assessments, the development of a renewable energy
integration and backup power plan, and a financial analysis of the fleet conversion. This report
summarized the findings and recommendations and formulates an actionable work plan that Foothill

Transit can use to work towards its goal of a reliable and sustainable 100% electric bus fleet.

1.2 Organization of Report

This report is divided into 13 sections. Each section is briefly explained below.

e Section 1.0 — Introduction

This section describes the scope of this project.

e Section 2.0 - Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

This section provides background on Foothill Transit’s bus operations and fleet transition plans.

e Section 3.0 — Study Assumptions and Technical Parameters
This section outlines assumptions that were made to perform the route analysis and charging

optimization scenarios.

e Section 4.0 - Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization
This section reviews the block data provided by Foothill Transit and combines it with terrain data to
create an energy-based analysis of each bus route. Once the energy needs are established, feasible and
non-feasible blocks are assessed. Non-feasible blocks are adjusted to create feasible blocks. Lastly,

peak vehicle requirements are established for each depot based on different charging scenarios.

e Section 5.0 - Route Prioritization and Electrification Planning
This section describes the requirements on how Foothill Transits” CNG buses can be successfully

transitioned to BEB’s to create a 100% electrified bus fleet by 2030. A phased plan is provided

Foothill Transit 1-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Introduction

showing how Foothill will need to adjust its routes and number of buses over the next decade.

e Section 6.0 - Bus Equipment Market Analysis
This section provides an overview of the different electric buses and charging equipment that is

available in today’s market.

e Section 7.0 - Charging Equipment Market Analysis and Selection
This section presents the results from a request for information (RFI) conducted by the project team
on existing charging equipment that is available from reputable charger original equipment
manufacturers (OEMSs). A scoring matrix was created and based on responses from the RFI and the
charging requirements established in Section 4.0 of this report. Recommendations are presented on

the best charging equipment options and OEM’s for Foothill Transit.

e Section 8.0 - Depot Physical Layout Assessment
This section presents an assessment on the current configuration of Foothill Transit’s depots and how
buses operate at each depot and considerations for a future electrified state. This section provides
options for future charging equipment and the recommended future depot charging infrastructure

layouts based on the charging and equipment requirements established in Section 4.0 and 7.0.

e Section 9.0 - Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development
This section provides options and recommendations for a phased transition to reach full electrification
by 2030. The year by year civil, electrical, and charging equipment is described for each depot along
with total installed costs by year. The phasing and development plan is based on Foothill Transit’s
fleet replacement schedule provided in March 20109.

e Section 10- Depot Operational Assessment
This section presents a plan on how to charge BEBs at a full-scale electrification at each depot and
how future depot equipment configurations and operations may need to be altered to fully support

operating and charging a fully electrified bus fleet from each depot.

e Section 11- Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment
This section reviews the local electric utility, Southern California Edison, infrastructure servicing the
Foothill Transit depots and discusses how future capacity will be added, who will be responsible, and
what programs are available to support the installation of charging infrastructure.

Foothill Transit 1-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Introduction

1.3

Section 12.0 - Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

This section provides an analysis of the potential options Foothill Transit can use to deploy renewable
energy power supply, both onsite and offsite, along with a plan to achieve a 100% electrified fleet
powered by 100% renewable energy. This section also provides the back-up power assessment and

plan so that Foothill Transit can continue to operate its electrified fleet during various scenarios.

Section 13.0 - Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis
This section assesses the financial impacts from transitioning to an electric fleet as compared to
continuing to operate a CNG bus fleet. The incremental costs and benefits associated with a 100%

fleet transition are estimated to determine the total net benefit or cost to Foothill Transit.

Sources of Data

The data for this project was collected from the sources listed below.

Foothill Transit provided block data that represents each route that is currently serviced. The block
data was provided for the time period between June 24%, 2018 and January 26" 2019. This block data
was used to analyze each route, create energy-based scheduling and charging scenarios, and to

determine whether routes would be feasible for BEB’s.

Publicly available data from electric bus and charging OEM’s. This data was used to inform

assumptions on battery sizes and peak charging power.

Technical specifications were provided by charging equipment OEM’s. This data was used to
evaluate suitable charging technologies that meet the needs of BEB’s that will operate on Foothill

Transit routes.
Onsite interviews of Foothill Transit staff and surveys of Foothill Transit depots.

SCE provided data on its local distribution system and available programs for EV charging

infrastructure.

Renewable energy provided non-binding proposals for offsite wholesale renewable power supply.

Foothill Transit 1-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Introduction

1.4  Statement of Limitations

In the preparation of this report, the information provided to the project team by Foothill Transit, bus and
charger OEM’s, Southern California Edison, and renewable energy suppliers was used to make certain
assumptions with respect to conditions which may exist in the future. While Burns & McDonnell believes
the assumptions made are reasonable for the purposes of this report, Burns & McDonnell makes no
representation that the conditions assumed will, in fact, occur. In addition, while Burns & McDonnell has
no reason to believe that the information provided by the sources previously listed and on which this
report is based, is inaccurate in any material respect, Burns & McDonnell has not independently verified
such information and cannot guarantee its accuracy or completeness. To the extent that actual future
conditions differ from those assumed herein or from the information provided to Burns & McDonnell,

actual results may vary from those forecasted.

Foothill Transit 1-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

2.0 FOOTHILL TRANSIT BACKGROUND AND ELECTRIFICATION PLAN

Foothill Transit is leading the charge among transit agencies as it embarks on a journey to electrify its
entire bus fleet by the year 2030. In this section, the background of Foothill’s plan to deploy electric buses
will be briefly described as well as an overview of bus routes, depots, key statistics, transition plans, and

other goals that Foothill Transit is aiming to achieve in the next decade.

2.1  Foothill Transit Background

Located in eastern Los Angeles County, Foothill Transit serves 22 cities and unincorporated areas of Los
Angeles County with a fleet of 373 buses that support 39 local and express routes. Foothill Transit has
been leading the way in transit bus electrification since 2010. It was the first transit agency in the United
States to deploy three 35 ft. in-route fast-charge BEBs and two overhead charging stations at the Pomona
Transit Center operating on Line 291 between the cities of La Verne and Pomona. In 2014, Foothill

Transit acquired 12 additional 35 ft. in-route fast-charge BEBs to fully electrify Line 291.

In 2016, Foothill Transit announced its initiative to completely electrify its bus fleet by the year 2030. By
2017, Foothill Transit had installed an in-depot charger at the Pomona yard and in-route charging stations
at Pomona Transit Center and Azusa Intermodal Transit Center for opportunity charging. while adding 14
40 ft. extended range BEBSs to operate on Line 280 between the cities of Azusa and Industry. Today,
Foothill Transit has 33 BEB’s in operation and has placed an order for two 42 ft. double-deck battery
electric buses, which is slated to be delivered late spring 2020. The two pilot double-deck buses will be

deployed on the commuter express route transporting customers to downtown Los Angeles.

2.2 Bus Depots

Foothill Transit operates its bus fleet out of two depots. The Arcadia depot, located in Arcadia, CA
operates both single deck 40 ft and 35 ft buses and articulated 60ft. buses. The Pomona depot, located in
Pomona, CA operates single deck 35 ft and 40 ft buses. Figure 2-1 presents the existing Arcadia depot
while Figure 2-2 presents the Pomona depot. A summary of the existing bus fleet as of March 2019 is

provided below:

o Arcadia Depot Existing Fleet
0 176 40ft CNG buses
0 14 40ft extended range battery-electric buses
0 3 35ft extended range single deck
o 30 60ft Articulated CNG buses

e Pomona Depot Existing Fleet

Foothill Transit 2-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

0 13440 ft CNG buses
0 14 35 ft fast-charge battery-electric buses
0 240 ft fast-charge battery-electric buses

Figure 2-1: Arcadia Bus Depot

s LT

Figure 2-2: Pomona Bus Depot

BT e g B A —
S R —— e S
Ef1'stiSt

—_

s_
7.

SN

TR
Y.
N

W

V&L

=

J

.

s L

-
[= = -
[
[—
P}
—
e
Lol
P—
fs— -4
E—
[ F—— 9
=t
s

T iy

. ;‘zn
1

TR

- L i

Foothill Transit 2-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

2.3 Bus Routes
Figure 2-3 provides an overview of the bus routes Foothill Transit operates today along with terminal

stops along the routes.

Figure 2-3: Overview of Foothill Transit Bus Routes

[T

Flintridge .
) Altadena O
- fiaden , Terminal Stop
rJI. E
tGlendalel ™
2 | L T el P L
e : ! ; I
THOB o South Pasadena S .. . o
5 Temple City (i
i 784 ¥ 25 =) — Rancho (
- 24 5 Uptand
. (97 Alhambra - : ; + R S .[;
76 by : . ! 5505108
AL + - 1 - o ntclair 53
B o asemea - n __Ontario 554550
; /Monterey Park South ElMonte § +
fi 26 = ~
Dlamdfe 4
2@ e 1
i Montebello L ._L”' ’ y chino
158 § ietagh Chino Hills
14 Huntingior —3 £ Pico Rivera 4
! Park Bel .-._. ol %, a4 Whittier Rowland Heights 8 .} 1
! Gell Gardens be, i #
& i 6 fon % La Habra Heights YAz
1110 Santa Fe Springs
4 | ¥ Downey b o1 | e
FaTAR B g dmelynO0d | T i - can
22 b £ a \
1 gy AR e Sk B
4 54 ol ~._La Mirada
aramaount o7 : =
nal Compton A Yorba Linda p

2.4 Key Statistics

The following list summarizes some key metrics for Foothill Transit.

e Busesin service: 373 (340 Compressed Natural Gas or CNG and 33 electric)

e Routes: 32 local and 7 express routes

e Areaserved: 327 square miles of the San Gabriel and Pomona Valley

o Ridership: On average, more than 40,000 per weekday, and approximately 12.5 million a year

o Comparative size: Medium-sized municipal operator in Los Angeles County, second in fleet size
only to regional provider Metro

¢ Funding: 16.6% from farebox revenue, 75% from Los Angeles County Proposition A and C funds
and Measure R and M funds, California State Transportation Development Act (TDA) and State
Transit Assistance (STA) funds

2.5 Fleet Transition Plans
The following tables outline the bus replacement schedules for single and double deck buses at Arcadia

and single deck buses at Pomona as provided to the project team as of March 2019.

Foothill Transit 2-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

Table 2-1: Arcadia Single Deck Bus Transition

MEG Year Fleet glanned 2019 2020 ‘ 2021 ‘ 2022 | 2023 | 2024 ‘ 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 ‘ 2029 | 2030
Z. Retirement
H 2004 1400-1474 2018 22
t 2006 1500-1509 2018 10 10
s
£ 2009 1700-1729 2023 30 30 30 30 30
] 2013 2100-2163 2027 22 22 22 22 22 22 8 6 g
[ 2016 2016-2017 2030 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
5 2016 2400-2029 2029 a0 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
o 2017 2500-2529 2030 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
2017 2600-2613 2032 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
2018 14005 Replacement 2030 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28
2019 2800- 2802 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
= 2020
K] 2021
13 2022
g 2023 1700-1800s & 2001-2003 Repl, 2037 Legend 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
£ 2025 2004-15 & 21005 Replacement 2039 E CNG Buses : 8 B 8 8 G 8
E 2026 19005 & 21005 2040 | Electric Buses - Single Deck 6 6 6 6 6
c 2027 21005 Replacement 2041 3 3 8 8
EI 2029 2300 & 2400s Replacement 2043 Articulated Buses : 30 30
o 2030 25005 & CNG Replacement 2044 Retirement Date 56
2031 2016-2017 Replacement 2045 Purchased Buses
2032 2600s Replacement 2046
Year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2028 2030
# CNG buses (single decks oniﬂ 150 140 140 140 110 110 102 9% 88 £ 58 28
# e-buses (single decks only 17 17 17 17 47 47 55 61 &9 69 95 155
Sum Single Deck buses at this yard 167 157 157 157 157 157 157 157 157 157 157 183
Sum Single Deck buses at this yard excluding Operating Spare Ratio {20%] 135 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 131 153

Foothill Transit

2-1

Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

Table 2-2: Arcadia Double Deck Bus Transition

Planned
> MFG Year Fleet R T 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
2
c
g 2006 1600-1629 2022 30 | 30 [ w [ 2 |
c
m
c
1]
=
L
3
[ %)
Z- 2019 Double Decks 2033
E 2021 1600s Replacement 2035 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 2022 16005 Replacement 2036 0 0 0 0
= Legend
E CNG Buses :
E : Electric Buses - 5ingle Deck :
E Electric Buses - Double Deck
K] ; Articulated Buses 3
a | Retirement Date
Purchased Buses
Year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
# CNG buses (double decks only) 30 30 20
# e-buses (double decks only) 2 2 12 32 a2 32 32 32 32 32 32 32
Sum Large Capacity buses at this yard 32 32 32 32 32 32 3z 3z 32 32 3z 3z
Sum Double Deck buses at this yard excluding Operating Spare Ratio (m{ 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27

Foothill Transit

2-2

Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

Table 2-3: Pomona Single Deck Bus Transition

MFG Year Fleet R::iar:':::nt 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
g. 2004 1400-1474 2018 9
'E 2009 1800-1811 2023 12 12 12 12 12
g 2009 2001-2003 2023 2 2 2 2 2
E 2012 1800-1913 2026 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
"E 2013 2004-2015 2027 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
E 2013 2100-2163 2027 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42
5 2014 2200-2229 2028 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
bt 2015 2300-2329 2029 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
2017 2600-2613 2032 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 i 2 2
2018 1400s Replacement 2030 5] 6 6 6 6 6 5 G 6 [ 6 3]
E‘ 2023 1700-1800s & 2001-2003 Replacement 2037 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
B 2025 2004-15 & 2100s Repl 2039 Legend 12 12 12 12 12 12
5 2026 1900s & 2100s Replacement 2040 CNG Buses 14 14 14 14 14
E 2027 21005 Replacement 2041 Electric Buses - Single Deck 42 42 42 42
; 2028 2200s Replacement 2042 Electric Buses - Double Deck 30 30 30
4 2029 2300 & 2400s Replacament 2043 Articulated Buses I 30 30
% 2030 25005 & CNG Replacement 2044 Retirement Date i 8
0 Purchased Buses
2032 2600s Repl t 2046 : :'
Year 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
# CNG buses (single decks only) 134 134 134 134 122 122 122 108 66 36 6 6
# e-buses (single decks only 16 16 16 16 28 28 28 42 24 114 144 152
Sum Single Deck buses at this yard 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 158
Sum buses at this yard excluding Operating Spare Ratio (20% 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 125 135 1325 132

Foothill Transit

2-3

Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Foothill Transit Background and Electrification Plan

2.6 Renewable Energy Goals
Foothill Transit’s goal is to power its future electric bus fleet from 100% renewable energy resources. The
renewable energy will come from a combination of onsite and offsite sources. Section 12 of this report

will discuss options and strategies to achieve this goal.

2.7 Fleet Reliability and Resiliency Goals

In order to maintain fleet reliability and resiliency, Foothill Transit recognizes the need to maintain power
reliability at each of its depots under various circumstances. Section 12 of this report discusses the
proposed plan to maintain fleet reliability. Additionally, Foothill Transit recognizes the need to operate its
electric bus fleet under all operating conditions, such as cold weather and heavy passenger loading.
Section 3 and 4 of this report discuss the requirements Foothill Transit must consider to adequately

charge and operate an electric bus fleet while considering these operating conditions.

Foothill Transit 2-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Study Assumptions of Technical Parameters

3.0 STUDY ASSUMPTIONS OF TECHNICAL PARAMETERS

In this section all assumptions of the technical parameters used for developing route analysis and charging

optimization based on the energy requirements of BEB transit buses is listed and discussed.

3.1 Reference Bus Selection

In order to create a route-based energy analysis and charging profile, several assumptions regarding
technical parameters had to be determined. These assumptions and technical parameters include the bus
type, battery capacity, passenger number, total weight, and energy consumption of an electric bus. For the
analysis two single deck 40’ reference buses, named S1 and S2, and two double deck reference buses,
named D3 and D4, were selected based on Foothill Transit’s operational needs and currently available or
soon to be available models from North American electric bus manufacturers. Figure 3-1 shows the
manufacturer, battery size, and the selection of S1 and S2 from available or soon to be available single
deck electric buses. In this figure, the buses with overnight charging concept are marked by ONC, and
those with opportunity charging concept by OPC. Figure 3-2 shows the manufacturer, battery size, and

selection of D3 and D4 from available or soon to be available, double deck electric buses.

Figure 3-1: 40" Single Deck Bus Availability

( 40’ Single Deck Bus

L =y - B

B €8 T A -

: : : : : New FLYER ] ' : .

| | e i | .o | | | =

A R - L

| | @ i ®@ | . © | . © |

! F'RDTERIRA g PRDTiEREA ' F'REI:TERRA : FI#IDTER FI'RCITERR:A
! OPC/ONC ! OPC/ONC ! OPC/ONC| ! :opc:o:r: ! OPC/ONE
150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650

Battery capacity [kWh]

Foothill Transit 3-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Study Assumptions of Technical Parameters

Figure 3-2: Double Deck Bus Availability

-
L Double Decker Bus )

| 5 i . B 5 :

i i i ALE ;(ANDER i ALIE xgunen i

i i i u:ll;'NmE".)Nc i ::n:NN!E.)NC i

: : : | : ' : .
300 400 500 600 700 800 900

Battery capacity [kWh]

Table 3-1 summarizes the specifications of the reference electric buses that were selected for the analysis.

Table 3-1: Summary of Specifications for Electric Buses S1, S2, D3, and D4

Reference Battery Passengers
Bus Type Size Capacity Curb Weight Number Total Weight
s1 40 Single 440 kWh 30,000 Ibs. 40 passengers 37,200 Ibs.
Deck
s 40* Single 540 kWh 31,500 Ibs. 40 passengers 38,700 Ibs.
Deck
D3 Double Deck 864 kWh 37,000 Ibs.? 60 passengers 47,800 Ibs.
D4 Double Deck 660 kWh 37,000 Ibs. 60 passengers 47,800 Ibs.

These electric buses were selected as they meet the operational needs specified by Foothill Transit with
respect to passenger capacity without limiting Foothill Transit to a specific manufacturer. The passenger
numbers represent a robust worst-case scenario and are assumed to be constant for each route service
journey. These numbers are also expected to be higher than usual for Foothill Transit’s workload
requirements. The total weight of the reference bus types is calculated as the curb weight plus the

passengers’ weight. Passenger weight is assumed to be 180 pounds per passenger. Two different battery

! The curb weight of reference buses D3 and D4 is assumed to be equal for the analysis that was completed for this
project.

Foothill Transit 3-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Study Assumptions of Technical Parameters

sizes were chosen to evaluate how energy capacity will impact Foothill Transit operations as electric

buses are scaled to 100%.

To complete an energy-based route analysis based on Foothill Transits daily operations, energy
consumption of the reference buses was estimated. This included an estimation of auxiliary power

consumption.

3.2 Usable Battery Capacity

The battery capacities of the reference bus types in Table 3-1 refer to the installed battery capacity.
However, the usable battery capacity is different and influenced by many factors. One of the main factors
is the battery aging. The end of life (EOL) of a battery is usually specified as a decrease of the original
capacity by 20%. The overall electric bus and charging systems need to be implemented and designed in a
way that allows the electric bus to perform its required duties prior to the battery reaching its EOL. The
boundary state-of-charge (SOC) ranges for the analysis for this project are assumed to be between 0 to
5% and 95 to 100%. Therefore, the usable battery capacity results in 72% of the installed battery

capacity. Figure 3-3 represents the usable capacity of batteries for new and aged batteries.

Figure 3-3: Usable vs. Installed Battery Capacity

E QRO 1009,
) g9 10U

New " —F——

Usable: 90%

100%
o 0% 5% 95% (80%) % of residual capacity
* ' “r initial capacity
ﬁ - B . . . . - * I J
battery Usable: 90% (72%)

Here: 80 % residual capacity
= close to end of life (EOL)

= Not accessible (security margin); cell imbalances, etc.

==mmm Not accessible (operational charging); reduction of aging

3.3  Auxiliary Power Consumption

The main auxiliary power consumer in a BEB is the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC)
system. According to Foothill Transit’s requirements, in heating mode the HVAC system needs to be able
to maintain an interior temperature of 75 °F when the outside temperature is t 40 °F. In cooling mode, the
HVAC system needs to maintain an interior temperature of 62 °F when the outside temperature is 110 °F.

These requirements represent worst-case conditions for the HVAC system. The resulting auxiliary energy

Foothill Transit 3-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Study Assumptions of Technical Parameters

consumption depends on the type of the HVAC system that is installed on the bus. A conservative
approach was taken for the energy based scheduling and a HVAC system consisting of an electric heater
and air conditioning unit was assumed. The resulting HVAC consumption is shown in Table 3-2. The

heating power requirement will be considered as worst-case for the energy consumption analysis.

Table 3-2: Summary of HVAC Assumptions

Auxiliary
Consumption Auxiliary
Ambient Set (continuous) Consumption
Temperature | Temperature | for a 40'Single Deck (continuous)
(continuous) | Inside Bus Bus for a Double Deck Bus
Heatin 40 °F 75 °F HVAC: 12 kWh per hour HVAC: 17 kWh per hour
g Other: 2 kWh per hour Other: 2 kWh per hour
AC 110 °F 62 °F HVAC: 7 kWh per hour HVAC: 12 kWh per hour
Other: 2 kWh per hour Other: 2 kWh per hour

3.4  Operations Planning Parameters

The operations planning parameters assumed for the analysis shown in this report include, the choice of
bus routes variants, auxiliary power consumption during dwell times and a detour buffer. The energy
consumption simulation for each bus line is discussed in section 4.2.1 and considers the main routes
without shortenings. The main route is defined as the most operated route variant for each bus line.
During operation, many blocks have dwell time at dedicated layover sites. During dwell time, the HVAC
system is assumed to switch off after the first 20 min. Finally, an energy buffer for detours is included in
the analysis. This buffer allows the BEBs to maintain a SOC reserve such that the BEBs do not arrive at
the depot with a SOC of 0%. The specified detour buffer for each block is 0.5 hours.

Foothill Transit 34 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

4.0 ROUTE ANALYSIS SCHEDULING AND CHARGING OPTIMIZATION

The route analysis was conducted by reviewing Foothill Transit’s current operations and assessing the
suitability of each individual bus route to be operated with BEB’s. An energy scheduling profile was
established, using Foothill Transit block data, to determine the energy consumption for each bus route.
Using the energy consumption for each route and assumptions on the technical parameters for each
reference bus type, charging profiles and schedules were created and optimized to determine how many

BEBs would be required to support Foothill Transits operations.

4.1  Current Operations

The current operation scheme (June 2018 — January 2019) provided by Foothill Transit contains blocks
that consist of schemes such as a depot-out journey, one or more route services, empty journeys, and a
depot-in journey. Foothill Transit currently operates CNG buses and BEBs out of both Arcadia Yard and
Pomona Yard for different days of the week. From the operation scheme, the number of ‘active buses’,
which are described as buses operating outside the depot, can be calculated for each depot and type of day

as shown in Figure 4-1.

For Arcadia Yard, there are three different day types according to the operation scheme. Each curve in
Figure 4-1 represents the number of active buses for Weekdays, Saturday, and Sunday. For Monday
through Friday, the number of active buses is equal throughout the day because the operation scheme for
each weekday day is the same. For Saturday and Sunday, the curves indicate that there are different
operation schemes for each day. For Pomona Yard, there are two additional day types resulting from
blocks that are operated only on these days. The weekday curve shows a typical shape with two maxima,

one in the morning and one in the evening.

The maximum number of active buses operating out of the Arcadia and Pomona Yards are 163 and 123
respectively. The type of day with the most active buses in operation is Friday for both the Arcadia and
Pomona Yards. Therefore, Friday is the crucial day for the magnitude of the forecasted load profiles. This
day type is further analyzed in this section.

Foothill Transit’s bus fleet presently consists of single deck buses that include 40 ft CNG buses, 35 ft
BEBs and articulated 60 ft CNG buses for the express route known as the ‘Silver Streak’. According to
Foothill Transit’s plans, the present 40 ft CNG buses and a majority of the 35 ft BEBs will be replaced by
40 ft BEBs in the future. The articulated 60 ft buses will be replaced by battery electric double deck buses

according to Foothill Transit’s procurement plan.

Foothill Transit 4-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-1: Active Buses by Day and Over Time for Arcadia and Pomona Yard

Active Buses - Arcadia Yard Active Buses - Pomona Yard
180 180
160 160
§ 140 ) 140
@ 120 2 120
A z
£ 100 = 100
= B
5 80 < 80
.JE o
3 60 ‘g‘ (&)
E 5]
< 40 E a0
<
20 20 Y
Q = - . ¥ 0 LN "
0 2 4 6 8 1012141618 2022 24 26 28 02 4 6 81012141618 2022242628
Time (hour of the day) Time (hour of the day)
Day Type: Day Type:
Weekday - Mon, Tue, Wed, Thu, Fri Weekday - Mon, Tue, Wed, Thu, Fri
Saturday Weekday - Mon, Tue, Wed, Thu
Sunday Weekday - Friday
Saturday
Sunday

4.2 Detailed Route Analysis

Foothill Transit’s operations planning data was used to complete a detailed route analysis. The dataset
was enriched with elevation profiles and allowable speeds for each bus route. The enriched dataset
allowed for the operations planning data to be analyzed in detail for the particular bus routes. The data of

each bus route and the data blocks which represent them are described in the sections 4.2.1 and 4.2.2.

42.1 Bus Lines

Foothill Transit’s operations planning data provided contains 37 %Iines that are both city routes and
intercity routes. This is reflected by different journey distances and average travel speeds for each bus
line. Figure 4-2 represents the journey distances of the bus lines according to the operations planning data.
Some bus lines have different route variants and thus different journey distances. This is reflected in
Figure 4-2 by the varying curves for the minimum, average, and maximum distance of the routes. The
journey distances in Figure 4-2 incorporate only service trips. In general, the journey distances of the
intercity lines 493 to 707 are higher than that of the city lines 178 to 492 and 851 to 854.

Foothill Transit 4-2 Burns & McDonnell


BMCD
Should be 39 per Roland. Please confirm.

BMCD
NOTE, according to planning data provided to us, there are 37 lines.


In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-3 shows the average speed of the Foothill Transit bus lines. It is worth noting that the average
speed of the intercity lines is higher than that of the city lines due to the intercity routes having longer

freeway sections compared to the city lines which have short or no highway sections.
Figure 4-2: Journey Distance for Foothill Transit Bus Lines

Journey Distance (Service Trips Only)

&
= 50
E 40
E
2 30
=
& 20
[
= 10
E
2 0
E: DN~~~ O NSO NS WMOm e OO~ O~ M=
M o MO~ OODOOD 00D O OO O O WD WD WD
Lol ol 2l 2l il B I I T I I I Il e e e e e e - (- S ) gl = s 5 = ]
Bus Line
—Max. —e—Average ——Min
Figure 4-3: Average Speed for Foothill Transit Bus Lines
= Average Speed (Service Trips Only)
E 5
5 30
$ 25
=N
w 20
% 15
E 10
< 5
0
DU~ W0N~mOoOMNTFTOoO NSO m NN ODENMWn~ Do O~ M=
N @ @O DO MO~~~ OOo@Oo0D DO oo OGOy b O WD WD LY
Ll ol ot e e ot I I I T I Y It Y I~ i e o e o - e ol ol (e e L= 6 = =
Bus Line
—Max. —e—Average ——Min

4.2.2 Route Data Blocks

The operations planning data contains 846 blocks. This breaks down to 520 blocks that are operated from
Arcadia Yard and 326 blocks that are operated from Pomona Yard. Figure 4-4 shows the distances of the
blocks operated from each yard. Note that the x axis does not show each block ID operated from each

yard and that the blocks are sorted by ascending distance. The mileage of the blocks varies from 17 to

Foothill Transit 4-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

345 miles including both service and deadhead trips. On average, the share of service mileage versus total

mileage equates to about 73% at the Arcadia Yard and roughly 70% at the Pomona Yard.

Figure 4-4: Block Distances for Arcadia and Pomona Yard

Blocks Distances - Arcadia Yard Blocks Distances - Pomona Yard
400 400
350 350
L w
300 300
E E
£ 250 S 250
g . g
E 200 E 200
& 150 &= 150
¥4 LY
& 100 & 100
o o
50 50
0 0
T O e ¥ e T TR o T O e Y e R T O T P = W od ot o e R WD
‘%Lﬁmquﬁlf\wmthtb"\t! P = W O W P~ o W «— & &~ o B
O W g un W l'._:l !:' I:_.'l M~ o "T' : l_—| on O o & o oh — — O O O OO 00 00
o O oOnoon O O O3 O O on o O o M= M= M= O M~ [~ 00 o0 M~ o P = =
oy o0 og o0 oF O O O o o0 o0 N N N oo of o O O OO OO o0 o) Of o) o of oQ
P = P P~ = P~ P P~ P~ P~ M~ M~ ~ M~ M P~ = P P~ P~~~ P~ P~ ~ ~ P~ ~ [~
Block ID Block ID

Another aspect of Foothill Transit’s operation planning data is that several blocks contain multiple lines
in a single block. These are known as “interlining” blocks. Buses that are used for “interlining” services
change line numbers during operation of these blocks. On average, there are two different bus lines per a

single block. However, this can vary from one to 6 bus lines per a single block.

4.3 Energy Consumption Analysis

The energy consumption of the reference bus type listed in Table 3-1 was determined based on the route
data described in Section 4.2 and on the assumed technical parameters detailed in Section 3.0 for worst
case conditions. Many of the assumed parameters such as HVAC energy consumption and passenger
numbers correspond to the worst-case conditions that are required for the technical feasibility assessment

of the current operating blocks.

The energy consumption was evaluated for every single block of the current operation scheme. Complete
blocks were analyzed including both service trips and deadhead trips from and to the depots. The

aggregated results depicted by the reference bus type are shown in Figure 4-5 and Figure 4-6.

Foothill Transit 4-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-5: Estimated Energy Consumption for Reference Bus S1 and S2

36 == 1 36 T
34} i 34t i
32} i 32t i
o 3l | e 3f |
% . 50% of all Median % 2.8
= values inside =
< ol the box { = 26}
|
2.4} i 2.4} i
22¢ i 22¢ :
A e 2t +
Bus S1 Bus 82

Figure 4-6: Estimated Energy Consumption for Reference Bus D3 and D43

367+ 1 367+
34 [ -t 1 34 [ -t
32} Median |:| | a2z} |:|
o 3 —— o 3 o
E | E |
£ 28 £ 28
= =
4 4
2.6 2.6
2.4 2.4
2.2 2.2
2 2
Bus D3 Bus D4

The energy consumption of the single deck reference buses S1 and S2 varies significantly due to varying
bus route characteristics such as urban and highway routes and height profiles of each bus. The lower
margin of energy consumption is approximately 2 kWh/mile while the upper margin is around

3.6 kWh/mile. The median energy consumption for bus S1 is at about 2.8 kWh/mile and for bus S2 it is
about 2.9 kWh/mile. Due to the larger energy capacity and heavier weight of bus S2, the energy
consumption of bus S2 is higher than that of the bus S1.

Foothill Transit 4-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

The energy consumption of the double deck reference buses D3 and D4 varies less than the single deck
buses because double deck buses mainly operate on the Silver Streak line which mostly consists of
highway driving. The lower margin of efficiency is approximately 3 kwh/mile while the upper margin is
3.4 kWh/mile. The median energy consumption for both buses D3 and D4 is at about 3.3 kWh/mile.
Assuming the same weight for buses D3 and D4, as shown in Table 3-1, leads to the energy consumption
of these buses being the same. However, the battery capacities of D3 and D4 are different resulting in

different route block feasibility.

4.4  Technical Feasibility of Current Operating Blocks

The technical feasibility of current operating blocks was analyzed by evaluating the energy consumption
for each bus type and operating block. A block is considered feasible if the battery capacity of the
particular reference bus type is sufficient to operate a block. The usable battery capacity incorporates

battery aging and a 0.5 hours detour buffer as discussed in section 3.0.

Figure 4-7 demonstrates the number of feasible blocks at Arcadia Yard for single deck buses and double
deck buses. For single deck buses, over 60% of the blocks are feasible for bus S1 and S2 between
Monday and Friday. Operating blocks with buses S1and S2 is more challenging on Saturday and Sunday.

Less than half of the blocks on these day types are feasible.

For the double deck buses, 50% of blocks are feasible for bus D3 and 40% of the blocks are feasible for
bus D4 between Monday and Friday. The number of feasible blocks is reduced on Saturday and Sunday.
The limited number of feasible blocks with double deck buses is attributed to the long blocks on the

Silver Streak line.

Foothill Transit 4-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-7: Feasible Blocks at Arcadia Yard

Arcadia Yard - Single Deck Buses Arcadia Yard - Double Deck Buses

250 40
- - 35
= o %5 30
2 2
2 150 @ 25
=] B 2p
= =
Z 50 = 10

I | ; O O
0 - o | —
Monday - Saturday Sunday Monday - Saturday Sunday
Friday Friday

m Total Numer of Blocks with Single Deck Buses at Arcadia m Total Numer of Blocks with Double Deck Buses at Arcadia
m Number of Feasible Blocks with Bus 52 (540 kWh Battery) m Number of Feasible Blocks with Bus D3 (864 kWh Battery)
B Mumber of Feasible Blocks with Bus 51 (440 kWh Battery) B Number of Feasible Blocks with Bus D4 (660 kWh Battery)

Figure 4-8 demonstrates the number of feasible blocks at Pomona Yard for single deck buses. The results
are similar to Arcadia Yard. About 55% of the current blocks are feasible with the bus S1 and about 70%
are feasible with the bus S2 from Monday to Friday. Less than half of the current blocks are feasible with

buses S1 and S2 on Saturday and Sunday.

Figure 4-8: Feasible Blocks at Pomona Yard

Pomona Yard - Single Deck Buses

250
2 200
(%]
]
= 150
o
2 100
E
=
- I I
o L™ L™
Monday - Friday Saturday Sunday
Thursday

m Total Numer of Blocks with Double Deck Buses at Pomona
m Number of Feasible Blocks with Bus 52 (540 kwh]

M Number of Feasible Blocks with Bus 51 (440 kwWh)

Foothill Transit 4-7 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

4.5 Adjusting Non-Feasible Blocks

The feasible blocks from the current operation scheme can be operated by the considered reference bus
types. The non-feasible blocks have to be adjusted in order to enable a BEB to operate the block. The
approach for adjusting the non-feasible blocks is to split these blocks according to energy constraint while
maintaining the general block structure. An example of splitting the blocks for the Silver Streak line is
shown in Figure 4-9. The long non-feasible block with ID 789785 is split into two separate shorter blocks

that are feasible for a reference bus type.

Figure 4-9: Splitting Non-Feasible Blocks into Two Feasible Blocks

block 789785

Bl Service
[TIDeadhead
ElPause

block 789785007837

block 789785007827

This approach adjusts the current operation scheme to allow a BEB to operate the blocks while
maintaining the general structure of the current blocks. BEBs need to recharge the energy that is
consumed after operating the blocks at the depot. During charging, the bus is unavailable for route
service. This means that another bus must provide or continue the service. Therefore, charging time is
unproductive time that impacts the efficiency of operations, the PVR for BEBs, and the number of
chargers that are needed to support the BEBs. It is assumed that the BEBs will start recharging
immediately after returning to the depot and that the battery is recharged to the maximum usable SOC.
The charging time is included in the analysis in order to determine the peak vehicle requirement and the
required number of chargers. The charging time depends on the energy consumed by the BEB and the

power output of the installed depot chargers.

Based on the current technical and commercial limitations for plug-in charging standards, both 150kW
and 325 kW depot chargers were considered. These higher charging powers were considered due to the
need to quickly recharge the buses during the middle of the day and high energy use requirements. The
150-kW charger level was considered because it represents the current technical limit for cable and plug
solutions that can be plugged in manually. The 325-kW charger level was also considered because it is

Foothill Transit 4-8 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

technically feasible through utilization of the SAE J3105 overhead charging standard and it can be
provided by more than one supplier as outline in Section 7.0 of this report. These charging powers are
examined in the subsequent analysis in section 4.6 and discussed in Section 6.0 and 7.0 of this report. The
results in terms of PVVR and charging quantities from both feasible blocks and adjusting non-feasible

blocks are shown in the following subsections in 4.6 for different charging strategies.

4.6 Charging Scheme Optimization

This section discusses the process to optimize the charging behaviors of BEBs operating on Foothill
Transit routes based on the feasible and adjusted non-feasible blocks. The charging behaviors were
assessed with no smart charging and from this baseline, the charging was optimized with smart charging

to demonstrate the difference in infrastructure requirements by utilizing smart charging schemes.

4.6.1 Non Optimized Charging

It is possible for BEBs to run on an adjusted operation scheme that includes splitting non feasible blocks
to create feasible blocks. Due to splitting blocks and accounting for required recharge time of the
reference bus types, the number of active buses during the daytime will change. Therefore, the peak
vehicle requirement (PVR) may be higher when compared to the original operation scheme that is shown
in Figure 4-1. The number of active buses during the daytime, PVVR, and the required number of chargers

are examined for the adjusted operation scheme.

Figure 4-10 shows the number of active buses when running on the adjusted operation scheme on Fridays
from Arcadia Yard. Friday was selected since it has the most operating blocks. Active buses are
considered to be either driving or charging. Figure 4-10 assumes that reference bus S2 will be used with

charging supported by 150kW or 325kW charging infrastructure.

There is a noticeable offset between the ‘driving’ curve and the ‘charging’ curve because the buses charge
after returning to the depot. The ‘driving’ and ‘charging’ curves represent the sum of the required buses

for each hour of the day. The maximum value of this curve provides the PVR for each yard.

From Arcadia Yard, more than 200 S2 electric buses must be deployed to operate all feasible blocks when
using 150 kW chargers. When using 325 kW chargers, the PVR of S2 electric buses reduces to 160 due to
shorter charging durations. This PVR reduction of 40 buses represents a savings to Foothill Transit of

nearly $36 million.

The number of chargers that is required can be determined from the maximum number shown on the

‘charging’ curve. Around 75 chargers are needed if 150kW chargers are used and around 40 chargers are

Foothill Transit 4-9 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

needed when using 325kW chargers. It is critical to use chargers with higher power outputs to reduce the
charging time. Foothill Transit will require less BEB to support its operations if charging durations are
reduced by using higher output chargers. The increased unit cost of the 325 kW chargers when compared
to the 150 kW chargers is offset by the significant reduction in the total quantity of chargers and

supporting electrical and structural infrastructure.

Figure 4-10: Number of Active S2 Buses from Arcadia Yard

Arcadia Yard - Buses: 52 - Chargers: 150 kW 220 Arcadia Yard - Buses: 52 - Chargers: 325 kW
2“.:. | Diriving 2“.:. | Driving
”: Charging ,,: Charging
1801 Driving and 180t Driving and
© 160 Charging ) 160 [ Charging
£ 140 | . . £ 140 | 4 ~
= i = S
i i
o 120 1 \, 1'\. o 120 1 \, 1'*5
ol / h® \ ol N \
E 80 \ E 80 \
| /
Z Bt - /7 1‘-, A Z Bt
I. |l .l II . ~
ar f gl N | % ar | o }
! I “'. .IJ L I I Jr, . .
20 F ___,JI Jfﬂ ot \l.“ 20 b J‘. f-ﬂ"._f'f \.i.”‘_ 4' LAk }\.:\
0 2 4 8 8 101214 16 158 20 22 24 25 28 30 0 2 4 8 8 101214 16 15 20 22 24 25 28 30
Time (hour ofthe day) Time (hour ofthe day)

Figure 4-11 shows the number of active buses during different times of the day when using the adjusted
operation scheme with double deck reference bus D3. When using 150 kW chargers, 38 D3 buses and 25
chargers are required to enable operation. When using 325 kW chargers the number of required D3 buses
reduces to 30 and the number of chargers reduces to 15. As with the single deck buses, the reduction of 8
double decker buses provides roughly $10 million in bus procurement savings and reduced charging

infrastructure costs.

Foothill Transit 4-10 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Mo, of Active Buses

Figure 4-11: Number of Active D3 Buses from Arcadia Yard

0
02 4 6 8 1012141618 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time (hour ofthe day)

Arcadia Yard - Buses: D3 - Chargers: 325 kW

Arcadia Yard - Buses: D3 - Chargers: 150 kW
Driving Diriving
Charging Charging
Driving and Driving and
_ N w _
o Charging 0 Charging
5 WX/
: /
20 g 20 f
= [
3 "
10 F 10 F ;' |
| e Ve, [
M b
\ ;r /M \ / \II.
h o L/ .
0
02 4 6 8 1012141618 20 22 24 26 28 30

Time (hour ofthe day)

Day Type: Friday Bus type: D3 (864 kWh)

Figure 4-12 shows the number of active buses deployed on the adjusted operation scheme for Pomona
Yard. Using 150 kW chargers requires about 140 S2 buses and 70 chargers. Using 325 kW chargers
requires about 130 S2 buses and 40 chargers. Similar to Arcadia Yard, this 10-bus reduction provides

roughly $9 million in bus procurement savings and reduced charging infrastructure costs

Figure 4-12: Number of Active S2 Buses from Pomona Yard

Pomona Yard - Buses: 52 - Chargers: 325 kW

Pomona Yard - Buses: 52 - Chargers: 150 kW
140 1 Driving 140 Diriving
Charaging Charging
120 Driving and 120 / Drriving and
g 100 b Charging g 100 b IiJ Charging
o 3 )
i & [
g s80r g s80r ll
2 2
5 60 5 60 il
S = f
c ap < ap f
[
20 F 20 F ) L
| M I J
o H"‘ )/f“‘.l '\\_r/' n\'\.
0 2 4 B 8 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30

o .
0 2 4 6 8 1012 14 18 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time (hour ofthe day)

Time (hour ofthe day)

It is worth noting that reference buses S2 and D3 utilizing 325 kW chargers were chosen to determine the

PVR that will be required to meet Foothill Transit operational needs. If buses with a smaller batter

Burns & McDonnell

Foothill Transit

4-11



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

capacity are used, such as reference bus S1 and D4, or 150kW chargers are used, over 200 buses and an

increased number of chargers will be required.

Table 4-1 summarizes the BEB requirements based on adjusted bus schedules using non-optimized

charging. The preferred options for transitioning from CNG to BEB are highlighted in green.

Table 4-1: Summary of BEB Requirements for Conversion with Non-Optimized Charging

Electric Bus Type PVR PVR
and Charging Original Adjusted No. of
Yard Bus Size Power Schedules Schedules | Chargers
Arcadia | 40°single S1 (440 150 139 > >200 ~80
deck kWh) kW
Arcadia | 40°single S1 (440 325 139 > ~160 ~40
deck kWh) kW
Arcadia | 40°single S2 (540 150 139 > >200 ~80
deck kWh) kW
Arcadia | 40°single S2 (540 325 139 > ~160 ~40
deck kWh) kw
Arcadia | Double deck D3 (864 150 26 > ~38 ~25
kWh) kW
Arcadia | Double deck D3 (864 325 26 > ~30 ~15
kWh) kW
Pomona | 40°single S1 (440 150 123 > ~160 ~70
deck kWh) kW
Pomona | 40°single S1 (440 325 123 > ~143 ~40
deck kWh) kW
Pomona | 40°single S2 (540 150 123 > ~140 ~70
deck kwh) kW
Pomona | 40°single S2 (540 325 123 > ~130 ~40
deck kWh) kw

The analysis completed in this section of the report demonstrates that using 325 kW chargers instead of
150 kW chargers allows Foothill Transit to purchase 50 fewer S2 buses at Arcadia and Pomona Yards.

This equates to a cost savings of approximately $45 million at current net bus pricing. Similarly, using

325 kW chargers reduces the number of D3 buses by 8 for a cost savings of approximately $11 million

for a total savings to Foothill Transit of $56 million. Additionally, the depots cannot physically

accommodate an additional 58 buses which further necessitates the need to use higher powered charging

Foothill Transit 4-12 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

equipment. The next section will discuss how the PVR quantities can be reduced by using optimized
charging scenarios.

4.6.2 Optimized Charging

In section 4.6.1 the required number of chargers was determined for non-optimized charging. Non-
optimized charging for this report is defined as charging buses immediately after returning to the depot.
The number of simultaneous charging sessions determines the number of required chargers. The goal of
the optimizing process is to move the charging phases, the time when a bus recharges, in order to

minimize the required number of chargers.

Figure 4-13 shows the number of chargers required for bus S2 to operate from Arcadia Yard. Non-
optimized charging is shown on the left and optimized charging is shown on the right. Non-optimized
charging results in about 40 chargers due to the midday peak between 12 p.m. and 2 p.m. when many
buses are returning into the depot. The charging phases during this midday peak cannot be moved due to

limited standstill times. This restricts the reduction of chargers to 33 units.

Figure 4-13: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging for Bus S2 at Arcadia Yard

220 r — 220 r ; "
200 E:Ving 200 Standing in Depaot (after driving)
arging = Charging (Optimized)
180 v 180 \
2 160 | Charging 180 —
@ L g n L f
E:Iﬂ 15: --..lI\ rr‘/"-. —_\I % 140
2 120 .mf( \ g 120
100 b e S 100} /
- \ = 80F /
g 5 /
< &0 i 80
40t - P a0t g /
20 AT NS 20 A NN N
- iy el ety f L |~ N
0 : 0
0 2 4 6 8 101214 16 18 20 22 24 26 26 30 0 2 4 6 8 101214 1618 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time(hour ofthe day) Time {hour ofthe day)

Figure 4-14 shows the number of chargers that are required for bus D3 to operate from Arcadia Yard

when using non-optimized charging on the left and optimized charging on the right. Through
optimization, the evening peak of the charging curve is flattened. By optimizing the charging, 7 chargers

are sufficient instead of 15 chargers that would be required when using non-optimized charging.

Foothill Transit 4-13 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-14: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging at for Bus D3 Arcadia Yard

Mo, of Active Buses

40 ¢
— Drriving
Charging
0t Driving and
Ay Charging
20t {
f I"-.!(
10t 1A
. {
i L _\\ (.J \1'-.
_.r 1|_r"‘ ~
o A .

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time (hour ofthe day)

Standing in Depot (after driving)
Charging (Optimized)

P

/
(

/

N=vat / P

o 2

4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time (hour ofthe day)

Figure 4-15 provides the required number of chargers required for bus S2 from Pomona Yard when using

non-optimized charging on the left and optimized charging on the right. Around 40 chargers are needed

when using non-optimized charging due to the evening peak when many buses return to the depot.

Through optimization of the charging scheme, the required number of chargers can be reduced to around

20 units. This is achieved by flattening the evening peak charging curve by adjusting the charging phases

to latter hours in the day.

Figure 4-15: Non Optimized Charging Vs Optimized Charging for Bus S2 at Pomona Yard

Mo. of Active Buses

140 |

120

8

=

20

o

Driving
Charging
Driving and
Charging

!

vy

/ : F1y
TS TR

s

1]

2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30

Time (hour ofthe day)

Mo, of Buses

140

120

100 p

80

60

40

20

0

Standing in Depot(after driving)

b
b

Charging (Optimized)

i

n‘

/

H
A

02 4 6 8 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30

Time (hour ofthe day)

Table 4-2 summarizes the results of the charging scheme optimization without consideration for bus

logistical movement in the depot or avoidance of charging during expensive on-peak periods.

Foothill Transit

4-14

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Table 4-2: Summary of BEB with Optimized Charging

No. of
Chargers No. of
Electric Bus Type PVR (Non- Chargers
and Modified optmized (Optimized
Yard Bus Size Charging Power Schedules | Charging) Charging)
Arcadia 40° single S1 (440 325 ~160 ~40 > 32
deck kWh) kW
Arcadia 40° single S2 (540 325 ~160 ~40 > 33
deck kWh) kW
Arcadia | Double deck D3 (864 325 ~30 ~15 > 7
kWh) kW
Pomona 40° single S1 (440 325 ~143 ~40 > 17
deck kWh) kW
Pomona 40° single S2 (540 325 ~130 ~40 > 19
deck kWh) kW

4.6.3

In this optimization case, the methodology presented in subsection 4.6.2 was adjusted by adding the

Optimized Charging with an On-Peak Time Window

constraint of an on-peak electric rate time window between 4 p.m. and 9 p.m. The charging phases were
shifted from this time window to the evening hours after 9 p.m. or to the midday hours before 4 p.m. By
applying the on-peak time window, the charging phases can be shifted to hours when the price of
electricity is lower. Based on the current SCE electric vehicle (EV) time-of-use (TOU) rates, on-peak (4-
9pm) energy rates are 4 times higher than off-peak rates in the summer and 2 times higher in the non-
summer months. Shifting charging behaviors reduces Foothill Transit’s annual electricity costs at full
fleet electrification by nearly $2.5 million per year or approximately $62 million over 25 years without

accounting for inflation.

Figure 4-16 shows the number of S2 buses charging at Arcadia Yard when applying optimized charging
(on the left) and optimized charging with on-peak window between 4 p.m. and 9 p.m. (on the right).
During this time window, few charging phases occur that cannot be shifted to later or earlier hours.

Although the on-peak window is applied, the required number of chargers remains at 33.

Foothill Transit 4-15 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Figure 4-16: Optimized Charging with On-Peak Window for Bus S2 at Arcadia Yard

290 Arcadia Yard - Buses: 52 - Opfimized Charging Arc:za:%a Yard - Buses: 52 - Optimized Charging and Free Window
I Standing in Depot (after drving) - sianding o Sepot abcrdmong)
S— — Charging (Oplimized)
180 H Charging (Optimized) 180
160 160
2 140 | 2 140
3 120 | E 120
23] =21
% 100t % 100
o o
Z B0t} Z &0
60 | 60
40 40 -
-
20 | rfM"‘“‘-‘“.,‘ 20 |—\ o ™
0 A ] | of R J 0 A | Ly
0 2 4 6 8 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 0 2 4 6 & 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 3D
Time fhour of the day) Time (hour of the day)

Day Type: Friday Depot Arcadia Bus type: $2 (540 KWh)

Figure 4-17 shows the number of D3 buses charging at Arcadia Yard applying optimized charging (on the
left) and optimized charging with on-peak window between 4 p.m. and 9 p.m. (on the right). Shifting
charging phases from the on-peak window requires a greater number of chargers in the evening hours.

The required number of chargers increases from 7 to 10 chargers.

Figure 4-17: Optimized Charging with On-Peak Window for Bus D3 at Arcadia Yard

i Arcadia Yard - Buses: D2 - Optimized Charging A:cggig Yard - Buses: D3 - Optimized Charging and Free Window
Standing in Depot (after driving} Standing in Depot (after daving)
Changing (Optimzed) Charging (Optimized)
30 3o }
2 E
E E
S} St
(=] (-}
E 2
e
10F 10 F =
f I T \
Ln! r ||| % { By
_\M"_r. A ‘-, |I
R P SN - N W N S U s S v~ R S S IS W S N 5 . 4 S S G
0 2 4 6 8 101214 1618 20 22 24 26 28 3D 0 2 4 6 & 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Time (hour of the day) Time (hour of the day)

Day Type: Friday Depot Arcadia Bus type: D3 (864 KWh) mamem_ 325 KW

Foothill Transit 4-16 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Applying the on-peak window at Pomona Yard causes a similar effect of increasing the number of
required chargers. Figure 4-18 shows that 24 chargers are required when using an enforced on-peak

window compared to 19 chargers without applying the on-peak time window.

Figure 4-18: Optimized Charging with Enforced On-Peak Window for Bus D3 at Pomona Yard

Pomona Yard - Buses: 52 - Opfimized Charging Pomona Yard - Buses: 52 - Opfimized Charging and Free Window
140 Standing in Depaot (after driving) 140 Standing in Depot (after driving)
- Charging (Optimzed) | — ~ Charging (Optimzed) —
120 / 120 ¢ f
I I
'
« 100 / o 100} r,-)'
& 80 f g 80} x
5 -
S 50 f S g0t );"“ﬂ"'\ f
= | = |
/M\ | \ I
40 f 40 f
/ TN
i - i
20 _/d < | e, 20 | o ““.,X\ / | Wty
0 2 4 6 B 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 230 0 2 4 6 8 1012 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Tirre (hour of the day) Tirm (hour of the day)

Day Type: Friday Depot: Pomona Bus type: 52 (540 kKWh) :-

Table 4-3 provides an overview of the number of chargers required when applying the free time window
between 4 p.m. and 9 p.m. when deploying different bus types at Arcadia Yard and Pomona Yard. In
general, no charging between 4 p.m. and 9 p.m. requires a higher number of chargers compared to the
optimized number of chargers without applying this time window. However, optimized numbers of

chargers of both cases are still lower compared to the number of chargers using non-optimized charging.

Foothill Transit 4-17 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Route Analysis Scheduling and Charging Optimization

Table 4-3: Overview of Optimized Chargers with an Enforced On-Peak Time Window

No. of
Chargers
No. of No. of (Optimized
Electric Bus Type Chargers Chargers Charging incl.
Bus and (Non (Optimized Free Time
Yard Size Charging Power Optimized) Charging) Window)
Arcadia | 40 single | S1 (440 kwh) 325 ~40 > 32 36
deck kW
Arcadia | 40°single | S2 (540 kwh) 325 ~40 2> 33 33
deck kW
Arcadia | Double | D3 (864 kWh) 325 ~15 > 7 10
deck kw
Pomon | 40°single | S1 (440 kWh) 325 ~40 > 17 23
a deck kW
Pomon | 40°single | S2 (540 kWh) 325 ~40 > 19 24
a deck kW

4.7 Summary of Charging Scheme Optimization

The results of the charging optimization scenarios can be used as a benchmark for the minimum number
of chargers that Foothill Transit will need to support a fully electrified bus fleet. Installing the optimized
number of chargers can only occur if a significant effort is made to move vehicles from charging to
parking spots or by connecting multiple pantographs to a single charging unit. Furthermore, vehicle
scheduling must ensure every bus is connected to a charger for sufficient time to allow a complete charge.

In some charging scenarios, buses may require extra time to complete a cell balancing cycle.

The recommended scenario to use is the enforced on-peak window charging as this scenario shifts
charging to times when there is less demand on the electrical grid and lower electricity costs. In this
scenario, 43 chargers would need to be installed at Arcadia Yard and 24 chargers at Pomona Yard.
However, due to space constraints for moving buses from parking to charging spaces and to account for
operation constraints when scheduling bus charging, it is recommended that 55 325 kW chargers be
installed at Arcadia Yard and 40 325 kW chargers at Pomona Yard. The charger selection and quantities

are discussed further in sections 7, 8, and 9 of this report.

Foothill Transit 4-18 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Planning

5.0 FLEET ELECTRIFICATION PLANNING

According to the Foothill Transit BEB procurement plan, electric buses will be added to the Foothill
Transit fleet as CNG buses retire. A majority of the CNG buses will be replaced by BEBs by the year
2030 and the Foothill Transit operation will be close to 100% electrification by this year. The goal of this
section is to describe electrification concepts that can assist with the transition from CNG buses to BEBs
until the year 2030.

5.1 Electrification Phasing Method

A bus can operate on several blocks in one day. For example, one block could be operated in the morning
and a different block may be operated in the afternoon. Figure 5-1 shows an example of a block that
contains service trips, deadhead trips, and pauses. This particular combination of blocks is referred to as a
day course. A day course can consist of one or several blocks. A single bus can only operate one day
course per day. In this example, the bus operating day course X is operating the first block in the morning
and returning to the depot for a charging session. Once charging is completed, the bus operates the second
block and returns to the depot for a night charging session. The total number of day courses is equal to the

peak vehicle requirement (PVR) since one bus can only operate one day course.

Figure 5-1: Example Day Course

Block Block

Night charging phase

Day Course X I-Imrll T s

Chargrng phase-during the-day " [Deadhead Trip
| » | i MlPause
06:00 12:00 18:00 00:00 06:00 [llDelay Buffer

In the original (current) operation scheme by Foothill Transit, the day courses consisting of original
blocks are mostly operated by CNG buses. As BEBs gradually replace CNG buses, the conversion is
completed by aiming to keep the original day courses and PVR as long as possible. This can be achieved
by utilizing BEBs on the original day courses that are feasible without adjustments and to continue to use
CNG buses to operate day courses that require adjustments to work with BEB’s. Following this approach
allows Foothill Transit to delay adjusting the operation scheme, leading to a postponement of a higher
PVR. Following this approach results in three electrification phases which will be named A, B and C as

shown in Figure 5-2.

Foothill Transit 5-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Planning

Figure 5-2: Electrification Phases

Phase A . Phase B . Phase C

Today ~ 2030

100% electric

During Phase A, the original day courses from Foothill Transit’s current operation scheme are left intact
since they can be operated by CNG buses. The PVR also remains the same and no additional vehicles are
required. During the day, there is no dedicated charging phase between blocks of a day course. BEBs are
only deployed on feasible day courses and the CNG buses service the remaining day courses. An example

day course for Phase A is represented in Figure 5-3.

Figure 5-3: Example Day Course in Phase A

Original block Original block
[ : [ A | Night charging phase
Day Course x E 1 | | | Il Service Trip
T b [Mbeadhead Trip
Day Course y - [[charging at Depot
| i | | | IMPause
06:00 12:00 18:00 00:00 06:00 EllDelay Buffer

At the beginning of Phase B, the operation scheme changes to ‘new’ day courses. This change allows for
more of Foothill Transit’s fleet to be electrified by adjusting operating blocks and replacing CNG buses
with BEBs. Like Phase A, there is no dedicated charging time between blocks of a day course. In Phase
B, a day course can consist of both original and split blocks containing short charging phases during the
day as represented in Figure 5-4.

Figure 5-4: Example Day Course in Phase B

Original block Split block Split block
\ , ) ! el
it ) A i | ‘
Day Cauree x | NN I S
1 ‘?_ Shortr asSeT lr 1T ‘ I:lDeadhead Trlp
S ] S M o S L | [ Charging at Depot
ging at Depo
| | S S
paycoursey — [INEENIN TIN50
06:00 12:00 18:00 00:00 06:00 [l Delay Buffer

Foothill Transit 5-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Planning

Finally, at the beginning of Phase C, the operation scheme changes to ‘final’ day courses. As in Phase B,
the day courses consist of original and adjusted blocks. However, in Phase C, the time at the depot
between blocks of a day course are sufficient to completely recharge a BEB. The feasible and split blocks
are again rearranged into day courses in order to minimize the PVR. Due to longer charging phases
between the blocks, the PVR increases in Phase C as shown in Table 4-1. During Phase C, all day courses

can be operated by BEB’s, thus successfully transitioning Foothill Transit’s bus fleet to 100% electric.

Figure 5-5: Example Day Course in Phase C

Il Service Trip
[TIDeadhead Trip
[FICharging at Depot

i | ficient r yhase |
pay cowse v IR EEEEEEEEEE - -

06:00 12:00 18:00 00:00 06:00 lDelay Buffer

Day Course x

5.2  Electrification Concepts for Transitioning to BEB’s

In this section conceptual plans describing how Foothill Transit can transition its current CNG bus fleet to
BEB’s are discussed for each bus type in operation and for each yard. This transition plan is based on
applying the methodology for prioritizing routes as discussed in Section 5.1 and by selecting buses and
chargers that can support Foothill Transit routes as discussed in Section 4. By applying this phased
strategy to the suitable BEB and charging infrastructure, Foothill Transit can move towards 100%

electrification over the next decade.

The PVR of BEBs are calculated based on worst-case scenario assumptions. The common operation
conditions for Foothill Transit may be less demanding. If operations are less demanding than the worst-
case scenario, the PVR may be lower. Furthermore, new BEB models may come into the market in the
coming years that have higher battery capacities or peak charging powers. Applying new BEB model
battery capacities may decrease the PVR. In the future, a reassessment incorporating technology

developments will be helpful to update the content of the electrification concepts presented in this section.

5.2.1  Electrification Concept for Double Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard
Figure 5-6 shows how double deck BEB type D3 can be placed into service over time. Figure 5-7 shows
the transition of double deck buses during the different phases. Since the double deck bus will only

operate on the Silver Streak line 707, it is the only route shown in Figure 5-7.

Foothill Transit 5-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Fleet Electrification Planning

Figure 5-6: Transition of Double Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard

Fleet Plan Electrification Phases Total after electrification in the actual year
Year Total after planned retirement Electrification | Peak Vehicle :::r‘:fs Th f CNG Buses E-Buses
CNG Buses E-Buses Phase Requirement m‘;“ max. E-Buses | In Operation | Spares | In Operation | Spares
2019 30 2 Phase A 26 17 24 6 2 0
Phase A 26 17 9 17 3 9 3
e e 12 { Phasec 30 0 30 18 2 12 0 )
2022 0 32 Phase C. 30 o 0 0 2
Depot: Arcadia Bus type: D3 (864 kWh)
Figure 5-7: Transition of Double Deck Buses Per Route from Arcadia Yard
End of Phase A End of Phase C
100% 100%
90% 90%
B0% B0%
705 705
6% 6%
50% 50%
0% BCNG 0% BCNG
0% m Electric 0% m Electric
20% 20%
10% 10%
0% 0%
707 707
Bus Line Bus Line
Day Type: Friday Bus tvpe: D3 (864 kKWh) Chargers: 325 kW
5.2.2  Electrification Concept for Single Deck Buses at Arcadia and Pomona

Figure 5-8 shows how single deck BEB type S2 can be placed into service over time. Figure 5-9 shows

the transition of single deck buses during the different phases for the different bus routes. Figure 5-10

shows how single deck BEB type S2 can be placed into service over time. Figure 5-11 shows the

transition of single deck buses during the different phases for the different bus routes.

Foothill Transit

5-4

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Planning

Figure 5-8: Transition of Single Deck Buses at Arcadia Yard

Feat Plan Electrification Phases Total after electrification in the actual year
CHG Buses E-Buses Phase Requirement w max. E-Buses | In Operation | Spares  In Oiperation = Spares
020 140 17 Phase A 138 75 63 11 19 | 17 o
2023 110 47 Phase & 138 75 63 91 19 I 47 0
2025 102 55 Phase A 138 75 63 a3 13 55 o
026 96 61 Phaze A 138 75 63 T 19 61 o
| W e [Emomowo e bR woo e
ws| s | s | eeec | w0 | o w | s [ o | = |
l2030| 28 155 | phasec | w0 | o | w0 | s | 2| 15 | o

Bus type: 52 (540 kown) || Gharaers: 326 kW

Figure 5-9: Transition of Single Deck Buses Per Route from Arcadia Yard

End of Phase A End of Phase B
100% 100%
BD%% B0%
00% 6%
405 4%
20% 20%
056 0%
LN - = - =N =T =T =) N - = - = = =N =T ]
CEBRRAAALRNEERERRERE CEREAAERRRNEERERRRERES
Bus Line Bus Line
mElectric mCHNG mElectric mCNG

End of Phase C

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
Wm0 O HOoOMNT Q- OME 0
CEBRRAABRRNANgERRERY

Bus Line

mElectric mCNG

Day Type: Friday Bus fype: 52 (540 kWhi Chargers: 325 kW

Foothill Transit 5-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Planning

Figure 5-10: Transition of Single Deck Buses at Pomona Yard

Fleet Flan Electrification Phases Total after electrification in the actual year
Bikis E-Buses
2020 134 16 123 59 64 o7 a2 | 16 o
1013 122 28 123 59 B4 85 27 i 8 Q
2026 108 42 123 59 B Bl 27 | 43 | o
123 59 B 59 T | Bad 0
2027 66 a4

125 5 120 a1 25 B4 o

2028 6 114 m 5 120 11 25 114 a
- Tad 5 120 5 i 120 14
= N N Y N ™ T
I o [ m " | _w | =

Figure 5-11: Transition of Single Deck Buses Per Route from Pomona Yard

End of Phase A End of Phase B

100% 100%
98%

8054 963
605 Q4%
92%

A0% a0%
20%, 88%
B6%

0% Ba%

W M= U WO vl N WD DS WM~ 3 A [ s BT AT s B BT T T O I -
CaSA8H0ReYEeee R A R R R R R U U
Bus Line Bus Line

mElectric mCNG mElectric mCNG

Day Type: Friday Depot: Pomona Bus type: 52 (540 KWh) Chargers: 325 kW

100%

80
60
40
20
0%
W
ang

Ed

&

&

&

End of Phase C
Lo B B B I T O i
BHBNLR9YERLRRESER

Bus Line

mElectric mCNG

Day Type: Friday Depot: Pomona Bus type: 52 (540 KWh) Chargers: 325 kW

Foothill Transit 5-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Bus Equipment Market Analysis

6.0 BUS EQUIPMENT MARKET ANALYSIS

For this section, equipment that is commercially available for both EVSE and BEB’s was assessed. A list
of suitable EVSE for electric buses was compiled by reaching out to known EVSE manufacturers from
the light-duty segment, researching manufacturers from other publicly announced BEB projects, and
utilizing industry contacts. Information on currently available BEB’s was captured from the various
OEM’s based on the needs of the Foothill Transit fleet.

6.1 Survey of Charger Demographics

The charging equipment research focused on EVSE that is capable of charging at 50kW or more, with one
exception being a 25kW mobile charger. This unit was included as it could be used as a backup or
convenience charger in a depot environment. The reason for focusing on high power EVSE was to ensure
minimum recharging speeds that are practical for the range and schedule requirements that are necessary
to convert Foothill Transit’s routes to BEB’s as demonstrated within this report. A 50kW charger will
provide an equivalent of approximately 16 miles of range for every hour of charging, assuming an

average BEB efficiency of 3 kwWh per mile.

A survey was conducted to collect information from the various OEM’s. The initial survey found a wide
variety of at least 12 manufacturers offering chargers at various power levels while supporting both CCS
and J3105 connector standards. While most of the manufacturers were focused on conductive charging,
there were two manufacturers included in the survey that provide inductive wireless (J2954/2) charging

solutions.

Table 6-1 outlines information collected from the survey, such as connector type and power output, for a

variety of chargers.

Foothill Transit 6-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Bus Equipment Market Analysis

Table 6-1: List of Surveyed Charging Equipment

Manufacturer Model Connectors Maximum | Mount System
Power Style Architecture
Level (Ground /
(kw) Wall/
Overhead)
ABB Terra 53/54 CCS / CHAdeMO 50 Ground Integrated
ABB HP Overnight / Opp CCS /)3105-2 175 Ground Modular
Upgradable
ABB Flash Charging (TOSA) Proprietary overhead 600 Overhead Unknown
BTC Power 50 kW DCFC CCS / CHAdeMO 50 Ground Integrated
BTC Power 100-200 kW Modular DCFC CCS / CHAdeMO 200 Ground Modular
Upgradable
Chargepoint Express 250 CCS / CHAdeMO 62.5 Ground Modular
Upgradable
Chargepoint Express Plus CCS / CHAdeMO 500 Ground Modular
Upgradable
Delta DC City Charger CCS / CHAdeMO 100 Ground Integrated
Concurrent charging
Efacec QC Bus 90/ 150 CCS 150 Ground Integrated
Efacec QC 45 CCS / CHAdeMO 50 Ground Integrated
Efacec HV 175-350 CCS / CHAdeMO / 350 Ground Modular
J3105 Upgradable
Heliox 25 kW Mobile DC charger CCs 25 Mobile Integrated
Heliox 30/50kw DC CCS /J3105 50 Ground Integrated
Heliox 150/ 300 kw DC CCS /J3105 300 Ground Integrated
Heliox 450 / 600 kW DC CCS /J3105 600 Ground Integrated
Momentum 50 - 200 kw 12954/2 200 Ground Unknown
Dynamics
Proterra 60 kW Depot CCS /J3105 60 Ground Integrated
Proterra 125 kW Depot CCS /13105 125 Ground Integrated
Proterra 500 kW Depot / On-Route J3105 500 Overhead Integrated
Siemens Top-Down Panto (150/300/450/600 kW) J3105-2 600 Overhead Integrated
Siemens Bottom-up Panto J3105-1 120 Overhead Integrated
(60/120 kW)
Siemens Plug-In DC Charger CcCs 150 Ground Integrated
(30-150kW)
Signet FC 50-100K CCS / CHAdeMO 100 Ground Integrated
Upgradable
Signet PB 175 - 350kW CCS / CHAdeMO 350 Ground Modular
Upgradable
Tritium Veefil - RT CCS / CHAdeMO 50 Ground Integrated
Tritium Veefil - PK CCS / CHAdeMO 175 Ground Modular
Upgradable
Wave 50 - 250 kW 12954/2 250 Ground Unknown
Foothill Transit 6-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Bus Equipment Market Analysis

6.2 Different Types of Charging System Architecture

Designing for full depot electrification requires a charging system that is flexible and that can be
upgraded. To cover these needs, the EVSE survey focused on the ability for charging equipment to work
with different connector types and if the system architecture could be upgraded in the future. In general,
chargers with a peak power output of 200kW or less have a system design that is typically integrated into
a single unit that cannot be upgraded. Most charging systems that have a peak power output of 150kW or
greater are based on a modular design that includes a power cabinet that is separate from the dispensing
kiosk and connector. This allows multiple power cabinets to be combined to increase capacity at the site.
Commercially available systems can be expanded to a peak power output of 600kW at this time. Figure
6-1 provides an example configuration of a modular charging system that provides charge power to

multiple connectors.

Figure 6-1: Architecture of a Modular Charging System

6.3 Survey of BEB Market

Several requirements are considered when analyzing current BEB Manufacturers. These requirements
include, but are not limited to: the number of BEB models, nominal range (miles), operating range
(miles), battery size (kWh), supported charging standards, future supported charging standards, overhead
charging (fastest time empty to full), plug-in-charging (fastest time empty to full), DC charging voltage,
maximum charging power level (kW), and miles per hour of charging. Table 6-2 summarizes some key

findings from the BEB survey assessment.

Foothill Transit 6-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Bus Equipment Market Analysis

This study survey indicates there are only a handful of OEMs that can supply this information publicly
and are able to support mass production of BEB’s. The information collected is constantly changing as
more OEMSs enter the market or existing products are improved and offered. The mix of OEMs that were
included in this study include traditional bus manufacturers who are adding electric bus models to their
portfolio, as well as start-up companies entering the market with an initial offering. The evolving market

landscape offers an ever-growing set of choices.

It is important to mention that the OEMs contacted were unable to share data beyond what is publicly
available. As such this study is unable to include parameters such as maximum passenger load, available

auxiliary equipment, or real-world examples of range, impacts of climate, and efficiency for each OEM.

Assumptions on the type of BEB that Foothill Transit would require to convert to a fully electrified fleet
were made in Section 3. Figure 3-1 and Figure 3-2 also represent standard battery sizes from different

manufacturers of 40ft buses and double deck buses in addition to Table 6-2.

Foothill Transit 6-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Bus Equipment Market Analysis

Table 6-2: Summary of Available BEB's

Overhead
Battery Size Charging Charging Plug-in
Manufacturer Model (kwh) Compatibility Characteristics Charging Time
Catalyst 35ft 220-440 J1772 CCS & SAE 2.4hrs empty to full 1-3hr
Proterra 13105
Catalyst 40ft 220-660 J1772 CCS & SAE 2.4hrs empty to full 1-3hr
Proterra 13105
LSFe Not Overhead Pantograph 5-minute fast charge Not Advertised
Nova Bus Advertised per operating hour
35ft Transit 352 Not Advertised Not Advertised 2hrs
BYD
60ft Transit 652 Not Advertised Not Advertised 3.5hrs
BYD
Xcelsior 160-213 Siemens/ 32 minutes for 3.9hrs for 466
Charge 35ft ChargePoint/ABB 200kWh ESS (from kWh ESS
New Flyer 10%-90% SOC)
Xcelsior 213-466 Siemens/ 32 minutes for 3.9hrs for 466
Charge 40ft 200kWh ESS (from kWh ESS
New Flyer ChargePoint/ABB 10%-90% SOC)
Xcelsior 213-466 Siemens/ 32 minutes for 3.9hrs for 466
Charge 60ft ChargePoint/ABB 200kWh ESS (from kWh ESS
New Flyer 10%-90% SOC)

Foothill Transit

6-5

Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Charging Equipment Market Analysis and Selection

7.0 CHARGING EQUIPMENT MARKET ANALYSIS AND SELECTION

After the survey of charging equipment was completed as described in Section 6, a Request for
Information (RFI) was issued to 15 manufacturers of EVSE. The goal of the RFI was to determine which
EVSE manufacturers and equipment would be best suited to meet the needs of Foothill Transit’s goals to
convert to a fully electrified bus fleet. In this section the summary of findings from the EVSE RFI is
provided as well as the criteria that was used for evaluating the EVSE options. A key component of
determining the best charging solutions also includes evaluating the constructability of different solutions
based on constraints of Foothill Transits’ depots. Lastly, recommendations for selecting equipment were
provided considering the scoring matrix compiled from the RFI, constructability of equipment within the
constraints of Foothill Transit’s depots, and the requirements to support Foothill Transits goals to a fully

electrified bus fleet.

7.1  Summary of Findings from EVSE RFI

The RFI was sent to 15 companies and only 11 replied by the deadline set for the RFI and in the requested
format. Responses from the 11 companies, with relevant products and solutions, were compiled into a
single document and a scoring matrix was created. The scoring matrix weighed information from the
EVSE manufacturers based on equipment specifications, warranties, reliability and standards, customer
services, network support, and pricing. A summary outlining all equipment information from the vendors

and the scoring matrix was provided to Foothill Transit.

7.2 Initial RFI Results and Scoring Criteria

Based on the energy and charging requirements necessary for Foothill Transit to completely electrify its
bus fleet, as determined from the energy-based scheduling, detailed route analysis, and optimized
charging scenarios, the equipment evaluated was narrowed to equipment that could provide a charging
power level of 325kW.

The top four EVSE manufactures according to the initial results of the scoring matrix were Heliox, ABB,
BTC, and Tritium. Proterra and ChargePoint also received strong ratings; however, they have not

manufactured and installed chargers with a peak capacity of 325 kW at the time of this evaluation.

ABB and Heliox both offer EVSE with a peak power output greater than 300 kW and that can operate as
a pantograph connection following the J3105 standard. BTCPower and Tritium offer EVSE that have a
cable connection following the CCS1 standard. All of these manufacturers offer charging hardware with

300 kW to 450 kW power output, which is in line with the recommended 325kW charger size as

Foothill Transit 7-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Charging Equipment Market Analysis and Selection

determined from the charging optimization study. Table 7-1 summarizes the top ranked chargers with

greater than a 300-kW peak charging capacity.

Table 7-1: Summary of EVSE by Vendor

Tritium BTCPower ABB [1] Heliox [2]
Connection Standard CCS1/CCSs2 CCS1/CCSs2 J3105-1 J3105-1
Power Output 350 kW 350 kW 300kW 450kW
VeeFil PK L4-350M HVC 300P Opportunity
Model 350kW Stand Charger 450kwW
Alone UL
Charger Cost $110,000 $123,000 $200,000 $178,500
Pantograph Cost N/A N/A Included Included

[1] ABB 300 kW charger can provide peak charging up to 325 kW.

[2] Heliox pantograph cost is estimated based on ABB pantograph pricing.

[3] Charger and pantograph costs from the RFI are unit prices and do not reflect bulk discounts and are
representative prices only. Installation, commissioning, and other features vary by vendor.

7.3  Charger Constructability Constraints

Cable connected chargers operating in the 300-kW power class require the cables and CCS couplers to
have a liquid cooling system due to physical limitations of cable. This requirement adds auxiliary load to
each charger and causes the dispensers to become more complex. Since there is no readily available
overhead system for supporting liquid cooled cables in a safe and reliable manner, the dispensers will
need to be ground mounted and close to the bus charge port in an installation similar to a fueling station.
Based on these constructability challenges and the footprint challenges at the Foothill Transit bus depots,

the BTC Power and Tritium solutions are not viable for this type of installation at this time.

A pantograph-based system as provided by ABB or Heliox is the recommended path forward for Foothill
Transit based upon the need for 325 kW charging power and dense parking configurations in the depots.
The Heliox J3105 charger can currently be connected to two separate pantograph dispensers and power
them in sequence using intelligent switching. The ABB J3105 charger has a similar feature under
development for sequence charging of up to three pantograph dispensers. ABB has not provided a
timeline for when this feature will be ready. Example of these systems can be viewed in Figure 6-1 in

Section 6 of this report.

Foothill Transit 7-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Charging Equipment Market Analysis and Selection

7.4  Preliminary Recommendations for EVSE Selection

Based on the 325 kW charging requirements and charger constructability constraints assessment, it is
recommended that Foothill Transit use an overhead pantograph charging system employing either ABB
or Heliox 325 kW (or higher) chargers. Conceptual plans and designs should incorporate a 2 pantographs

per 1x325 kW dual port charger.

Based on the energy-based scheduling, detailed route analysis, optimized charging scenarios, and the
depot layout assessment, the minimum number of chargers required for Arcadia at full fleet electrification
at any one time is 55 x 325 kW chargers. These 55 chargers could be coupled with 110 pantographs above
110 parking spots. A similar configuration for Pomona would require 40 x 325 kW chargers and 80
pantograph power dispensers. This concept would require Foothill depot operators to move all 190 buses
at Arcadia and 130 buses at Pomona throughout the depot at night to use the limited number of chargers
and pantographs. It is assumed that existing depot fueling staff would gradually transition to moving

electric buses around the depot as the fleet electrifies resulting in limited staffing increases.

Based on the layout and depot assessments, which is described in Sections 8, 9, and 10 of this report, one
of the potential solutions would be to provide a pantograph power dispenser for each of the 180 bus
parking positions at Arcadia with approximately 90 x 325 kW dual port chargers. The Pomona depot
would have 65 x 325 kW dual port chargers and 130 pantographs for each of its 130 parking spots. This
solution would eliminate nearly all depot fueling staff but would require nearly twice as much

infrastructure. These configurations are explored and discussed further in Sections 8, 9, and 10.

Foothill Transit 7-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

8.0 DEPOT PHYSICAL LAYOUT ASSESSMENT

This section of the report summarizes the depot physical layout assessment, provides a review of existing
policies and procedures, and identifies the footprints available for future charging infrastructure. These
assessments served as an input into the development of the physical infrastructure layout options prepared

for both Arcadia and Pomona yards which are also included within this section of the report.

8.1 Existing Depot Layout Assessment

The Arcadia Depot is the larger of the two depots and is home to 223 buses. The buses enter and exit via
Peck Road at the north end of the yard as shown in Figure 8-4. Entering buses turn right past the
administrative building and then left. The vault is located north of the maintenance building. The buses
then continue to the parking location. All of Foothill Transit’s articulated buses operate out of this depot,
and they park on the north side of the yard facing northward. Other buses park on the east side of the
yard, two deep and front to back facing eastward. When the yard is full, additional buses are parked in
travel lanes against the east wall, shown by the red box in Figure 8-4, facing north in two lines and against
the north wall facing west in two lines. Depot personnel fuel and clean the buses. Fueling occurs at the
northeast corner of the yard. There is an additional area for bus storage south of the maintenance
building. Electric buses that are not yet in service are parked here and are used for training operators.
While it is unclear in Figure 8-4, diagonal parking south of the maintenance building is two deep, front to
back. Employee parking, not shown in Figure 8-4, is along Peck Road west of the administrative

building.

The Pomona Depot has 150 buses. The buses enter and exit via East End Avenue at the south end of the
yard as shown in Figure 8-5. Entering buses stop at the vault, and then turn left at either the middle or far
lane, and then turn left into the next available parking space. The buses park two deep and front to back
facing westward. Fueling occurs at the southeast corner of the yard. Employee parking is along East End

Avenue, west of the administrative/maintenance building.

At both locations, employee parking is separated from bus parking.. Both sites are also constrained by
surrounding businesses and topography. During the site visits, the team asked if there are any bottlenecks
or constraints within the depot. There are no constraints to current bus operations within either yard. As
expected, existing protocols have been designed to ensure that buses pull out and pull in in an orderly

fashion.

Foothill Transit 8-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Aol bus pakng =

wsercusm|

s oo

EASTEND
5
|82

I

|

e, o ie
gl
Pl
f'UlllHHth
)

lf;i

4;2:.

g

Foothill Transit

8-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

8.2 Depot Policies and Procedures Assessment

A bus operator’s workday includes “report time” for checking in with dispatch, obtaining any materials or
information needed for the day, and inspecting the bus. Report time takes about 20 minutes if the
operator is driving the bus from the yard. Operators are assigned to different buses on different days.
Articulated and electric buses are parked in designated sections of the yard. Depot personnel prepare a
map of where buses are parked to assist supervisors in directing operators to the correct bus; this
procedure will be automated with the new Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) system. Once the operator
locates the correct bus, a brief pre-trip inspection is completed by the operator and the bus pulls out of the

depot.

Some buses stay out in service all day, while others return to the depot after the morning peak period and
go out again before the afternoon peak period. Approximately 75 percent of the buses at Arcadia stay out

all day, mostly in local service. Most buses at Pomona return in the midday.

When operators pull into the depot, they stop at the vault to have the farebox emptied, then park their bus
in the next available location in the yard and notify dispatch that they have returned to the yard. Depot
personnel clean, wash, and fuel the buses overnight. Buses are washed every other day unless there are
extenuating circumstances. Fueling occurs as the buses return and as depot personnel are available. The
existing depot personnel would presumably be available for coordination of overnight bus charging

activities in the future as the fleet transitions from CNG buses to BEB’s.

Foothill Transit has considered what policies and procedures would be most appropriate for an electric
bus fleet. The preferred procedure is to spread out charging throughout the day as buses return to the
depots. At the Arcadia Depot, the SCE pilot project concept will be to locate charging stations within the
bus parking area to the east to allow 14 buses, parked front to back, to charge from the new stations which
are proposed to be in the 2 northern most parking stalls. Going from 16 stalls to 14 stalls in this area of
the depot results in a 12.5% net reduction in parking stalls. If this same charging equipment layout
approach was used for the entire depot Foothill would likely lose nearly 15% of its parking when
factoring in additional buffer areas between charging equipment islands. Nothing has been planned for
Pomona yard at this time. A 15% reduction in parking will not be acceptable in the future for either
Arcadia or Pomona, particularly if additional vehicles are required in the future. As part of the depot
layout design process, the project team developed new layouts for charging and electrical equipment that

consolidated and/or elevated charging and other electrical equipment such that a 0%-5% reduction in

Foothill Transit 8-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

parking is achieved at each depot at most. These layouts are discussed and presented later within this

section of the report.

8.3  Operational Limitations and Space Availability

The primary operational limitation to be considered in developing the conceptual incremental electrical
infrastructure road map is that travel lanes throughout the yard must be kept clear. As the number of
electric buses increases, the CNG fueling station can be downsized to fewer pumps. However, CNG
fueling will be required during the transition period from 2021 to 2032 or longer depending on how long
CNG buses are in operation. The available footprint at each depot is not large. The concept of charging in
the bus parking areas can be expected to reduce the number of parking spaces in order to fit the charging
equipment, although locating the charger’s overhead can reduce the footprint required for this
infrastructure. The proposed method of locating infrastructure overhead, to forgo additional losses of
parking space, was reviewed with Foothill Transit engineering, operations, vehicle technology, and

planning staff and determined the most feasible and cost-effective solution.

The new contractor operating the Pomona Depot has proposed a new parking scheme, shown in Figure
8-3 which has not yet been approved by Foothill Transit. Figure 8-6 highlights two areas within the
Pomona Depot where additional space may be available. CNG compressors are located at the northeast
corner of the yard. As the need for CNG is reduced during the transition period to all-electric operation,
some of this space may be usable for other equipment since the existing public fueling will require much
less gas compression. The project team asked about the availability of the support parking (space for 25
personal vehicles), at the south of the yard near the bus entrance/exit. The support parking is unlikely to
be available either for additional bus parking or for other purposes because this space is used by managers
and employees at the depot. Relief vehicles that are used to ferry operators to and from relief points on
the routes, are already being parked in the employee parking lot. The project team and Foothill staff also
considered eliminating the middle lane in the bus parking area and park buses four or five deep between
the outermost lanes. Foothill Transit acknowledged that this is approach is indeed possible but that it
would be a change to existing operating procedures used today. This approach was reviewed with Foothill
Transit engineering, operations, vehicle technology, and planning staff and determined the most feasible
and cost-effective solution to consolidate parking spots and add charging infrastructure to an already
space constrained Pomona depot. Additionally, the proposed approach of placing charging infrastructure
overhead would allow the co-utilization of an overhead structure to employ canopy solar within the

Pomona depot.

Foothill Transit 8-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Depot Physical Layout Assessment

EAST END AVENUE

At the Arcadia Depot, the transit agency owns the parcel of land north of the yard along Peck Road. The
southern portion of this parcel is striped for employee overflow parking and a portion is leased by Clean

Energy for public access CNG dispensers. The northern portion of this parcel is empty. The parcel could

Figure 8-3: Proposed Bus Parking Scheme Pomona Depot with CNG Fleet

M —4— 111
E s e O 7, L |'
oM Bt A AR |
NS\ i
Rt \ 7 AN T
NNEERZ \
= o= S NS A NE e
L MAINTENANGE 4 SN 4 A
U \ \\ S //\ A &
ENTRAMCE f EXIT k q \\ 7 /, \\y\\ :/” 4
= ANN\IZ
I ‘i/ R D : ’\?2\\ /’
| \_\\\ \\ '/'.. b \[ e _‘ S
ar SR 3 AN 7
., "1 § £
\\\ 7 NN 2
AT et N /s /:\\ < A
¥ W L ; // \\ H S s
N x AN b
NN VARN %
----- N1 Nt 7
NN AN
— Y ™ 2 AN A
M=y Phe N N \g.\ /A \\\ 5
- NCE | E = — x\\ J,. ./) \ P /.,
q = NAN NN
= o e : & % “
| | 4
q g | BLS WAS

CNG

(ompressors

=

TTERN

|fareb0>( collection equipment

be used to support charging equipment, electric grid infrastructure, and on-site renewable power

integration; however, the distance from the charging equipment to the buses would require significant

underground infrastructure to reach the bus parking and would be much more costly. By moving the

charging infrastructure overhead, the project team and Foothill Transit staff determined that it would be

possible to maintain the existing depot layouts, incorporate additional charging infrastructure on the

ground and overhead, and maintain the same number of parking spots that exist today. Additionally, the

proposed approach of placing charging infrastructure (chargers and pantographs) overhead would allow

the co-utilization of an overhead structure to employ canopy solar within the Arcadia depot.

Foothill Transit

8-5

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

8.4  Electric Bus Charging Equipment and Configurations
As mentioned previously in this report, there were several factors that led to the BEB charging equipment

selected for the project. These factors included:

e Overhead Charging: An overhead solution will be required to maintain bus parking capacities at both
depots due to the limited space availability as described previously within Section 8 of this report.

The depots cannot sacrifice parking spots or drive lane space for more ground mount chargers.

o 325 kW Chargers: A 325 kW charger will be required to meet fleet operation requirements and
minimize additional bus procurement as identified in the route analysis described in Section 4 of this
report. A charger with less power capacity will not be able to charge buses fast enough to meet

operational requirements.

e EVSE Availability: EVSE information compiled by vendor surveys as summarized in Section 7 of
this report indicated that limited options for 325 kW overhead charging exists today. At 325 kW,
cable reel charging is not feasible and is not recommended. Only ABB and Heliox OEMs provide
overhead pantograph J3105-1 solutions at this power level capacity with each having the ability to
support 2 ports and 2 pantographs per charger. Multiple bus manufactures are capable of providing
BEBs that support J3105-1 solutions at 325 kW of charge power.

Table 8-1 presents the electric charging equipment requirements at each depot. The base scenario assumes
a 2 pantograph per 1 charger solution at each site. The PVR and minimum number of chargers required is
based on the route analysis summarized in Section 4 of this report. Under the base scenario the 190 buses
in operation at Arcadia will need to be moved throughout the depot at night to use the 110 pantographs
and 55 chargers. Similarly, the 130 buses in operation at Pomona will need to be moved throughout the

night to use 80 pantographs and 40 chargers.

Table 8-1: Electric Bus Charging Equipment Requirements

Peak Vehicle No. of No of Chargers No. of
Requirement No of Chargers Pantographs Required Pantographs
Bus Type and  Charger Modified Required (Dumb (Dumb (Optimized (Optimized
Bus Size Size Power Schedules Charging) Charging) Charging) Charging)

Arcadia 40' S2 (540 kwh) 325 kw 160 40 80 36 72
Arcadia DD D3 (864 kwh) 325 kw 30 15 30 10 20
Arcadia Total 190 55 110 46 92
Pomona 40' S2 (540 kwh) 325 kw 130 40 80 36 72

While it is theoretically possible that the number of chargers could be reduced further, moving 190 buses

throughout the depot over an 8-hour period to use 55 dual port chargers via 110 pantographs will be

Foothill Transit 8-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

challenging and will require depot operators to move nearly 26 buses per hour on average. The

operational challenges and bus movement timetables are further assessed in Section 10 of this report.

8.5 Proposed Depot Infrastructure Layouts

The project team prepared 2 bus depot layout alternatives for both Arcadia and Pomona depots. For each
site and layout alternative developed, the project team assumed that all charging equipment would be
elevated and consolidated in order to maintain the same number of parking spots within the existing
depots and minimize the number of service delivery points provided by Southern California Edison
(SCE). The chargers were located such that the specific charger serving each spot is between 50 and 100
feet from the proposed charging pantograph. For each layout, constraints such as turning radius and drive
lane space were also considered. For each site, 2 alternatives were developed in order to capture the range
of the investment required. The first alternative considered a high capital investment with zero depot
charging labor. The second alternative assumed a lower capital investment and a similar level of depot

bus fueling labor as today. These alternatives are summarized and presented in the following pages.

i.  Alternative 1 - High capital investment & no depot labor
»  One pantograph per bus; One charger per 2 buses
» No bus depot operators for charging or moving buses
e Pomona 130 PVR, 130 pantographs, 65x325 kW chargers, BOP and steel for 100%-yard coverage
* Arcadia 190 PVR, 190 pantographs, 85x325 kW chargers, BOP and steel for 100%-yard coverage

ii.  Alternative 2 - Low capital investment & existing depot labor - Recommended

»  Approximately one pantograph per 2 buses; Approximately one charger per 4 buses

e Each depot requires 5 to 6 operators to move buses but with ~60% capital

e Pomona 140 PVR, 80 pantographs, 40x325 kW chargers, BOP and steel for ~60% yard coverage
Arcadia 190 PVR, 110 pantographs, 55x325 kW chargers, BOP and steel for ~60% yard coverage

Figure 8-4 and Figure 8-5 presents Alternative 1 and 2 for Arcadia. Both layouts are organized similarly
to the existing layout but have several charging islands where SCE can deliver underground service to
their pad mounted transformers and switchboards with 480 V power serving the 325 kW chargers. Power
would then be delivered from the chargers to the pantographs in cable trays above the bus parking spots.
An overhead structure is planned to support the cable trays, the overhead pantographs, and future solar
arrays described later Section 12 of this report. Alternative 2 uses approximately 60% less infrastructure
but requires existing CNG fueling staff to move buses overnight. In both cases each charger would serve
two parking spots; however, Alternative 1 requires significantly more infrastructure. Once the charger
completes charging the first vehicle in position (A), the charger would switch over to the second vehicle

Foothill Transit 8-7 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

in position (B) within 2 hours. With Alternative 2, once the buses in A position are charged a second set
of vehicles would be moved into the A position while B continues to charge with B vehicles following.
This would continue until all buses are charged. The operational assessment of the recommended

alternative, Alternative 2, is described in Section 10 of this report.

Foothill Transit 8-8 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Figure 8-4: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Alternative 1 (High Capital + No Depot Labor)

o i e

Foothill Transit 8-9 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Figure 8-5: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Alternative 2 (Low Capital + Existing Depot Labor)

Targat: 198 Bus Locations ACHIEVED: 190 Bun Locatices.
112 Totsl Charging Spaces, 55 Chargers 118 Total Charging Spaces, 8§ Chargers.
30 Spots for 40° Buses, 48 Spots ter 4 Buses,
32 Spats for 43 DO Buses 4 Spots for BOTH 40° 5D & 4 DD Buses
T8 Parking 8. D0 Bus Parking Stalls
T2- 4U° Bus Pariing Spaces
" i e No Reserve Schecbed.
400 Bunes.

Foothill Transit 8-10 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Figure 8-6 and Figure 8-7 present Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 for the Pomona depot. Both layouts for
Pomona are organized differently from the existing layout. The buses are arranged in rows of 4 or 5 to
consolidate parking and make room for the additional charging equipment platforms and pad mounted
transformers while allowing for no parking spots to be lost in the transition to an all-electric fleet. The
buses would arrive into the depot in both alternatives and file into the parking spots in a first in first out
operation pulling in from the west and then facing east while charging. Each alternative has either one or
three charging islands where SCE can deliver underground service to their pad mounted transformers and
switchboards, with 480 V power served to the 325 kW chargers. Power would be delivered in cable trays
from the chargers to the pantographs above the bus parking spots. An overhead structure is planned to
support the cable trays, the overhead pantographs, and future solar arrays. Alternative 2 uses
approximately 60% less infrastructure but requires existing labor to move buses overnight. In both cases
each charger would serve two parking spots; however, Alternative 1 requires significantly more
infrastructure. Once the charger completes charging the first vehicle in position (A), the charger would
switch over to the second vehicle in position (B) within 2 hours. However, under Alternative 2, once the
buses in A position are charged a second set of vehicles would be moved into the A position while the
buses in the B position continue to charge with B vehicles following the pattern of A vehicles once
charged. This would continue until all buses are charged. The operational assessment of the recommended

alternative, Alternative 2, is described in Section 10 of this report.

Foothill Transit 8-11 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Figure 8-6: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Alternative 1 (High Capital + No Depot Labor)

140 - 40' Buses

PAFINE ETALL LINE T MATCH EXSTIHE —

'k
%

£WOL TSIV AR AR T WL COLUMMAT CONTL,

¥ 0K CLUARRANGE FI0M DU PO COLEMN
7 S0 S0 CRLEARAMCE. T MATCH EXISTIG

LBy

.
1 BRI AL WIOTH 70 AT 05T e !L

EQUIPENT.
LA

ST CE FOF CHARGHE |
T 1 AL Dot YRR LW

R0 MORNTLL THANES LA Y
e s .

Tal : 140 Chi 28 Reserve
"
e i
1
1
|
|
|
! H
i
! //f:.'.r:.;.'.‘.'.“"mm
:
| e / E

s '

s

i s ' was

[ R Y 1 PEEFT PRI PEEEEEEEEY I PR )

T i
=ms ' =R ' wrm " wns e wBs |
Tk i h AMGLLD) DU WST (R DAIED LAST
— ey T ALLOW FCH EMTRIY 0SS 0GR
N wwm | s s ' -
_____________________________ Fihno it e e
TT T l : ;\
FESERNEDAREA FOR
ST

F
| s

S

| ) ]
T, s L 2 P ot Bt S -

i — = TrEEREE R 5 &
| =S h oS ] RS “ns |

| T T = T -

i s i s i oo oo i

I!
L
R %

|
H
1

B L Py M
i

|
L
-
e amarara S

s

VAULTS.

POMONA CHARGING LAYOUT

Foothill Transit

8-12

Burns & McDonnell



Depot Physical Layout Assessment

Final

In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Figure 8-7: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Alternative 2 (Low Capital + Existing Depot Labor)

130 - 40° Buses
Target:

40 Chargers Serving 80 Charging Stalls

60 Parked
28 Reserve

LEASEE LD FOM

-

Conimm a CETER, L
O %

R LR P T SR
7 00 HO0 CLEARANCE T0 WATOS DNSTSG

H

LLLLELELELELR

POMONA CHARGING LAYOUT

Burns & McDonnell

8-13

Foothill Transit



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Physical Layout Assessment

For both the Arcadia and Pomona depots, the cost to provide a pantograph connection point for every
operating bus and a dual port charger for every 2 pantographs is almost 70% more costly than the
alternative of providing nearly 1 charger and 2 pantographs for every 4 buses. The estimated cost in 2019
dollars (no inflation) to construct each alternative at Arcadia and Pomona is provided in Table 8-2. The
existing depot fueling labor that refuels the buses overnight today is expected to be able to transition from
fueling CNG buses to moving BEB’s from parking to charging areas over the next 10 years. It is
estimated that a total of 8 depot operators would be needed at Arcadia and 6 at Pomona, only over the
night shifts, at a cost of $100,000 per person (2019$). These alternatives’ costs are also considered and
summarized in Table 8-2. This cost analysis further supports the decision to pursue the low capital +

depot labor alternative.

Table 8-2: Electric Bus Charging Infrastructure Alternatives Cost Analysis

Alternate 1 Alternate 2
High Capital + No Low Capital + Depot
Labor Labor
Recommended
Arcadia Depot $102,880,000 $59,560,000
Peak Vehicle Requirement 190 190
Charging Stalls 190 110
Chargers 95 55
Pomona Depot $71,390,000 $43,930,000
Peak Vehicle Requirement 130 130
Charging Stalls 130 80
Chargers 65 40
Total Depots $174,270,000 $103,490,000
Peak Vehicle Requirement 320 320
Charging Stalls 320 190
Chargers 160 95
Arcadia Depot Operators 8
Pomona Depot Operators 6
Total Depot Operators 14
Depot Operator Cost Per Year $100,000
Total Depot Operator Cost Per Year $1,400,000
Total Depot Operator Cost 25 Year NPV $26,700,000
Total Capital + Labor Cost $174,270,000 $130,190,000
Foothill Transit 8-14 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development

9.0 DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE PHASING AND DEVELOPMENT

Foothill Transit plans to convert the existing CNG bus fleet of Arcadia and Pomona to an all-electric bus
fleet over the next 12 years with a target of nearly 100 percent of its routes being fully electrified by 2030
and all CNG buses being removed from the site by 2032. The infrastructure phasing will need to coincide
with the procurement of buses as planned in the fleet replacement schedule provided by Foothill Transit
otherwise the buses will not be able to meet their routes. The cumulative number of electric buses by

depot is presented in Figure 9-1.

Figure 9-1: Foothill Transit Fleet Replacement Plan and Cumulative Electric Buses by Depot

250.0

201.0 201.0

200.0 187.0 189.0
50.0 0 @52.0 #52.0
150.0 1420 -
131
112.0
1010 101
93.0
100.0
790 790 o0 20
49.0
50.0 0.0
29.0 6.0
140 170 130 130 I 40 B0 I
1661 Inis I

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

B Arcadia ebus Cummulative Additions B Pomona ebhus Cummulative Additions

[1] Foothill fleet replacement plan as of March 2019

As presented in Section 8 of this report, the recommended infrastructure scenario is to use Alternative 2
which includes installing a total of 55 chargers and 110 pantographs at Arcadia and 40 chargers and 80
pantographs at Pomona. The timing of the when the infrastructure is needed is outlined in Table 9-1 with
a description of each infrastructure deployment option following.

Foothill Transit 9-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development

Table 9-1: Electric Bus Charging Infrastructure Requirements

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033
Arcadia ebus Cummulative Additions 14 17 19 19 29 49 79 79 87 93 101 101 131 187 189 201 201
Pomona ebus Cummulative Additions - - - - - - 14 14 26 40 82 112 142 150 150 152 152
Total ebus Cummulative Additions 14 17 19 19 29 49 93 93 113 133 183 213 273 337 339 353 353
Arcadia New CummulativePantographs - - - - - 6 16 32 32 36 38 42 42 42 58 86 110
Pomona New CummulativePantographs - - - - - - - 8 8 14 20 42 56 72 76 76 80
Total New CummulativePantographs - - - - - 6 16 40 40 50 58 84 98 114 134 162 190
Arcadia New CummulativeChargers - - - - - 3 8 16 16 18 19 21 21 21 29 43 55
Pomona New CummulativeChargers - - - - - - - 4 4 7 10 21 28 36 38 38 40
Total New CummulativeChargers - - - - - 3 8 20 20 25 29 42 49 57 67 81 95
Arcadia Depot BUILD PILOT (14 buses) BUILD PH1 BUILD PH2
Pomona Depot BUILD PH1 BUILD PH2

[1] Based on Foothill fleet replacement plan as of March 2019

9.1 Depot Infrastructure Deployment Options and Plan
The deployment of this infrastructure can be executed by either a 2-Step Plan (Option 1) or a Year by
Year Plan (Option 2).

Under the 2-step plan, Foothill Transit would build out major civil and electrical infrastructure in two
phases. At Arcadia for example, all chargers and pantographs required between 2021 and 2026 would be
built in 2021. Similarly, all remaining infrastructure for the latter years would be constructed under a
separate contract in 2026. This approach would be the easiest to contract and manage and would enable
all infrastructure to be in place when buses arrive. However, it would require a significant amount of

infrastructure up front, at a large upfront cost, which would not be fully utilized until 2025.

Under the Year-by-Year plan, Foothill Transit would build out major civil and electrical infrastructure in
two phases at each site. The chargers and pantographs would be installed year by year to align with the
bus procurement plan. This approach would be slightly more complex but would result in right sizing the
infrastructure to the bus procurement requirements and reduce the amount of upfront capital spending. It
would further allow Foothill Transit to grow into electrification gradually and leave flexibility for new

technologies and to adopt lessons learned throughout deployment.

Based on the capital spending constraints of Foothill Transit, the preferred and recommended method for
infrastructure deployment is to install all infrastructure using a year by year approach. Figure 9-2 and
Figure 9-3 present the Year-by-Year infrastructure deployment of Arcadia and Pomona respectively. Full

size versions of these layouts can be found as an Appendix to the report.

Foothill Transit 9-2 Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development

Figure 9-2: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Phasing Plan (Year by Year Deployment)

Gty 30 - 43" Double Deck Duses
aty Buses.
Target: 190 Bus Lecations ACHIEVED: 190 Bus Locations.
112 Total Charging Spaces, 58 Chargers 110 Total Charging Spaces. 55 Chargers

80 Spots for 40 Buses, 46 Spats for 40" Buses,

32 Bpots for 4¥ DO Buses 64 Spots for BOTH 407 80 & 47 DD Buses
TH Parking Spates 8- DD Bus Parking 5talls

T2 48 Bus Parking Spaces

i Mo Reservs Scheduled.

- 00 Buses

Foothill Transit

Burns & McDonnell



1 v oM Y EE.
P LW PN SAATE

Burns & McDonnell

Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development

Final

In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Figure 9-3: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Phasing Plan (Year by Year Deployment)

40 Chargers Serving 80 Charging Stalls

60 Parked
26 Reserve

130 - 40° Buses

Target:

-

L L o o

P Ry CLEAANCS T AT T

e

mmﬂa:-“-‘

BTN

PROu o
H war

e i

 amam e

ﬂ\ - - -
\ T THT
] i FRE ]
“ ¥ LR
m & TET
i b §56
I S ]
e —Al
s KTET
IR RE ] [ 2 FRE
L v e
bt i 1
mm‘mﬁ ...........
| T TET
shasd i dei
LR RS ] ¥ § 0y
il |
e e e e e i et P b Pt bt P e i i o i iy s it —_— < :
3 7 fTHT
IR ! i R
sl e b i | ¥ Jeie
ILN1EL i i R
e \ ................ it 0| P

PHASE LEGEND

£ WD USRI A AT T WK COLUMY AT OENTERL

7 oy s s o conamn ————————— | !
7 08 08 CLUMANCE 10 WASCH ER3TP

[LLLLLLELLLLY

e —

FOMONA CHARGING LAYOUT
———

9-4

Foothill Transit



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Infrastructure Phasing and Development

9.2 Depot Infrastructure Costs

For each depot, the project team prepared a bottom up cost estimate based on the scope and infrastructure
required. The scope and costs were determined by year by depot. Additionally, the scope was also
segregated between those infrastructure costs that will be directly paid by Foothill Transit, the installed
costs of the chargers paid by Foothill Transit that could potentially be partially funded by rebates from
SCE, and the cost of the electrical infrastructure that is eligible to be 100 percent paid for by SCE under
the Charge Ready Transit Program. The detailed quantities and costs by year by depot ($2019) are
provided as an Appendix to this report with the summary for each depot provided below. The total net
cost to Foothill for the Arcadia depot with inflation is $69.9 million ($53 million in $2019). The total net
cost to Foothill for the Pomona depot with inflation is $50.7 million ($39.9 million in $2019). The total
Foothill cost requirements of $120.6 million developed within this section serve as an input into Section
13 Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis of this report.

Figure 9-4: Arcadia Depot Infrastructure Cost (Year by Year Deployment)
$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000

$10,000,000

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000 I . I .
5,

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032
M Foothill Depot Infrastructure Costs B Foothill Depot Charger Costs SCE Depot Infrastructure Costs

Figure 9-5: Pomona Depot Infrastructure Cost (Year by Year Deployment)

$16,000,000
$14,000,000

$12,000,000

$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000 I I I I
$-

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032
M Foothill Depot Infrastructure Costs M Foothill Depot Charger Costs SCE Depot Infrastructure Costs

Foothill Transit 9-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

10.0 DEPOT OPERATIONAL ASSESSMENT

The recommended depot charging infrastructure provides the charging capacity to allow Foothill Transit
to fully electrify its bus fleet by 2030. To validate that the proposed infrastructure plan is feasible from a
depot operations standpoint, a series of investigations and analyses was conducted to validate feasibility.

This section of the report summarizes the depot operational assessments conducted.

10.1 Review of Critical Operational and Non-Operational Concerns at Depots
Various critical various critical operational and non-operational concerns at the two depots were

considered. These items are reviewed and are summarized in the following subsections.

10.1.1 Critical Travel Lanes, Entrances, and Exits

Figure 8-1 and Figure 8-2 show critical travel lanes within the depots and entry/exit points. Preliminary
infrastructure plans for each depot retain or provide an acceptable alternative for each critical travel lane.
Buses will continue to enter and exit the Arcadia Depot via Peck Road at the north end of the yard. Buses

will continue to enter and exit the Pomona Depot via East End Avenue at the south end of the yard.

10.1.2 Remote Bus Storage Concerns

Overnight storage of all buses within bus depots is the preferred option in the transit industry. The
proposed charging layouts for electric buses in the Arcadia and Pomona Depots, represented in Figure 8-6
and Figure 8-7, have space for overnight storage of all Foothill Transit operating buses (190 at Arcadia
and 130 at Pomona). However, the movement of buses overnight may be of concern in specific areas of
the depot where bus movement may be impeded by spare buses parked along the easements. If spare
buses are parked in the maintenance shop overnight this may not be an issue similar to the existing depot
logistics. If additional buses are procured to meet a specified peak reserve ratio, those additional spare

buses may need to be parked elsewhere.

10.1.3 Bus Staging Concerns

The proposed layout of the Arcadia Depot is like its current layout. Foothill Transit does not consider the
proposed infrastructure at the Arcadia Depot to be a critical concern. At the Pomona Depot, the proposed
layout stores four or five buses in a single row, eliminating a center travel lane. This change reduces the
flexibility of assigning buses for morning pullout. The new Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) system
will simplify the morning pullout process by providing dispatch with the location of each bus in the yard.

Foothill Transit does not consider the proposed change at the Pomona Depot to be a critical concern.

Foothill Transit 10-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

10.1.4 Fueling, Charging, and Washing/Cleaning Concerns

Foothill Transit has no critical concerns regarding bus fueling, charging, or bus washing. The proposed
layouts retain space for CNG fueling during the transition to an all-electric operation. Once the transition
is complete, the CNG fueling space could be used for other purposes such as back-up power generation
which is described in Section 12 of this report. The one non-critical concern in this area is the need for

additional “spotters” who are used whenever a bus is backing up in the yard.

10.1.5 Space for Relief/Supervisor Vehicles and Employee Parking

The only major concern identified by the project team and Foothill Transit is related to adequate parking
space for employee and relief vehicles, especially at Arcadia Depot. Employees currently park in the
space reserved on the north side of Arcadia Depot where double-decker buses will be stored and charged.
This space should still be available during the day, but it has been raised as a concern. Foothill Transit
has approximately 30 relief vehicles that are used to bring operators to and from relief points on the
routes. Parking for relief vehicles is a concern at Arcadia Depot because most of the buses at Arcadia stay
out all day and thus require operator reliefs in the field. There are also vehicles that are used by

Supervisors.

10.1.6 Depot Operator Labor

The recommended infrastructure and operational plan will require the depots to continue to move buses
overnight. There are currently depot utility workers located at both depots that are responsible for moving
buses to the CNG refueling station overnight. As the bus fleet transitions to 100% electric buses, Arcadia
will need to maintain approximately 5 depot utility workers, per 8-hour night shift, that are moving buses
to and from staging areas to charging areas. This is based on a bus operator being able to move one bus
every 5 minutes from one side of the depot to the other which yields 60 buses moved per hour. Pomona
will require 4 depot utility workers per shift. This shift from CNG refueling activities to electric bus
movement activities will occur over the next 10 years. The day shift will not require depot utility workers
to move buses since there will be more than enough chargers available during the mid-day charging

periods.

10.1.7 Summary

There are no critical operational concerns, either currently or for the proposed charging layouts at the
Arcadia and Pomona Depots. Foothill Transit recognizes that storing four or five buses in a single lane is
a change from current procedures but does not view this as a concern. The only concern raised relates to

employee parking and parking for relief vehicles at Arcadia Depot.

Foothill Transit 10-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

10.2 Pomona Depot Charging and Operational Plan

The proposed charging infrastructure for the Pomona depot has been sized and designed to meet the

minimum fleet charging requirements based on the current and future fleet operational schedules. The

Pomona depot hourly operating schedule was considered with regards to how the buses would enter

through the depot, charge during the required charging cycle, and then move to a non-charging location

within the depot. In 2033, the Pomona depot flow of operations will consist of the following:

1.
2.

A -
B -

Buses enter and stop at the vault to empty the farebox

If a bus is not scheduled to be washed that night, it will proceed to its overnight parking space.

Buses will begin parking in Lane 1A, followed by 2A, 3A and so on through 8A and then the B lanes,

lined up facing east.

C-
D-

If a bus is scheduled to be washed, it will park temporarily in lanes 11-14.

Depot personnel will wash the buses and park them in the overnight parking spaces, moving from

south to north. In 2033, there will be 130 operating electric buses, 80 charging spaces in Lanes 1

through 16, and 40 chargers. The sequence of operations will be as follows.

4.1.

4.2

4.3.

4.4,

(9pm — 11 pm) The first 40 buses that arrive in the depot will be parked in the A lanes and will be
charged first while the next 40 that arrive will be parked in the B lanes. The first 40 buses that
arrive will charge first. The second group of 40 buses will not be charging but will be hooked up
to the pantographs ready to charge as they arrive.

(11pm - 1 am) At the end of the first 2 hours, the first 40 buses in the A lanes will be charged,
and the second group of 40 buses parked in the B lanes will begin charging for 2 hours. While the
40 buses in the B lanes are charging, the first group of 40 buses in the A lanes that are fully
charged will be moved to overnight parking in the north section of the depot while the third group
of 40 electric buses initially parked in the north section of the depot are moved into the A lanes
for charging.

(1am — 3am) At the end of the second 2-hour time block, the second group of 40 buses in the B
lanes will be charged, and the third group of 40 buses parked in the A lanes will begin charging
for 2 hours. While the third group of 40 buses parked in the A lanes are charging, the second
group of 40 buses in the B lanes that are fully charged will be moved to overnight parking in the
north section of the depot while the remaining buses are moved into the B lanes to prepare for
charging.

(3 am — 5am) The last 14 buses in the B lanes will be charged for the last two-hour time block.

The buses in the A lanes and B lanes will remain until dispatched in the morning.

Foothill Transit 10-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

The graphical representation of the bus flow throughout the Pomona depot for hours 9 pm — 11 pm and 11
pm —1 am is provided in the following Figures. Hours 1 am - 3 am and 3 am - 5 am are similar.

Figure 10-1: Pomona Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (9 pm — 11 pm)

Bus Yard Time
21:00 - 23:00

A Row Charging

Charging Summary

Total buses charging - 40 buses
All “A” Rows (total of 8 rows) will
charge buses

PARKING STALL L

£ RIS R

L e it i A

U STAGIE N PREING
AL OB prOmE 2100

e i )

JTTTTT
E

POMONA CHARGING LAYOUT

Foothill Transit 10-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Depot Operational Assessment

Figure 10-2: Pomona Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (11pm — 1 am)

Bus Yard Time
23:00 - 01:00

B Row Charging
Charging Summary
Total buses charging - 40 buses

All “B” Rows (total of 8 rows) will
charge buses

~ \W
Vo
I

D-8USTO BUS WASH

BN MOVING B3 T SOW A 108
[rrpe—y

B-BUS NOT SCHEDULED FORBUS | |
WasH

111

B VG RGBS 4 B A
T ASSECAED ARG JUTING &1 1400,

D-BUSTO BUS WasH

- SCHEDULED BUS WASH.
TEMPORARY PARKING.

5-BUS NOT SCHEDULED FOR BUS.
WaSH

POMONA CHARGING LAYOUT

10.3 Arcadia Depot Charging and Operational Plan

The proposed charging infrastructure for the Arcadia depot has been sized and designed to meet the

minimum fleet charging requirements based on the current and future fleet operational schedules. The

Arcadia depot hourly operating schedule was considered with regards to how the buses would enter

through the depot, charge during the required charging cycle, and then move to a non-charging location

within the depot. In 2033, the Arcadia depot flow of operations will consist of the following:

Foothill Transit

10-5

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

1. A. Buses enter and stop at the vault to empty the farebox

2. B.Ifabusis not scheduled to be washed that night, it will proceed to its overnight parking space.

Buses will begin parking in Lane 1A, followed by 2A, 3A and so on through 16A. Once the north

depot A lanes are full, buses will proceed to lanes 17A to 29A and park facing east. Once the A lane

is filled with buses, additional buses entering the depot would proceed to fill the B lanes in a similar

order.

3. C.Ifabus is scheduled to be washed, it will park temporarily in the overnight parking area south of

the maintenance building.

4. D. Depot personnel will wash the buses and park them in the overnight parking spaces, moving from

east to west. In 2033, there will be 190 electric buses in operation, 110 charging spaces and 55

chargers. The sequence of operations will be as follows.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

(9pm — 11 pm) The first 55 buses that arrive in the depot will be parked in the A lanes and will be
charged first while the next 55 that arrive will be parked in the B lanes. The first 55 buses that
arrive will charge first. The second group of 55 buses will not be charging but will be hooked up
to the pantographs ready to charge.

(11pm — 1 am) At the end of the first 2 hours, the first 55 buses in the A lanes will be charged,
and the second group of 55 buses parked in the B lanes will begin charging for 2 hours. While the
55 buses in the B lanes are charging, the first group of 55 buses in the A lanes that are fully
charged will be moved to overnight parking in the south section of the depot while the third group
of 55 electric buses initially parked in the south section are moved into the A lanes to prepare for
charging.

(1am — 3am) At the end of the second 2-hour time block, the second group of 55 buses in the B
lanes will be charged, and the third group of 55 buses parked in the A lanes will begin charging
for 2 hours. While the third group of 55 buses parked in the A lanes are charging, 25 of the
second group of 55 buses in the B lanes that are fully charged will be moved to the south section
of the depot while the remaining 25 buses parked in the south are moved into the B lanes to
prepare for charging.

(3 am — 5am) The last 25 buses in the B lanes will be charged for the last two-hour time block.
The buses in the A lanes and B lanes will remain until 5am. All buses will be charged before 5

am.

The graphical representation of the bus flow throughout the Arcadia depot is provided in the following

Figures.

Foothill Transit 10-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

Figure 10-3: Arcadia Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (9 pm — 11 pm)

g

/m—-.::mm

———min

f-‘#ﬂ!ﬁ

£
L]
i
~
=1
prs mm’lﬂnﬁlwlﬂﬂ“n.

PHASE 4 (009

rase 2s ooy [
PusEzsoy ||
Prase2T oo 7]
Lt T

[
iy 0

& Chargng

oLl P g - §3 i
A4 B ot = % resun) il change Secee.

Foothill Transit 10-7 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final

Depot Operational Assessment

Figure 10-4: Arcadia Depot 2033 Charging and Operational Bus Flow (11 pm — 1 am)

e

musEzs ) [
27N 7]
A 28 GO

e Tand T
g

b Chargg

ot et shargeg - 53 e
A R [t o8 29 ] el g B

~O

Foothill Transit 10-8

Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Depot Operational Assessment

As demonstrated in the figures above, the bus movements being conducted overnight to move buses from
parking to charging areas will require operators to closely monitor charging levels of the buses during
each two-hour period. The assumed size of the S2 bus is 540 kWh and it is planned to be charged with a
325-kW charger over a 2-hour time period. The bus operating schedule developed and presented in
Section 4 of this report assumes that buses never return to the depot with less than 10 percent state of
charge and charge up to 95 percent state of charge. The most energy that would be delivered into a bus
over each 2-hour time period is 459 kWh which provides an ample buffer to account for various charging

circumstances and bus movement delays overnight.

The peak charging requirements and bus charging logistics during the middle of the day at each depot are
different from the overnight charging and logistics due to the far lower number of vehicles returning to

the depot during the middle of the day. During the mid-day charging hours, buses will arrive in the depot
and park at one of the charging stations throughout each of the depots so the bus can be recharged back to

a 95 percent state of charge such that it is ready to for its scheduled bus runs in the afternoon.

Foothill Transit 10-9 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment

11.0 UTILITY GRID INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT

It is critical to understand the capacity of the local electric distribution network when considering a full-
scale electrification of a bus fleet of over 350 buses. Foothill Transit bus depots are located in different
cities that are both served by Southern California Edison (SCE). Engaging the local electric utility early in
the planning stages for a full fleet electrification gives the utility an understanding of how load growth
from bus electrification may impact the distribution grid and enables them to plan how future load growth
may impact their planed upgrades and rate fillings. In this section the local distribution networks serving
both Arcadia and Pomona depots were evaluated and a summary of SCE programs available to Foothill

transit is discussed.

11.1 Identification of SCE’s Distribution Grid Infrastructure

The Arcadia Yard is located at 5640 Peck Rd. in Arcadia CA. Electric service is provided by SCE from a
16 kV distribution circuit named Powder. The circuit is stepped down to 16 kV from 66 kV at Rio Hondo
Substation. Rio Hondo Substation is in Irwindale, CA and located near the crossing of Live Oak Ave and
Rivergrade Ave. Figure 11-1 provides an overview of the substation and circuit that serves the Arcadia

depot.

Figure 11-1: Arcadia Yard Local Distribution Network

i = -

ayflower vy ) E
Village e y o
q\ u ‘-f - = ﬂ"‘w ”
T S g Vo &
Lark® & = ;
1 g
3 5
[}
Ly o) &
> J# 7
\\ 4”“. 7
i o & ]
X & it J P
i \\
Grapa, i 4 -
s ~ KL
I : A
Arcadia Depot Rio Hondo Substation Il {]
Powder Circuit |
il o
<
[ @
&
: _I"?"”f-.f ] idr 7
e U | it
5 Ritrsy, J / e
ik & / .
. i
& < < & ™h | ounia 51
£ : i &
< A & 5 o e Lo
2 B g @ L3 t,? f Benbow 5t |
& r3 & L =
S . é e 3

L 3 Cap; e A
K e . r e, _,:QQ = o

Grace p

Hornbr,

Foothill Transit 11-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment

SCE indicated to BMcD that as of November 2018, they should have sufficient capacity on the circuits
serving Arcadia depot to serve the load growth over the next few years. SCE will integrate Arcadia’s
future load growth into their planning for the area so that they can support the planned growth. Foothill

will not be responsible for any upgrades to the Powder Circuit resulting from Foothill Transit’s load
growth.

The Pomona Foothill Transit yard is located at 200 S East End Ave. in Pomona CA. Electric service is
provided by SCE from a 12 kV distribution circuit named Bandera. The circuit is stepped down to 12 kV
from 66 kV at Francis Substation. Francis Substation is in the northeast corner of S East End Ave and

Francis Ave in Pomona. Figure 11-2 provides an overview of the substation and circuit that serves the
Pomona depot.

Figure 11-2: Pomona Yard Local Distribution Network

[ u & 3
¥ -
e AVE
b Hi
= ta
— a :|
% 2\ E 3rd S
b I k o
v =
.- i n
E-Ath S Pgmona Depot
Mission Bivd
[I°7} )
-
taFloras &
al 3
E Tth St o
o ! a '; = Merle
- > - =
- < . Vista Bonita
EOth S5 |5 i~ - WA
=4 1 ;:
¥ < Clair St
¥ g > 'Via del Norte
i = o
3] @ "
=g AN ]
8 s w o Via i
rdn F -] 3 < W o
ampton. D, 7. z =
L o 3 &
s o s
S
@& paachw ookl r ipa-Bive
] p—
Boyer St Elm St
Francis Substation [ ]
/_ Bandera Circuit
| Maple St
¥

" C FTaNRpT Ay &

SCE indicated to BMcD that as of November 2018, they should have enough capacity on the circuits

serving Pomona depot to serve the load growth over the short term. SCE will integrate Pomona’s future

Foothill Transit 11-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment

load growth into their planning for the area so that they can support the planned growth. Foothill will not

be responsible for any upgrades to the Bandera Circuit resulting from Foothill Transit’s load growth.

It is worth noting that SCE prepares an “Annual System Reliability Report” that it files with the
California Public Utilities Commission (*CPUC”) on an annual basis. For 2017, Powder circuit serving
Arcadia depot and Bandera circuit serving Pomona depot were not listed as the top 1% worst performing

circuits.

11.2 Forecasted Bus Load at Arcadia and Pomona Yard

In November 2018, the project team that included members of Foothill Transit and Burns & McDonnell
conducted a conference call with SCE representatives. The general discussion included a conversation
regarding the expected load growth projections during the electrification of Foothill Transit’s bus fleet.
Coordination with SCE is continuous but based on the estimates provided from a load forecast analysis
completed during this study, the combined peak use by 2030 is nearly 16 MW. With load management
applications, the Arcadia depot will peak at 8.4 MW in 2030. Pomona will observe a peak of 7.4 MW for
a complete electrification of buses. The projection, by year, shown in Figure 11-3 represents peak demand
caused by bus charging with 100 kW chargers and load management after 9 pm. Figure 11-3 was
provided to SCE.

Figure 11-3: Load Forecast as of November 2018

Arcadia Pomona
Year Incremental Cumulative Peak Incremental Cumulative Peak
Buses Buses Demand Buses Buses Demand
Charging Charging (MW Charging Charging (MW}
2020 20 20 0.7 14 14 0.7
— 2021 20 40 15 14 28 14
5 2022 20 a0 22 14 42 2
& 2023 20 80 3 14 56 27
2024 20 100 3.7 14 70 3.4
2025 13 113 45 12 a2 4.1
2026 14 127 5.3 11 a3 47
E 2027 13 140 6.1 12 105 5.4
g 2028 13 153 6.8 12 117 6.1
2029 14 157 7.6 11 128 0.7
2030 13 180 2.4 12 140 74

The load forecast in Figure 11-3 was revised and updated based on the analysis completed in Section 4 of
this report where 325 kW chargers were determined as the best option for charging electric buses
operating on Foothill Transit routes. The revised load forecast providing number of electric buses, number

of chargers installed, max connected load, and optimized peak demand is provided in Figure 11-4.

Foothill Transit 11-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment

Charging is assumed to occur after 9pm. Arcadia’s 2030 peak load forecast increased from 8,400 kW to
13,975 kW. Pomona’s 2030 peak load forecast increased from 7,400 kW to 7,800 kW. These revised load

forecasts should be provided to SCE when Foothill is prepared to move forward with the project.

Figure 11-4: Revised Load Forecast as of March 2019

vear | Incrememal L L o Optimized QISR x Optimized

MNew Doars % (onneded Peak Demand BUTETTE.SERS Conneded Peak Demarnd
Buses e Bunes

2020 19 -

2021 10 i3 3 3 a5 975 [ [ [ 0 .

2022 0 49 ] B 1600 L0 [ 0 [ [ .

01 30 9 16 16 5,200 5, 200 14 14 4 3 1,300 a7

2004 0 = 16 16 50 5.0 1] 14 4 x 1 300 75

205 8 a7 18 18 5,850 5,850 12 16 7 5 LI15 L6215

202 [ a3 19 19 6175 6175 14 40 10 T 3,250 LITS

2017 ] 10 11 21 6825 6,825 a1 82 2l 14 6,825 4,550

203 a 10 1 21 GERS GE2S 0 112 8 18 9,100 5 850

208 30 11 9 29 9415 9425 3 142 36 23 11700 1475

20X 55 187 4 43 13 975 13975 g 150 ] 2 12,350 7,800

2001 2 189 a3 43 13 575 13,575 (1] 150 k] F- | 12,350 7800

2032 iz 201 51 43 16575 13875 F 152 a5 Fo 12350 7800

2013 0 201 55 43 17, 575 13,875 [ 152 & Fo 13,000 7,800

11.3 Summary of SCE’s Charge Ready Program

Foothill Transit is eligible to participate in the SCE Charge Ready Transit Bus Program. Preliminary
discussions with SCE in November 2018, indicate that the deployment of make-ready electric vehicle
charging infrastructure may result in some cost recovery. Participating transit agencies are eligible to
receive rebates that help offset electric bus charging equipment. In part, program eligibility includes the

following:

¢ Non-residential customer of SCE

e Purchase proof of new plug-in electric buses (w/in 5 years after installation of chargers)
e  One bus route that impacts disadvantaged community

e Agreement to use EV Time-of-Use rates

e Easement rights granted to SCE

The electrification of bus fleets equates to electric load growth for SCE. The increased load resulting from
Foothill Transit bus electrification will not result in line-extension charges. SCE aggregates this expected
load growth with other customer growth to estimate future infrastructure requirements. SCE will pay
100% of the electrical costs for the distribution line modifications, distribution service transformers, and

service drop leading up to the electric chargers located within the depot. Capital expenditures incurred by

Foothill Transit 11-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Utility Grid Infrastructure Assessment

SCE will be applied to the distribution system rate base through typical rate proceedings. SCE will review
the proposed depot charging configurations developed within this study and provide electrical service to
the chargers based on designs prepared by their engineering design team. All of the electrical equipment
and circuits leading up to the 325-kW charger will be owned, operated, and maintained by SCE. Foothill
Transit will receive and pay for service at the meter on the low side of the transformer under the
appropriate SCE EV TOU rate.

Foothill Transit 11-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

12.0 RENEWABLE ENERGY SUPPLY AND BACK UP POWER PLAN

Multiple onsite and offsite renewable options were considered when determining the best path for Foothill
Transit to implement renewable energy sources and back up generation for its fleet operations. The
assessment started by evaluating the energy requirements of Foothill Transit as it transitions its fleet to
100% BEB’s. Once the energy requirements through the different phases of implementation were
established, an energy implementation plan was developed to demonstrate how Foothill Transit could
successfully source energy from 100% renewable resources. Onsite generation was evaluated and
developed by looking at how much solar and storage could be physically located at the Arcadia and
Pomona depots. SCE’s long-term renewable percentage mandate was evaluated along with the potential
for sourcing renewable energy from purchase power agreements (PPA’s). Lastly, since Foothill Transit’s
operations are critical to serving its community, back up generation options such as diesel and natural gas
generators were explored and developed to allow Foothill Transit to continue to provide service even

when grid power is unavailable.

12.1 Foothill Transit Energy Requirements

The forecasted electrical energy requirements presented in Table 12-1 and Table 12-2 indicate that the
Arcadia and Pomona depots will gradually ramp up to a total electrical energy requirement of 29,222
MWh/year and 16,468 MWh/year with peak demands of 13.9 MW and 7.8 MW by 2030, respectively.
The forecasted energy requirements by depot are based on the fleet electrification energy analysis
including the number of 325 kW chargers required at each yard to support the electrification of buses for
each year until 100% electrification in 2030. The highlighted cells in each table represent when new

phases of EV overhead charging infrastructure are installed (i.e. 2021 and 2026 at Arcadia).

Foothill Transit 12-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-1: Arcadia Depot Load and Energy Growth

New Total Foothill Bus Power Foothill Bus Energy

Year Busses Busses Demand (kW) (kwh)
2020 0 0 0 0
2021 19 19 1,398 2,922,200
2022 30 49 3,604 7,536,200
2023 30 79 5,811 12,150,200
2024 0 79 5,811 12,150,200
2025 8 87 6,399 13,380,600
2026 6 93 6,840 14,303,400
2027 8 101 7,429 15,533,800
2028 0 101 7,429 15,533,800
2029 30 131 9,635 20,147,800
2030 56 187 13,754 28,760,600
2031 3 190 13,975 29,222,000

Table 12-2: Pomona Depot Load and Energy Growth

New Total Foothill Bus Power Demand Foothill Bus Energy

Year Busses Busses (kW) (kwh)
2020 0 0 0 0
2021 0 0 0 0
2022 0 0 0 0
2023 13 13 780 1,752,200
2024 1 14 840 1,886,985
2025 12 26 1,560 3,504,400
2026 14 40 2,400 5,391,385
2027 42 82 4,920 11,052,338
2028 30 112 6,720 15,095,877
2029 5 117 7,020 15,769,800
2030 13 130 7,800 17,522,000
2031 0 130 7,800 17,522,000

Foothill Transit 12-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

12.2 Foothill Transit Renewable Power Supply Plan

Based on the estimated load growth and energy requirements from the phased bus electrification plan,
Foothill Transit could work towards obtaining renewable power supply from three different sources as
outlined below. For each source of renewable energy supply, an implementation plan is also provided.
The balance of loads and resources from 2021 to 2045 are presented in Table 12-3 and Table 12-4 and
Figure 12-1. The SCE Non-Renewable Energy values shown in the tables below represent the non-
renewable portion of energy purchased at each of the facilities. The basic components of the renewable

power supply plan are summarized as follows.

1. SCE Renewable Energy - Purchase SCE grid energy which will increase from 30% renewable
(2020) to 100% renewable (2045).

2. On-Site Renewable Energy - Install on-site solar on overhead charging structures as charging

infrastructure is completed. This can provide roughly 5% of Foothill’s total energy requirement.

3. Off-Site Renewable Energy - Purchase off-site wind energy through a PPA between 2021 and 2041

if economical. This can be used to replace the balance of the SCE non-renewable power.

Foothill Transit 12-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-3: Arcadia Depot Energy Uses and Sources

Arcadia
Vear New Busses | Total Busses Pt:\/?/::hl)lii:;d Foothill Bus Energy | Max On Site Solar |Max On Site Solar SCE Energy (kWh) SCE Renewable | SCE Renewable Rene?n(/::bll\leogéergy
(kW) (kwh) Energy (kW) Energy (kWh) % Energy (kWh) (KWh)

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 30% 0 0

2021 19 19 1,398 2,922,200 467 812,211 2,109,989 33% 696,296 1,413,692
2022 30 49 3,604 7,536,200 467 808,176 6,728,024 36% 2,422,089 4,305,935
2023 30 79 5,811 12,150,200 467 804,156 11,346,044 39% 4,424,957 6,921,087
2024 0 79 5,811 12,150,200 467 800,153 11,350,047 42% 4,767,020 6,583,027
2025 8 87 6,399 13,380,600 467 796,150 12,584,450 45% 5,663,003 6,921,448
2026 6 93 6,840 14,303,400 718 1,228,688 13,074,712 48% 6,275,862 6,798,850
2027 8 101 7,429 15,533,800 718 1,222,516 14,311,284 51% 7,298,755 7,012,529
2028 0 101 7,429 15,533,800 718 1,216,353 14,317,447 54% 7,731,422 6,586,026
2029 30 131 9,635 20,147,800 718 1,210,198 18,937,602 57% 10,794,433 8,143,169
2030 56 187 13,754 28,760,600 718 1,204,043 27,556,557 60% 16,533,934 11,022,623
2031 3 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,197,888 28,024,112 63% 17,543,094 10,481,018
2032 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,191,733 28,030,267 65% 18,275,734 9,754,533
2033 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,185,578 28,036,422 68% 19,008,694 9,027,728
2034 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,179,424 28,042,576 70% 19,741,974 8,300,603
2035 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,173,269 28,048,731 73% 20,475,574 7,573,157
2036 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,167,114 28,054,886 76% 21,209,494 6,845,392
2037 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,160,959 28,061,041 78% 21,943,734 6,117,307
2038 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,154,804 28,067,196 81% 22,678,294 5,388,902
2039 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,148,649 28,073,351 83% 23,413,174 4,660,176
2040 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,142,495 28,079,505 86% 24,148,375 3,931,131
2041 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,136,340 28,085,660 89% 24,883,895 3,201,765
2042 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,130,185 28,091,815 91% 25,619,735 2,472,080
2043 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,124,030 28,097,970 94% 26,355,896 1,742,074
2044 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,117,875 28,104,125 96% 27,092,376 1,011,748
2045 0 190 13,975 29,222,000 718 1,111,720 28,110,280 100% 28,110,280 -

Foothill Transit 12-1 Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-4: Pomona Depot Energy Uses and Sources

Pomona
Foothill Bus . . i SCE Non-
Year New Busses Total Busses | Power Demand Foothill Bus Energy) Max On Site Solar | Max On Site Solar SCE Energy (kWh) | SCE Renewable % SCE Renewable Renewable Energy
(kwh) Energy (kW) Energy (kWh) Energy (kWh)
(kw) (kwh)

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 30% 0 0

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 33% 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 36% 0 0

2023 13 13 780 1,752,200 312 542,634 1,209,566 39% 471,731 737,835
2024 1 14 840 1,886,985 312 539,938 1,347,047 42% 565,760 781,287
2025 12 26 1,560 3,504,400 312 537,252 2,967,148 45% 1,335,217 1,631,931
2026 14 40 2,400 5,391,385 312 534,578 4,856,807 48% 2,331,267 2,525,540
2027 42 82 4,920 11,052,338 624 1,074,537 9,977,802 51% 5,088,679 4,889,123
2028 30 112 6,720 15,095,877 624 1,069,166 14,026,710 54% 7,574,424 6,452,287
2029 5 117 7,020 15,769,800 624 1,063,806 14,705,994 57% 8,382,417 6,323,577
2030 13 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,058,457 16,463,543 60% 9,878,126 6,585,417
2031 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,053,108 16,468,892 63% 10,309,526 6,159,366
2032 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,047,759 16,474,241 65% 10,741,205 5,733,036
2033 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,042,410 16,479,590 68% 11,173,162 5,306,428
2034 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,037,061 16,484,939 70% 11,605,397 4,879,542
2035 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,031,712 16,490,288 73% 12,037,910 4,452,378
2036 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,026,363 16,495,637 76% 12,470,702 4,024,935
2037 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,021,014 16,500,986 78% 12,903,771 3,597,215
2038 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,015,665 16,506,335 81% 13,337,119 3,169,216
2039 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,010,316 16,511,684 83% 13,770,745 2,740,940
2040 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 1,004,967 16,517,033 86% 14,204,649 2,312,385
2041 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 999,618 16,522,382 89% 14,638,831 1,883,552
2042 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 994,269 16,527,731 91% 15,073,291 1,454,440
2043 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 988,919 16,533,081 94% 15,508,030 1,025,051
2044 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 983,570 16,538,430 96% 15,943,046 595,383
2045 0 130 7,800 17,522,000 624 978,221 16,543,779 100% 16,543,779 -

Foothill Transit 12-2 Burns & McDonnell




In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Figure 12-1: Foothill Transit Energy Uses and Sources (kWh)

50,000,000

45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000

5,000,000

¥
W

O DD DO N DO DN DN D 0N DS O DD
PP TIPS PIFTFFPSHFEP LTS
S S G N Sl S S S S S S S S S S S S S S N S S

B 2 MW Offsite Wind PPA B SCE Non-Renewable Bl On Site Solar Bl SCE Renewable

> >
> >

D A

Foothill Transit 12-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

12.3 SCE Renewable Energy Supply Plan

SCE is currently required to provide its retail customers power consisting of 30% renewable energy by
2020 and 100% renewable energy by 2045. This will provide a significant contribution towards meeting
Foothill Transit’s goal of obtaining renewable power supply. Several considerations that should be
discussed as Foothill transitions to renewable energy are provided below:

a. SCE power purchased under EV TOU rate schedules already provides Foothill with power that is
30% renewable. This will increase over time without any incremental investment by Foothill
Transit.

b. As SCE’s power becomes more renewable (solar), the cost will increase and added TOU rate
components will require Foothill Transit to avoid charging during on-peak periods when electricity
prices are high.

c. Currently, it is not necessary for Foothill Transit to commit to procuring on-site solar or off-site
renewable energy contracts or projects with terms extending past 2045 due to SCE’s 100%
renewable portfolio standard (RPS) requirement.

d. Foothill Transit can install on-site solar over the next several years to bridge the renewable gap
until SCE reaches its 100% renewable goal by 2045. Foothill can procure offsite wind energy

through a PPA to meet its goal of economical renewable energy until 2045.

12.4 Arcadia On-Site Renewable Energy Plan

On-site solar is economically viable today under the current EV TOU rate structure for the Arcadia depot
based on analyses completed in this study. The phased site charging infrastructure plan was considered in
the development of on-site solar and it was determined to be feasible to install a 467 kW array in the north
portion of the depot (phase 1 - 2021) and a 251 kW array in the east portion of the depot (phase 2 - 2026).
The size of the PV area is based on estimated area available within the Arcadia Depot to install a suitable
PV array. Stationary battery energy storage, while not economical today, may become a viable option in
the future; therefore space has been included in the future Arcadia infrastructure layout. The
implementation plan to install this solar in coordination with the other overhead charging infrastructure is

outlined below.

1. Phase 1 - Install 467 kW DC solar roof top canopy on top of phase 1 overhead charging structure
in 2021.
a. The phase 1 overhead charging structure should be designed to support solar racking, modules,
and cables.
b. Solar power should be fed directly into SCE’s future EV switchgear to meet EV phase 1 loads.

Switchgear should be designed to accommodate future solar and potential storage systems.

Foothill Transit 12-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

C.

a.

Once Foothill Transit has completed its phase 1 charging structure design, Foothill should
issue an RFP for the solar project. Foothill should request bids for PPA and EPC contracts by
11/2020.

Preliminary design and performance information should be submitted with proposals to
provide a fair evaluation of various module and inverter technologies costs and performance.
Foothill Transit should evaluate the cost of owning the solar project versus purchasing a PPA
contract based on bids provided. The evaluation and selection of the solar provider should be
completed within 1 to 2 months with design and installation following over the next 12
months. If a PPA contract is selected, negotiations can take longer and delay the project.

The Phase 1 solar project should be installed by a competent commercial solar company after
the charging infrastructure is installed. The interconnection application to SCE is typically
provided by the solar company.

Target solar completion by 12/2021.

Phase 2 - Install 251 kW DC solar roof top canopy on top of phase 2 overhead charging structure
in 2026

The phase 2 overhead charging structure should be designed to support solar racking, modules,
and cables.

Solar power should be fed directly into SCE’s future EV switchgear to meet EV phase 2 loads.
Switchgear should be designed to accommodate future solar and potentially storage.

Once Foothill has completed its phase 1 charging structure design, Foothill should issue an
RFP for the solar project. Foothill should request bids for PPA and EPC contracts by 11/2025.
Preliminary design and performance information should be submitted with proposals to
provide a fair evaluation of various module and inverter technology, costs, and performance.
Foothill should evaluate the cost of owning the solar project versus purchasing a PPA contract
based on bids provided. The evaluation and selection of the solar provider should be
completed within 1 to 2 months with design and installation following over the next 12
months. If a PPA contract is selected, negotiations can take longer and can delay the project.
The Phase 2 solar project should be installed by a competent regional commercial solar
company after the charging infrastructure is installed. Target solar completion by 12/2026.

Total phase 1 and 2 on-site solar will provide 4% of Arcadia’s energy requirement in 2030.

Figure 12-2 provides a conceptual overview of where the solar system could be installed for phase 1 and

phase 2. Figure 12-3 provides a typical daily generation and load profile curve of the site in year 1

Foothill Transit 12-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

including only phase 1.

Figure 12-2: Arcadia Depot Solar Layout

.y

Figure 12-3: Arcadia Load and Solar Generation versus Time of Use Rates (Phase 1 - Year 1)

Arcadia Depot (Weekday - Summer)

900.0 $0.45
800.0 $0.40
700.0 $0.35

— 600.0 $030 =

z 2

el S~

T 500.0 $0.25 vx

S 8

-2 4000 $0.20 ¢

t; [J]

i 3

“ 300.0 $0.15 &
200.0 $0.10
100.0 I I I I I I I $0.05

- $0.00
1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
H Power Cost ($/kWh) ——Electricity Load (year 1) (kW) ——Array DC Power (kW)

Foothill Transit 12-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

The economics of installing solar and battery energy storage was analyzed in detail using the National
Renewable Energy Laboratory software called System Advisor Model. Detailed hourly loads, electric
rates, hourly generation yield, project costs, and economic parameters were developed and used to
analyze the economic performance of the solar, storage, and solar/storage options at the Arcadia depot for
phase 1. A summary of the financial results from that analysis are provided in Table 12-5 along with
several of the key assumptions from that analysis. Based on the results of the analysis, Foothill should
only install solar on the BEB charging canopy structures today as the addition of a battery does not
generate enough incremental savings to offset the incremental cost. However, once Foothill Transit
begins to be charged demand charges by SCE, the addition of a battery energy storage system should be
reconsidered as it may generate additional savings to Foothill.

Table 12-5: Arcadia On-Site Solar and Energy Storage Economic Analysis Results

Category Unit Solar Battery Solar+Battery
PV Size [kw] 467.3 - 467.3
Battery Size [kWh] --- 2,000.0 2,000.0
Capacity Factor [%] 20.0% --- 18.1%
Energy Yield (year 1) [kWh/yr] 818,255.0 -110,385.0 741,244.0
Battery Efficiency [%] --- 82.5% 85.3%
Electricity bill without system (year 1) [S] S 41471841 | S 414,718.41 | S 414,718.41
Electricity bill with system (year 1) [S] S 336,182.00 | S 317,762.41 | $ 249,073.41
Net Savings with system (year 1) [S] S 78536.41|S 96,956.00 | S 165,645.00
Capital Cost [S] S 823,913.00 | $1,249,725.00 | $2,071,662.00
Net Present Value [S-NPV] S 492,403.00 | S (446,973.00)| S  25,897.00
Payback period [yrs] 10.7 21.2 16.1
Notes:

Battery was modelled based on Tesla power pack

Battery replacement is required at year 15 ($200/kWh = $400,000)

Solar + Battery CF is less due to solar charging battery

Solar + Battery energy yield is higher than Solar and Battery only due to reduced losses from DC connection
NPV cash flow is based on a Foothill Transit 5% discount rate

Analysis prepared using existing 2019 SCE EV rates

12.5 Pomona On-Site Renewable Energy Plan

On-site solar is economically viable today under the current EV TOU rate structure for the Pomona depot
based on analyses completed in this study. The phased site charging infrastructure plan was considered in
the development of on-site solar and it was determined to be feasible to install a 312 kW array in the north
portion of the depot (phase 1 - 2023) and a 312 kW array in the east portion of the depot (phase 2 - 2027).
The size of the PV area is based on estimated area available within the Pomona depot to install a suitable
PV array. Stationary battery energy storage, while not economical today, may be a viable option in the

future and therefore space has been included in the future Pomona infrastructure layout. The

Foothill Transit 12-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

implementation plan to installing this solar in coordination with the other overhead charging
infrastructure is outlined below:
1. Phase 1 includes installing a 312 kW DC solar roof top canopy on top of the phase 1 overhead
charging structure in 2023.

a. The phase 1 overhead charging structure should be designed to support solar racking, modules,
and cables.

b. Solar power shall be fed directly into SCE’s future EV switchgear to meet EV phase 1 loads.
Switchgear shall be designed to accommodate future solar and potential energy storage.

c. Once Foothill Transit has completed its phase 1 charging structure design, Foothill should issue
an RFP for the solar project. Foothill Transit should request bids for PPA and EPC contracts by
11/2022.

d. Preliminary design and performance information should be submitted with proposals to provide a
fair evaluation of various module and inverter technology, costs, and performance.

e. Foothill Transit should evaluate the cost of owning the solar project versus purchasing a PPA
contract based on bids provided. The evaluation and selection of the solar provider should be
completed within 1 to 2 months with design and installation following over the next 12 months. If
a PPA contract is selected, negotiations can take longer and can delay the project.

f.  The Phase 1 solar project should be installed by a competent regional commercial solar company

after the charging infrastructure is installed. Target solar completion by 12/2023.

2. Phase 2 includes installing a 312 kW DC solar roof top canopy on top of phase 2 overhead charging
structure in 2027.

a. The phase 2 overhead structure should be designed to support solar racking, modules, and cables.

b. Solar power shall be fed directly into SCE’s future EV switchgear to meet EV phase 2 loads.
Switchgear shall be designed to accommodate future solar and potentially storage.

c. Once Foothill has completed its phase 2 charging structure design, Foothill should issue an RFP
for the solar project. Foothill Transit should request bids for PPA and EPC contracts by 11/2026.

d. Preliminary design and performance information should be submitted with proposals to provide a
fair evaluation of various module and inverter technologies costs and performance.

e. Foothill should evaluate the cost of owning the solar project versus purchasing a PPA contract
based on bids provided. The evaluation and selection of the solar provider should be completed
within 1 to 2 months with design and installation following over the next 12 months. If a PPA

contract is selected, negotiations can take longer and can delay the project.

Foothill Transit 12-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

f. The phase 1 solar project should be installed by a competent regional commercial solar company

after the charging infrastructure is installed. Target solar completion by 12/2027.

g. Total phase 1 and 2 on-site solar will provide 6% of Pomona’s energy requirement in 2030

Figure 12-4 provides a conceptual overview of where the solar system could be installed for phase 1 and

phase 2. Figure 12-5 provides a typical daily generation and load profile curve of the site in year 2

including phase 1 solar only.

Y

-l
-]
-'
-
‘l

=, HelioScope A

-

Figure 12-4: Pomona Depot Solar Layout

-—r_.u

S |
R RS :
Ereters uul EEES ]

R _g";“_j
A e

:TJ'v

_t._
L
1.}.

N
&'

.

EEEEE)

liiiPHAéE 1(2023)
e e
e

g g—
e g g —

lf_,._...,......,-....;
Yy 3

Foothill Transit

12-6

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Figure 12-5: Pomona Load and Solar Generation versus Time of Use Rates (Phase 1 - Year 2)

Pomona Depot (Weekday - Summer)

1600 S0.45
1400 $0.40
i 50,35
1200 P
) $030 =
= 1000 =
= s0.25 £
S 800 %
o 5020 S
T 500 g
T i i
o 5015 3
a.
400 s
00 \\ $0.10
200 / ! $0.05
0 = S-
1 23 456 7 8 9 10111213 14151617 18192021 222324
Average Power Cost (5/kWh) === Array DC power | (kW)

Electricity load (year 2) | (kW)

Like Arcadia, the economics of installing solar and energy storage were analyzed in detail using the
National Renewable Energy Laboratory software called System Advisor Model. Detailed hourly loads,
electric rates, hourly generation yield, project costs, and economic parameters were developed and used to
analyze the economic performance of the solar, storage, and solar/storage options at the Pomona site for a
full future build out. A summary of the financial results from that analysis are provided in Table 12-6
along with several of the key assumptions from that analysis. Based on the results of the analysis, Foothill
should install 312 kW of solar on the phase 1 canopy structures in 2023 and then another 312 kW of solar
on the phase 2 canopy structures in 2027 for a full 625 kW. Like Arcadia, battery storage can be

incorporated later as demand rates are implemented into the SCE bills charged to Foothill.

Foothill Transit 12-7 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-6: Pomona On-Site Solar and Energy Storage Economic Analysis Results

Category Unit Solar Battery Solar+Battery
PV Size [kW] 625.8 --- 625.8
Battery Size [kWh] - 2,000.0 2,000.0
Capacity Factor [%] 20.0% --- 18.7%
Energy Yield (year 1) [kWh/yr] 1,095,911.0 -89,364.0 1,023,468.0
Battery Efficiency [%] --- 81.8% 84.4%
Electricity bill without system (year 1) [S] $ 277,102.00 | $§ 277,102.00 | $ 277,102.00
Electricity bill with system (year 1) [S] $ 172,357.00 | S 194,677.00 | § 93,438.00
Net Savings with system (year 1) [S] S 104,745.00 | S 82,425.00 | $ 183,664.00
Capital Cost [S] $1,103,490.00 | $1,249,725.00 | S 2,351,240.00
Net Present Value [$-NPV] $ 659,467.00 | $ (496,930.00)| $ 147,502.00
Payback period [yrs] 10.7 22.6 15.7

Notes:

Battery was modelled based on Tesla power pack
Battery replacement is required at year 15 ($200/kwWh = $400,000)
Solar + Battery CF is less due to solar charging battery
Solar + Battery energy yield is higher than Solar and Battery only due to reduced losses from DC connection
NPV cash flow is based on a Foothill Transit 5% discount rate
Economic analysis prepared using existing 2019 SCE EV rates

12.6 Off-Site Renewable Energy Plan

Foothill Transit cannot achieve a 100% economical renewable power supply through on-site resources

and SCE’s power supply mix until 2045. However, Foothill Transit may purchase off-site renewable

energy through a PPA. The PPA contract enables Foothill Transit to purchase energy directly from a solar

or wind project at a cost and sell that energy into the wholesale energy market for a margin. Based on the

power supply RFI bids received in the study, there are financially attractive opportunities available to

secure long term economical renewable energy. The implementation plan to securing off-site renewable

power is provided below:

a. Once the fleet electrification procurement plan is finalized, Foothill Transit should establish the

final balance of renewable energy desired. Assuming on-site solar and SCE power is purchased,
the renewable energy deficit between 2021 and 2041 is 210,000 MWh or 10,000 MWh per year

on average. If the procurement and operation of electric buses is delayed several years, the

amount of off-site power should be reduced.

b. Conduct a renewable power RFP to secure off-site renewable PPA proposals beginning in 2021

or 2022. The RFP should be managed by Foothill Transit’s procurement with bid evaluations

done by others. Foothill Transit should release the renewable power supply RFP by 12/2020.

Foothill Transit

12-8

Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

c. Foothill Transit should provide up to 2 months for bidders to respond to the renewable RFP with
1 month of evaluation and 2 months for contract negotiations. Existing projects energy will be
available within a few months while new project PPAs may not be online for 1 to 2 years.

d. Off-site renewable power supply should be for a term between 10 and 20 years. In no event
should Foothill Transit commit to purchasing off-site renewable energy beyond 2045.

e. Foothill Transit should only secure offsite renewable power PPAs that provide a positive cash
flow. The location of the project does not need to be within California but should be located

within a relatively stable and well-established U.S. wholesale energy market.

12.6.1 Off-Site Renewable Energy Solicitation and Analysis

As part of the renewable energy supply analysis, the project team solicited proposals from renewable
energy projects across the United States through a non-binding request for information process. The
solicitation requested non-binding proposals from renewable energy project companies and suppliers for
10,000 MWHh per year over a term of 20 years. Confidential proposals for offsite renewable energy were
received for 4 wind projects and one geothermal project. The project proposals were all priced for energy
to be delivered at various wholesale market pricing nodes which included the Southwest Power Pool
(SPP), Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT), and California Independent System Operator
(CAISO). A summary of the project proposals received through the process is provided in Table 12-7.

For each of the confidential proposals received, the project team compared the cost of the renewable
energy PPA with the value of the energy at the settlement location, also known as the locational marginal
price (LMP). The annual production output of each project was weighted against the 2018 historically
settlement point LMPs to determine the annual wholesale market revenue that would be generated by the
project contract. The annual wholesale market revenues were compared to the annual contract costs to
determine if the proposals provided positive value (profit) or negative value (loss) to Foothill under
today’s market conditions. The results of this assessment are presented in Table 12-8.

Foothill Transit 12-9 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-7: Off-Site Renewable Power Supply Proposals Received and Analyzed

Balancing Location / Project Size
Developer Authority Technology (MW) Term
Oklahoma ~300 MW
Developer 1 SPP Wind 2021 COD 20
Developer 2 ERCOT Texas Wind ~200 MW 10
One Wind Project ERCOT Texas Wind Existing 10
3 LMPs Offerred ERCOT Texas Wind 10
California Confidential MW
Developer 3 CAISO Geothermal Existing 20
Kansas .
Developer 4 SPP Wind ~200 MW Existing 20
. . Oklahoma <100 MW
Two Wind Projects SPP Wind Existing 20

Table 12-8: Off-Site Renewable Power Supply Results

20 YEAR | 2018 P50 NET

LCOE LMP | PROFIT/LOSS | ANNUAL NET

Developer Location | LMP/Project | ($/MWh) | ($/MWh) ($MWh)  |PROFIT/LOSS
Developer 1~ Oklahoma $18.00 $23.12 $5.12 $51,192
Developer 2 Texas LMP 1 $16.75 $26.84 $10.09 $100,887
Texas LMP 2 $16.75 $24.72 $7.97 $79,719
Texas LMP3 $16.75 $27.26 $10.51 $105,143

Developer 3 California $84.48 $34.91 ($49.57) ($495,671)

Developer 4 Oklahoma Project 1 $18.00 $22.05 $4.05 $40,467
Kansas Project 2 $18.00 $23.13 $5.13 $51,344

Based on the initial responses to the offsite renewable contract request for information, there are projects
and contracts available that can provide renewable energy and the associated renewable attributes without
requiring Foothill to pay more for that energy. As an example, the Oklahoma wind project PPA cost is
$18 per MWh and the generation weighted market value for that energy is $23.12 per MWh for 10,000
MWh per year. Under today’s market pricing conditions, this yields a potential profit of nearly $51,000
per year. However, if the LMP rises or falls, the profit (or loss) from this contract to Foothill may change
in the future. These contracts are commonly employed by non-utility entities as a means of obtaining

contracted renewable power supply without direct involvement with their utility company.

Foothill Transit 12-10 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

12.7 Emergency Response Planning and On-Site Backup Power

There are a multitude of potential power outage threats that could impair Foothill Transit’s ability to
operate its bus fleet. These threats change as Foothill Transit’s fleet transitions to 100% BEB’s. For
example, an electrical power outage at either the depot or throughout the region would prevent recharging
of the buses. Foothill Transit desires to have at least 50% of their fleet available during any extended

power outage scenario. This section of the report provides a proposed solution to this requirement.

It is assumed that the 50% fleet requirement equates to 50% of the total energy demand daily. Unlike the
CNG fleet, which can refuel quickly and return to service, the electric fleet needs multiple hours of
charging to return to full readiness. Thus, if the electric fleet is pressed into longer than normal routes or
higher than normal passenger counts, the total recharge time may dramatically increase over the normal

charge period.

Since any on site generation asset does not carry a demand charge cost, charging twenty-four hours per
day is a cost-effective solution. Therefore, each bus can be immediately recharged upon entering the
depot, and any bus in the depot can be charged at any time. Since only half the fleet is deployed each day,
it may be possible to divide the fleet into an odd/even dispatch model with odd numbered buses deployed
on odd numbered days and vice versa for the even buses. On even numbered days, the odd fleet would
have twenty-four hours to completely recharge while the even fleet would be serving the community’s
needs. In a theoretically perfect charging scenario, where each bus was given exactly the amount of
charge it needed for the next day and there is no time lost switching between buses, it is theoretically

possible to recharge the Arcadia or Pomona depot with a single 1 MW diesel or natural gas generator.

As Foothill Transit transitions from a fully CNG fleet to a fully electrified fleet, the required generation
for the region-wide power outage scenario changes. The forecasted number of CNG and BEB in operation
as well as the peak electrical demand requirements are presented in Table 12-9. The recommended back
up source over the next 10 years is also presented and described in the following paragraphs.

Foothill Transit 12-11 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Table 12-9: Emergency Fleet and Back Up Power Demand Requirement

Arcadia Pomona
Normal Fleet [ Emergency Fleet Normal Fleet| Emergency Fleet
Year ) _ | Demand Year ) .| Demand
CNG Electric CNG Electric CNG Electric CNG Electric
(kw) (kw)
2020 160 20 90 0 0 2020 126 14 70 0 0
2021 140 10 90 0 0 2021 112 28 70 0 0
2022 120 60 90 0 0 2022 ag 42 70 0 0
2023 100 80 90 0 0 2023 84 56 70 0 0
2024 80 100 80 10 200 2024 70 70 70 0 0
2025 67 113 67 23 460 2025 58 82 58 12 240
2026 53 127 53 37 740 2026 a7 93 a7 23 460
2027 a0 140 a0 50 1000 2027 35 105 35 35 700
2028 27 153 27 63 1260 2028 23 117 23 a7 940
2029 13 167 13 77 1540 2029 12 128 12 58 1160
2030 0 180 0 90 1800 2030 0 140 0 70 1400

[1] Emergency power demand assumes that the emergency fleet will have 24 hours of recharge time availakble every other day and an estimated 240
kWh/day of daily energy usage. This will require a 10 kW load per electric bus throughout the day. A safety factor of 2x has been included.

Assuming that the existing CNG equipment at each depot is already capable of supplying 50% of the
existing fleet with fuel during a prolonged power outage, between 2020 and 2023, both Arcadia and

Pomona will be able to support emergency services with the remaining CNG busses.

At some point in 2024, fewer than half of the buses in operation on any given day are anticipated to be
CNG. Thus, it will be necessary to implement an onsite back up power strategy by 2024 in order to allow
the electric bus fleet to meet the community’s needs during a widespread power outage. Since grid
outages at either depot are rare and short lived, the most efficient solution is to utilize portable generators
to supply power for recharging the fleet. These generators may be either directly owned by Foothill
Transit or rented on an as needed basis with some sort of retainer fee paid to ensure their availability. The
generators would be parked in bus stalls immediately adjacent to the power service points and connect to
the distribution boards to supply power in place of the utility service. Each generator would be
anticipated to nominally provide 2 MW in capacity, but smaller generators would be acceptable based on
the actual number of electric buses needed. For example, in 2024 a 150 kW to 300 kW generator would

be the minimum recommended size.

As noted earlier, due to the infrequent outages it is most cost efficient to rent portable generators on an as
needed basis. However, there are two critical downsides to this approach. First, the rental generators,
although contractually obligated to be available, may not be available during a large-scale power outage
due to oversubscription of the actual generators (like overbookings by airlines). Secondly, there is an

inherent time delay between the time the generator is called for and when it becomes available. As the

Foothill Transit 12-12 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final  Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

fleet becomes more electrified, this delay may result in a shortage of buses. Thus, it is recommended to

install a permanent source of power at each site.

Once the fleet is fully electrified in 2030, Foothill Transit will no longer require its CNG refueling
stations. This real estate within the depot can be repurposed to serve as the location for a permanent diesel
or natural gas-fired generator. For the purpose of redundancy, a typical solution would include two, 1,500
kW gas fired emergency generators at each depot to allow a sufficient number of buses would be
available for the majority of scenarios. The existing high-pressure gas pipeline that delivers gas to the
CNG refueling stations could be repurposed to provide backup gas supply to a natural gas generator.

Each generator would tie to the 480V power panel from a single SCE electrical service thus repowering
one or two of the charging islands at each depot. The fleet charging software would need to be adjusted
to limit the power demand at these two locations to match the generator capacity, and bus handlers would
need to cycle the buses through the energized charging stations around the clock. Preliminary concepts of

this configuration are represented in Figure 12-6 and Figure 12-7.

Foothill Transit 12-13 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Final

Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Figure 12-6: Arcadia Depot Preliminary Natural Gas Backup Generator Power Concept

Existing Gas Line!
1

Generators

Future Gas Backup

Future Back Up
Power Circuit

Foothill Transit

12-14

Burns & McDonnell



Renewable Energy Supply and Back Up Power Plan

Final

In Depot Charging and Planning Study

Pomona Depot Preliminary Natural Gas Backup Generator Power Concept

Figure 12-7

40 Chargers 2erving 5 Changing 2ialic

130 - & Bucsc
&0 Farked
25 Recarse

Tanget

(/—*-—-—r

3
y

B e it T

Existing Gas Lihe

e e

A

Future Gas Backup

Generators

T
.
U I S
[}
T

m

LLLLLELELLELR _

POMOHA CHARGING LAYOUT

Burns & McDonnell

12-15

Foothill Transit



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

13.0 FLEET ELECTRIFICATION LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS

As part of this Study, a life cycle cost (LCC) analysis was developed to evaluate the cost differences
between owning and operating electric buses as compared to continued use of CNG buses. Previous study
results from work prepared by the NREL, as well as results from this Study were used in the preparation
of the analysis. The LCC analysis includes a fleet replacement transition plan under each of the two
scenarios, as well as forecasts for operation and maintenance (O&M), electricity and CNG fuel, bus
replacement costs, battery replacements, electric charging infrastructure, and charging infrastructure
O&M. Understanding the total LCC differences between an transition to an electric bus fleet and the
continued use of a CNG bus fleet provides Foothill Transit with the incremental cost to transition to an
electric fleet over the next 25 years which is the expected useful life of the charging infrastructure while

buses and chargers are assumed to have a 12 year life.

13.1 Approach

The approach for the LCC analysis included evaluating results derived from previous tasks completed
within this Study, reviewing results prepared by NREL, and analyzing additional data to properly capture
costs associated with each scenario. Core assumptions were developed pertaining to the costs to operate
and maintain an electric bus fleet and the existing CNG bus fleet, with specific assumptions by location of
bus depots in Pomona and Arcadia. These assumptions were used in a proforma model to forecast the
estimated costs of bus equipment, energy and fuel, O&M, replacements of buses, engines, batteries and
battery chargers, as well as capital and O&M for charging infrastructure. The forecast extended out 25
years with a net present value (NPV) calculation discounting costs back to today’s dollars. Cost
summaries were developed to determine the estimated difference of replacing the existing fleet with

electric buses and infrastructure as opposed to replacing the existing fleet with CNG buses.

13.2 Study Assumptions

Assumptions were developed for two scenarios; owning and operating an electric bus fleet versus the
CNG bus fleet that Foothill Transit has in place today. These assumptions were specific to bus depot
locations in both Pomona and Arcadia, as the average cost per bus and average miles driven per bus are
different between locations. Cost assumptions were developed on a dollars per mile basis for O&M, while
bus equipment, engine repairs, batteries, and charger replacements were on a dollar per bus basis. The
annual electricity or fuel CNG fuel costs were developed using other methods described later in this
section. Capital for infrastructure costs were forecasted based on Foothill Transit’s plan to transition their
existing CNG bus fleets of Arcadia and Pomona to an all-electric bus fleet over the next 12 years with a

target of nearly 100 percent of its routes being fully electrified by 2030 and all CNG buses being removed

Foothill Transit 13-1 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

from the site by 2032. These assumptions are discussed in more detail in Sections 8 and 9 of this report.
Annual inflation was applied to costs associated with O&M, electricity, fuel, and infrastructure while

battery replacement costs were forecasted to remain constant.

13.3 Fleet Transition Plan

An annual fleet replacement plan was prepared for both the electric bus fleet and the existing CNG bus
fleet, which is provided in Figure 9-1 of this report. The total number of future electric buses purchased is
based on the March 2019 fleet procurement plan provided by Foothill Transit. The March 2019 plan
assumed that the electric bus fleet would be sized similarly to a CNG fleet and that bus replacements
would occur as the 12-year life of existing CNG buses come to an end. The March 2019 plan assumes that
all CNG buses would be replaced by electric buses by 2032 with a total of 353 electric buses in service to
serve a PVR of 287 buses. The existing fleet today operates with a reserve ratio of 15 to 20 percent with a
minimum contract reserve ratio of 15 percent. Based on the analysis described in Section 4 of this report,
Foothill will have a PVR of 320 and thus would need to purchase an additional 15 electric buses in order
to maintain the 15 percent reserve ratio requirement in 2032 for a total adjusted fleet size of 368 buses.

The cost of these 15 additional electric buses is factored into this LCC analysis.

13.4 Bus Equipment Costs

Bus equipment costs are based on the most recent costs Foothill Transit received when purchasing buses
for their fleet. Cost assumptions were assumed for an electric 40-foot single deck ($900,000), electric
double deck bus ($1,380,000), CNG 40-foot single deck ($654,000) and CNG 60-foot articulated bus
($1,000,000). Electric bus costs used in the forecast were assumed to not include existing California
Hybrid and Zero-Emission Bus Incentive Project (HVIP) rebates that Foothill has historically received
when purchasing electric buses. These are not assumed to be available in the base case as the state

transitions to electric buses over the next 10 to 15 years.

13.5 Bus Operation & Maintenance Costs

O&M expense forecasts were based on information developed in the NREL Foothill Transit Agency
Battery Electric Bus Progress Report (NREL Report). The NREL Report summarizes Foothill’s historical
total scheduled repair cost per mile and unscheduled repair cost per mile. O&M expenses were recorded
for electric buses versus CNG buses, but not by location. For electric buses, scheduled O&M costs
averaged $0.08 per mile, and for CNG, scheduled O&M costs averaged $0.12 per mile. These average
costs per mile were used to calculate an O&M cost per operating bus by multiplying the unit cost by the
average miles driven by a bus per year, for both Arcadia and Pomona locations. Forecasted O&M

expenses were inflated annually by 3.0 percent.

Foothill Transit 13-2 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

13.6 Electricity Costs

Electricity costs associated with charging the electric buses at the Arcadia and Pomona depots was
determined based on the hourly energy usage models described in Section 4 of this report as well as the
SCE EV TOU rates. It is assumed that buses are charged during the mid-peak (mid-day hours) and off-
peak (late night) time periods as opposed to the on-peak (late afternoon) periods. This shift in load to low
cost periods will result in a substantial cost reduction for Foothill Transit as SCE’s EV TOU rate is far
less expensive during the mid-peak and off-peak times. Estimated bills varied between Arcadia and
Pomona as each depot has different charging profiles and usage amounts. On average, electric buses at
Arcadia have a higher energy use per mile which contributes to the higher average electric cost per mile
at Arcadia. The average electric cost at Pomona is $0.24 per mile while the average electric cost at
Arcadia is $0.25 per mile with an average electric cost of approximately $0.097 per kWh between the

two sites.

13.7 CNG Fuel Costs

Fuel costs are associated with Foothill Transit’s existing CNG bus fleet. Forecasted fuel costs under the
continued operation of the CNG bus fleet were estimated from actual monthly bills Foothill incurred
from January of 2018 thru December of 2018. The most recent annual bills and the total number of miles
driven by operating buses at each location were used to derive an average fuel cost per mile. Average fuel
costs varied between locations, with Pomona at $0.25 per mile, and Arcadia at $0.45 per mile, both of
which are higher than the average electric cost per mile for electric buses. The Pomona CNG fuel cost is

considerably less expensive than at the Arcadia depot.

13.8 Bus Major Overhaul and Replacement Costs

Major overhaul and replacement costs are necessary for both electric buses and CNG buses. Electric bus
batteries are expected to have an estimated useful life of approximately 6 years or half the life of the bus
and are expected to require replacement at a cost of $90,000 per battery per bus due to expected battery
degradation. Additionally, Foothill also completes major overhauls and engine replacements on each of
its CNG buses at year 6 at a cost of $95,000 per engine per bus based on information provided by Foothill
staff. These costs were applied to both the electric and CNG bus LCC forecasts appropriately.

13.9 Charger Equipment O&M and Replacement Costs

Charging equipment proposed within this study is expected to have an estimated useful life of
approximately 10 to 12 years, with replacement of each charger after 12 years of its in-service date at a
cost of $200,000 per 325 kW charger. The chargers will also have annual O&M costs for every charger
that is outside of the three-year manufacturer’s warranty at a cost of $6,500 per charger per year. Charger

O&M and replacement costs were included in the LCC analysis forecasts.

Foothill Transit 13-3 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

13.10 Charging Infrastructure Costs

For each depot, bottom up cost estimates were prepare based on the scope and infrastructure required as
presented in Section 9 of this report. The scope and costs were determined by year by depot. Additionally,
the scope was also segregated between those costs that will be directly paid by Foothill Transit and the
total installed cost of the electrical infrastructure that is eligible to be 100 percent paid for by SCE under
the Charge Ready Transit Program. SCE project costs were not included in the LCC analysis. The
detailed quantities and costs by year by depot are provided as an Appendix to this report with the
summary for each depot provided in Figure 9-4. The total charging infrastructure costs paid by Foothill,

with inflation, over the analysis period is estimated to be $120.6 million.

13.11 LCC Analysis Results

To evaluate the overall LCC of operating an electric bus fleet as compared to the existing CNG bus fleet,
the various cost assumptions were forecasted on an annual basis and are summarized below in Table 13-1.
Six cost categories were evaluated and are shown in the left column of each summary. The cost
summaries for both the electric bus fleet and CNG bus fleet include a 25-year NPV cost, cumulative costs
over 25-years, and an annual levelized cost. The two scenarios were compared against each other, with
the dollar and percentage difference shown in the table below. Pursuing an electric bus fleet will cost

Foothill Transit $15.4 million more per year over the next 25 years on a levelized basis.

Table 13-1: Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet Cost Summaries

25 Year NPV Cost Summary Electric Bus CNG Bus Difference ($) Difference (%)
Bus Equipment Cost $ 536,671,000 $ 375,283,000 $ 161,388,000 43%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 21,559,000 $ 29,500,000 $ (7,941,000) -27%
Energy Cost $ 66,906,000 $ 99,166,000 $ (32,260,000) -33%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 19,252,000 $ 20,125,000 $ (873,000) -4%
Charger 0&M and Replacement Cost $ 16,916,000 $ - $ 16,916,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 80,281,000 $ - $ 80,281,000 n/a
Total $ 741,585,000 $ 524,074,000 $ 217,511,000 42%
25 Year Cumulative Cost Summary Electric Bus (of [ 1VES Difference ($) Difference (%)
Bus Equipment Cost $1,076,831,600 $ 745,175,600 $ 331,656,000 45%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 47,154,200 $ 63,972,000 $ (16,817,800) -26%
Energy Cost $ 146,259,500 $ 213,624,000 $ (67,364,500) -32%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 41,670,000 $ 44,717,800 $ (3,047,800) -T%
Charger O&M and Replacement Cost $ 44,694,000 $ - $ 44,694,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 120,654,543 $ - $ 120,654,543 n/a
Total $1,477,263,843 $1,067,489,400 $ 409,774,443 38%
Rl LEnRIIres Eos Smme) Electric Bus CNG Bus Difference ($/year) Difference (%)
($/year)

Bus Equipment Cost $ 38,078,000 $ 26,627,000 $ 11,451,000 43%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 1,530,000 $ 2,093,000 $ (563,000) 27%
Energy Cost $ 4,747,000 $ 7,036,000 $ (2,289,000) -33%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 1,366,000 $ 1,428,000 $ (62,000) -4%
Charger O&M and Replacement Cost $ 1,200,000 $ - $ 1,200,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 5,696,000 $ - $ 5,696,000 n/a
Total $ 52,617,000 $ 37,184,000 $ 15,433,000 42%

Foothill Transit 13-4 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

Figure 13-1 and Figure 13-2 present the annual incremental costs of operating the electric bus fleet and
the annual incremental cost of replacing the existing fleet with new CNG buses. The costs are inclusive of
bus equipment, energy and fuel, O&M, replacement of buses, replacement of engines and batteries,
charger O&M and replacement, as well as capital for charging infrastructure over 25 years. The annual
levelized costs are presented in Figure 13-3 which shows the estimated annual levelized cost difference

between the electric bus fleet versus the existing CNG bus fleet.

Figure 13-1: Electric Bus Fleet Incremental Annual and Cumulative Costs

$160,000,000 $1,600,000,000
$140,000,000 $1,400,000,000
$120,000,000 $1,200,000,000

$100,000,000

$1,000,000,000
480,000,000 I $800,000,000
560,000,000 $600,000,000
540,000,000 $400,000,000
$20,000,000 I I I I I I $200,000,000
G 5.
,@"Pqp"“\'np"?”.\ué‘?mé“? ,5?? g Q"V R R AR “ﬂ(o,ﬁi’ SRR A st?’
W Bus Equipment Cost . Bus M aintenance Cost Energy Cost
Battery/ Engine Replacement N Charger O&M and Replacement Cost M Charging Infrastructure Cost

e Cumulative Costs

Figure 13-2: CNG Bus Fleet Incremental Annual and Cumulative Costs

$120,000,000 $1,600,000,000

$100,000,000 $1,400,000,000

$1,200,000,000

80,000,000
’ $1,000,000,000
$60,000,000 $800,000,000
600,000,000
$40,000,000 $
$400,000,000
20,000,000
s I I $200,000,000
5- - 5-
NS T PR TP R TP B WL P, P I SPA PR, TP P, TP+ P T, - B TS S VR PR Y -
LV A e e A P P e o M L M S Lo PR o P oY 3
P IIIIFTITEILTETETITTEFEF I
m— Bus Equipment Cost mm Bus Maintenance Cost Energy Cost
Battery/ Engine Replacement mmmm Charger O&M and Replacement Cost Il Charging Infrastructure Cost

e Cumulative Costs

Foothill Transit 13-5 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

Figure 13-3: Annual Levelized cost of Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet

$60,000,000
450,000,000 ;
540,000,000
$20,000,000
$20,000,000

510,000,000

Electric Bus CNG Bus
M Bus Equipment Cost M Bus Maintenance Cost
Energy Cost # Battery/ Engine Replacement
B Charger O&M and Replacement Cost M Charging Infrastructure Cost

13.12 Electric Bus Rebates and Incentives

There are currently several rebates and financial incentives available in the State of California that help to
make the total cost of owning and operating a BEB more financially feasible. These rebates and
incentives were not included in the base 25-year LCC analysis however they are available today and
could continue to be over the study period considered. The additional incentives that were considered
included (1) the Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive Project (HVIP), (2) the
SCE 50% charger rebate program, and (3) California Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) credits.

13.12.1 HVIP Rebates

BEB manufacturers currently can apply a $120,000 HVIP rebate to the purchase of BEBs sold in the state
of California. This reduces the cost of the bus to Foothill Transit from $300,000 to $780,000 per bus. The
HVIP credit may continue to be available over the next 25 years. If the HVIP credit remains available,

this will provide a total BEB cost reduction of $138 million over 25 years.

13.12.2 SCE Charger Rebates

The local electric utility, SCE, is currently offering a 50% rebate off chargers that meet certain
specifications under its Charge Ready Transit Program. At the time of this report SCE did not offer a
rebate for 325 kW chargers however it is expected that SCE would be willing to provide a 50% rebate to
cover the cost of the $100,000 equipment cost. This credit may continue over the next 10 to 12 years and
was included in the analysis. Assuming the rebates are available to Foothill, this would reduce the capital

cost of the project by $6.2 million.

Foothill Transit 13-6 Burns & McDonnell



In Depot Charging and Planning Study Final Fleet Electrification Life Cycle Cost Analysis

13.12.3 Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits

Foothill Transit currently earns LCFS credits for its utilization of both BEBs and renewable CNG. In
2019, California LCFS credits have been trading at nearly $200 per Ton which equates to nearly $0.20
per kWh. From 2015 to 2018 LCFS credits have been valued closer to $100 per Ton or $0.10 per kwWh.
There has been a steep increase in the value of LCFS credits over the last 12 months and this market price
may not be sustainable over the next 25 years. This analysis assumed a price of $100 per Ton. Including
LCFS credits would offset all of Foothill Transit’s electricity costs in the future and provide a total 25-
year net energy cost reduction of $152 million. LCFS credits were also included for the CNG case at $100

per Ton which also provide some cost savings.

13.12.4 Electric Bus Rebates and Incentives Scenario LCC Analysis Results

The three rebates and incentives described above were included into the LCC Analysis model to
determine the overall impact cost impact of converting from CNG to electric buses. Assuming the rebates
and incentives for BEBs are available, pursuing a BEB fleet will cost Foothill Transit $6.3 million more
per year over the next 25 years on a levelized basis. The BEB incentives and rebates provide an overall

BEB fleet scenario cost reduction of nearly $9 million per year versus the base case.

Table 13-2: Electric Bus Fleet versus CNG Bus Fleet Cost Summaries with Rebates and Incentives

25 Year NPV Cost Summary Electric Bus CNG Bus Difference ($) Difference (%)

Bus Equipment Cost $ 468,592,000 $§ 375,283,000 $ 93,309,000 25%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 21,559,000 $ 29,500,000 $ (7,941,000) 27%
Energy Cost $ (2,874,000) $ 86,190,000 $ (89,064,000) -103%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 19,252,000 $ 20,125,000 $ (873,000) -4%
Charger 0&M and Replacement Cost $ 16,916,000 $ - $ 16,916,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 76,260,000 $ - $ 76,260,000 n/a
Total $ 599,705,000 $ 511,098,000 $ 88,607,000 17%
25 Year Cumulative Cost Summary Electric Bus CNG Bus Difference ($) Difference (%)

Bus Equipment Cost $ 938,607,600 $ 745,175,600 $ 193,432,000 26%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 47,154,200 $ 63,972,000 $ (16,817,800) -26%
Energy Cost $ (6,210,300) $ 185,484,800 $ (191,695,100) -103%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 41,670,000 $ 44,717,800 $ (3,047,800) 1%
Charger 0&M and Replacement Cost $ 44,694,000 $ - $ 44,694,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 114,466,673 $ - $ 114,466,673 n/a
Total $ 1,180,382,173 $ 1,039,350,200 $ 141,031,973 14%
Annual Levelized Cost Summary ($/year) Electric Bus CNG Bus Difference ($/year) Difference (%)

Bus Equipment Cost $ 33,248,000 $ 26,627,000 $ 6,621,000 25%
Bus Maintenance Cost $ 1,530,000 $ 2,093,000 $ (563,000) 27%
Energy Cost $ (204,000) $ 6,115,000 $ (6,319,000) -103%
Battery/ Engine Replacement $ 1,366,000 $ 1,428,000 $ (62,000) -4%
Charger 0&M and Replacement Cost $ 1,200,000 $ - $ 1,200,000 n/a
Charging Infrastructure Cost $ 5,411,000 $ - $ 5,411,000 n/a
Total $ 42,551,000 $ 36,264,000 $ 6,287,000 17%

[1] Energy costs include LCFS credits.

Foothill Transit 13-7 Burns & McDonnell



APPENDIX A - DEPOT INFRASTRUCTURE COST ESTIMATES



STUDY CAPITAL COST ESTIMATE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ARCADIA
EV INFRASTRUCTURE
WEST COVINA
BMcD #110549
Engr Equip/ Const.
Direct Labor Material Subcontract Equipment
Area / Discipline MHRS Cost Cost Cost Cost Total Cost
01 |Engineered Equipment $23,714,977 $47,084 $23,762,062
02 |Civil
03 |Deep Foundations 1,524 $241,919 $234,818 $348,317 $62,875 $887,929
04 |Concrete
05 |Structural Steel $3,172,700 $3,172,700
06 [Architectural
07 [Piping
08 |Electrical 24,594 $4,112,177 $1,768,750 $233,333 $6,114,261
09 |T&D
10 |Insulation
11 |Coatings
12 |Specialty
13 [Demolition
14 |Misc Directs

C
N\ MEDONN E L gy

Total Direct Cost $4,354,096  $25,718,546 $3,521,017 $343,293 $33,936,952
Rev. Revision Date Construction Mgmt & Indirects 15% $5,090,543
Engineering 12% $4,072,434

Start-Up 6% $2,036,217

Permitting 2% $678,739

Total Indirect Cost $11,877,933
- | |

Total Direct and Indirect Costs $45,814,885

Cost

Design Contingency 25% $11,453,721

Contractor Fee 5% $2,290,744

Total Project Cost 30% $59,559,350

110549 ARCADIA .xIsm

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



Description
PH.1.1 Foothill Scope (2021)

FOOTHILL TRANSIT
ARCADIA
EV INFRASTRUCTURE
WEST COVINA
110549

Direct
MHRS Labor Cost

3,393 $559,645

Material Cost

$905,651

Engr Equip/

Subcontract
Cost

$2,028,483

Const.
Equipment
Cost Total Cost
$61,327 $3,555,106

Indirect, Design

Contingency and
Contractor Fee

176%

Phase Totals
$6,239,211

2.0 [PH.1.1 SCE Scope (2021) 2,002 $334,747 $504,900 $27,444 $867,091 176% $l,521,744|
3.0 |PH.1.1 Chargers (2021) 33 $5,518 $717,911 $582 $724,011] 176% $1,270,638|
4.0 |PH.1.2 Foothill Scope (2022) 941 $157,291 $954,565 $9,822 $1,121,678 176% $1,968,546|
5.0 [PH.1.2 SCE Scope (2022) 314 $52,529 $71,791 $5,544 $129,863) 176% $227,910
6.0 [PH.1.2 Chargers (2022) 55 $9,196 $1,196,518 $971 $1,206,684 176% $2,117,731
7.0 [PH.1.3, 1.4 Foothill Scope (2023-2024) 1,625 $271,678 $1,521,166 $16,851 $1,809,695 176% $3,176,015
8.0 |PH.1.3, 1.4 SCE Scope (2023-2024) 656 $109,765 $31,924 $6,228 $147,918 176% $259,595
9.0 |PH.1.3, 1.4 Chargers (2023-2024) 88 $14,714 $1,914,428 $1,553 $1,930,695 176% $3,388,369
10.0 |PH.1.5 Foothill Scope (2025) 807 $134,928 $409,677 $8,015 $552,619 176% $969,847|
11.0 |PH.1.5 SCE Scope (2025) 971 $162,294 $103,716 $11,772 $277,781] 176% $487,505
12.0 |PH.1.5 Chargers (2025) 22 $3,678 $478,607 $388 $482,674 176% $847,092]
13.0 |PH.2.1 Foothills Scope (2026) 1,347 $221,971 $294,654 $900,736 $24,963 $1,442,324 176% $2,531,278]
14.0 |PH.2.1 SCE Scope (2026) 516 $86,227 $200,592 $7,836 $294,655 176% $517,120I
15.0 |PH.2.1 Chargers (2026) 11 $1,839 $239,304 $194 $241,337 176% $423,546|
16.0 |PH.2.2,2.3 & 2.4 Foothill Scope (2028-2029) 401 $66,971 $386,142 $4,159 $457,272) 176% $802,512]
17.0 |PH.2.2,2.3 & 2.4 SCE Scope (2028-2029) 176%
18.0 |PH.2.2,2.3 & 2.4 Chargers (2028-2029) 22 $3,678 $478,607 $388 $482,674 176% $847,092]
19.0 |PH.2.5 Foothill Scope (2030) 1,816 $303,649 $1,519,460 $18,665 $1,841,774 176% $3,232,314
20.0 |PH.2.5 SCE Scope (2030) 971 $162,294 $103,716 $11,772 $277,781] 176% $487,505
21.0 |PH.2.5 Chargers (2030) 88 $14,714 $1,914,428 $1,553 $1,930,695 176% $3,388,369
22.0 |PH.2.6 Foothill Scope (2031) 2,821 $471,695 $2,605,170 $29,278 $3,106,143 176% $5,451,281
23.0 |PH.2.6 SCE Scope (2031) 1,456 $243,442 $181,958 $18,939 $444,339] 176% $779,814
24.0 |PH.2.6 Chargers (2031) 154 $25,749 $3,350,249 $2,717 $3,378,716 176% $5,929,646
25.0 |PH.2.7 Foothill Scope (2032) 3,514 $585,431 $2,374,703 $591,798 $43,299 $3,595,231 176% $6,309,631
26.0 |PH.2.7 SCE Scope (2032) 1,964 $328,383 $387,069 $26,702 $742,155| 176% $1,302,482
27.0 |PH.2.7 Chargers (2032) 132 $22,071 $2,871,642 $2,329 $2,896,042 176% $5,082,554
$59,559,350
PH.1.1 $9,031,594
PH.1.2 $4,314,186
PH.13&1.4 $6,823,980
PH.1.5 $2,304,444
PH.2.1 $3,471,944
PH.2.2,23&24 $1,649,604
PH.2.5 $7,108,189
PH.2.6 $12,160,742
PH.2.7 $12,694,667,
Total Foothill Scope $30,680,634
Total SCE Scope $5,583,676
Total Chargers $23,295,039

Total Direct Cost

110549 ARCADIA XIsm

26,118 $4,354,096

$25,718,546

$3,521,017

$343,293 $33,936,952

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT

SUMMARY EST LEVEL: STUDY
PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL [[EQUIPMENT|{EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT 23,714,977 47,084 23,762,062
ESTIMATE TOTALS $23,714,977| $47,084] $23,762,062

110549 ARCADIA xIsm

30f19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:
PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT
ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

ESTIMATE DETAIL

ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL PROCESS EQUIP|| EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
U MH MH [ RATE $H] L T7L cosT || uniT cosT | M TTL cosT JuniT costis TTL cos] uniT cosT [ER TTL cosfl  COST COST
ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT

Transformers (1.1) 4 ea 180.23 95721.40 382,886 1471.72 5,887 97193.12 388,772
480V Swagr (1.1) 1 ea 180.23 71791.05 71,791 2562.94 2,563 74353.99 74,354
Chargers (1.1) 3 ea 180.23 239303.51 717,911 89.74 269 || 239393.24 718,180
Pantographs (1.1) 6 ea 180.23 83756.23 502,537 89.74 538 83845.97 503,076
480V Swar (1.2) 1 ea 180.23 71791.05 71,791 2562.94 2,563 74353.99 74,354
Chargers (1.2) 5 ea 180.23 239303.51| 1,196,518 89.74 449 || 239393.24 1,196,966
Pantographs (1.2) 10 ea 180.23 83756.23 837,562 89.74 897 83845.97 838,460
Chargers (1.3 & 1.4) 8 ea 180.23 239303.51| 1,914,428 89.74 718 || 239393.24 1,915,146
Pantographs (1.3 & 1.4) 16 ea 180.23 83756.23| 1,340,100 89.74 1,436 83845.97 1,341,535
480V Swar (1.5) 1 ea 180.23 71791.05 71,791 2562.94 2,563 74353.99 74,354
Chargers (1.5) 2 ea 180.23 239303.51 478,607 89.74 179 || 239393.24 478,786
Pantographs (1.5) 4 ea 180.23 83756.23 335,025 89.74 359 83845.97 335,384
Transformers (2.1) 2 ea 180.23 95721.40 191,443 1471.72 2,943 97193.12 194,386
Chargers (2.1) 1 ea 180.23 239303.51 239,304 89.74 90 || 239393.24 239,393
Pantographs (2.1) 2 ea 180.23 83756.23 167,512 89.74 179 83845.97 167,692
Chargers (2.2, 2.3, 2.4) 2 ea 180.23 239303.51 478,607 89.74 179 || 239393.24 478,786
Pantographs (2.2, 2.3, 2.4) 4 ea 180.23 83756.23 335,025 89.74 359 83845.97 335,384
480V Swar (2.5) 1 ea 180.23 71791.05 71,791 2562.94 2,563 74353.99 74,354
Chargers (2.5) 8 ea 180.23 239303.51| 1,914,428 89.74 718 || 239393.24 1,915,146
Pantograph (2.5) 16 ea 180.23 83756.23| 1,340,100 89.74 1,436 83845.97 1,341,535
480V Swar (2.6) 2 ea 180.23 71791.05 143,582 2562.94 5,126 74353.99 148,708
Chargers (2.6) 14 ea 180.23 239303.51| 3,350,249 89.74 1,256 || 239393.24 3,351,505
Pantographs (2.6) 28 ea 180.23 83756.23| 2,345,174 89.74 2,513 83845.97 2,347,687
Transformers (2.7) 2 ea 180.23 95721.40 191,443 1471.72 2,943 97193.12 194,386
480V Swar (2.7) 2 ea 180.23 71791.05 143,582 2562.94 5,126 74353.99 148,708
Chargers (2.7) 12 ea 180.23 239303.51| 2,871,642 89.74 1,077 || 239393.24 2,872,719
Pantographs (2.7) 24 ea 180.23 83756.23| 2,010,149 89.74 2,154 83845.97 2,012,303

TOTALS 23,714,977 47,084 23,762,062

110549 ARCADIA xIsm 40f 19 2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT

PROJECT DESC:

ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

SUMMARY
DEEP FOUNDATIONS

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019

ESTIMATOR: JAS

PROJECT #: 110549
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 DEEP FOUNDATIONS 1,278 202,900 196,944 239,749 52,734 692,328
P3 DEEP FOUNDATIONS 246 39,019 37,874 108,567 10,141 195,601
ESTIMATE TOTALS 1,524 $241,919 $234,818 $348,317, $62,875) $887,929

110549 ARCADIA xIsm

50f 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:
PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT
ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

ESTIMATE DETAIL

DEEP FOUNDATIONS

EST LEVEL: STUDY

ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: JAS
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
U MH MH [ RATE $MH] L TTL cosT || uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT|l uniT cosT [ s 7L cosT|[ uniT cosTER TTLCos]|  COST COST

DEEP FOUNDATIONS
Phase 1.1
Qty 55 Depth 25 LF/EA
36" Drilled Piers 1375 | VLF|| 0.4224 581] 158.71 92,179 46.80 64,357 23.38 32,144 137.22 188,680
Mobilization 1 LS 40600 40,600 40600.00 40,600
Layout 55 EA 1.1 61) 158.71 9,602 174.58 9,602
Reinforcing 48600 | LB 1.51 73,160 1.51 73,160
Waste Spoils Off-Site 360 CY |[ 0.0495 18| 158.71 2,828 5.40 1,944 13.26] 4,772
Pile Cut-Offs 55 EA 4.4 242] 158.71 38,408 55.66 3,061 753.99 41,469
Testing
Test Piles 2 EA 12898 25,796 12897.91 25,796
Load Tests 2 EA 30450 60,900 30450.00| 60,900
Phase 2.1
Qty 23 Depth 25 LF/EA
36" Drilled Piers 575 VLF( 0.4224 243 158.71 38,548 46.80 26,913 23.38 13,442 137.22 78,902
Mobilization 1 LS 40600 40,600 40600.00 40,600
Layout 23 EA 1.1 25| 158.71 4,015 174.58 4,015
Reinforcing 21600 | LB 1.51 32,515 1.51 32,515
Waste Spoils Off-Site 160 CY || 0.0495 8| 158.71 1,257 5.40 864 13.26 2,121
Pile Cut-Offs 23 EA 4.4 101) 158.71 16,062 55.66 1,280 753.99 17,342
Testing
Test Piles 2 EA 5477 10,954 5476.77 10,954
Load Tests 2 EA 30450 60,900 30450.00| 60,900

TOTALS 1,278 202,900 196,944 239,749 52,734 692,328

110549 ARCADIA xIsm

6 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:
PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

ESTIMATE DETAIL
DEEP FOUNDATIONS

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: JAS
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
U MH MH [ RATE $MH] L TTL cosT || uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT|l uniT cosT [ s 7L cosT|[ uniT cosTER TTLCos]|  COST COST
DEEP FOUNDATIONS
Phase 2.7
Qty 15 Depth 25 LF/EA
36" Drilled Piers 375 | VLF|| 0.4224 158| 158.71 25,140 46.80 17,552 23.38 8,766 137.22 51,458
Mobilization 1 LS 40600 40,600 40600.00 40,600
Layout 15 EA 1.1 17| 158.71 2,619 174.58 2,619
Reinforcing 13500 | LB 1.51 20,322 1.51 20,322
Waste Spoils Off-Site 100 CY || 0.0495 5| 158.71 786 5.40 540 13.26 1,326
Pile Cut-Offs 15 EA 4.4 66 158.71 10,475 55.66 835 753.99 11,310
Testing
Test Piles 2 EA 3534 7,067 3533.59 7,067
Load Tests 2 EA 30450 60,900 30450.00 60,900
TOTALS 246 39,019 37,874 108,567 10,141 195,601

110549 ARCADIA xIsm

7 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT SUMMARY EST LEVEL: STUDY
PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE STRUCTURAL STEEL ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR: JAS
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 STEEL 3,172,700 3,172,700
ESTIMATE TOTALS $3,172,700| $3,172,700

110549 ARCADIA xIsm 8of 19 2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE STRUCTURAL STEEL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: JAS
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
U MH MH [ RATE $/MH] L 7TL cosT || uniT cosT [ M TTL cosT| uniT cosT | s 7L cosT|[ uniT cosT[ER TTL cos]]  CcOST COST
STEEL
Phase 1.1 PEMB Structure 50555 sf 25| 1,282,833 25.38 1,282,833
Phase 1.1 Standing Seam Roof 50555 sf 12 615,760 12.18 615,760
Phase 2.1 PEMB Structure 20958 | sf 25( 531,809 25.38 531,809
Phase 2.1 Standing Seam Roof 20958 | sf 12 255,268 12.18 255,268
Phase 2.7 PEMB Structure 12851 sf 25| 326,094 25.38 326,094
Phase 2.7 Standing Seam Roof 12851 sf 12| 156,525 12.18 156,525
Phase 1.1 Striping 2556 If 1 2,594 1.02 2,594
Phase 2.1 Striping 1187 If 1 1,205 1.02 1,205
Phase 2.7 Striping 602 If 1 611 1.02 611
TOTALS 3,172,700 3,172,700

110549 ARCADIA xIsm

9 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT

SUMMARY

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 PH. 1.1 4,527 756,892 315,820 42,947 1,115,659
"P 3 PH.1.2 1,310 219,016 117,003 12,427 348,446
"P 4 PH13&14 2,369 396,157 212,991 22,479 631,626
"P 5 PH.1.5 1,800 300,900 106,576 17,074 424,549
"P 6 PH.2.1 1,496 250,155 76,863 14,194 341,212
"P 7 PH.2.2,23&24 423 70,650 51,117 4,009 125,775
"P 8 PH.2.5 2,875 480,656 211,285 27,273 719,215
"P 9 PH.2.6 4,431 740,886 298,371 42,039 1,081,297
P10 PH.2.7 5,364 896,866 378,724 50,890 1,326,480
ESTIMATE TOTALS 24,594 $4,112,177 $1,768,750 $233,333 $6,114,261

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

100f 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNI'I'" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH. 1.1

Equipment
Transformers 4 ea 180.4 722| 167.20 120,654 1711.54 6,846 31875.08 127,500
480V Swgr 1 ea || 314.16 314| 167.20 52,529 2980.58 2,981 55509.28 55,509
Chargers 3 ea 11 33[ 167.20 5,518 104.36 313 1943.60 5,831
Pantographs 6 ea 11 66 167.20 11,035 104.36 626 1943.60 11,662
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 300 If |[ 0.8032 241| 167.20 40,291 40.60 12,179 7.62 2,286 182.52 54,757
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 110 If |[ 0.5419 60| 167.20 9,966 38.64 4,251 5.14 566 134.38 14,782
36" Cable Tray Fittings 3 ea || 6.3113 19| 167.20 3,166 299.80 899 59.88 180 1414.95 4,245
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 130 If || 0.8032 104| 167.20 17,460 40.60 5,278 7.62 991 182.52 23,728
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 400 If |[ 1.6412 656| 167.20 109,765 79.81 31,924 15.57 6,228 369.79 147,918
Swgr To Chargers 600A 385 If |[ 0.2369 91 167.20 15,252 36.91 14,210 2.25 865 78.77 30,328
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 1580 If |[ 0.0994 157| 167.20 26,255 24.65 38,950 0.94 1,490 42.21 66,695
Control Cables & Terms 2364 If |[ 0.0812 192| 167.20 32,105 4.97 11,744 0.77 1,822 19.32 45,671
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 144 ea | 9.1779] 1,322| 167.20 220,979 422.92 60,900 87.07| 12,539 2044.57 294,419
Lightning Protection 43000 | sf 2.21 95,191 2.21 95,191
Grounding
4/0 Bare Ground Ring 1200 If |[ 0.1088 131| 167.20 21,837 13.01 15,613 1.03 1,239 32.24 38,689
3/4" Ground Rod 10 ea | 1.6473 16| 167.20 2,754 128.32 1,283 15.63 156 419.38 4,194
Test Well 2 ea 5.247 10| 167.20 1,755 479.17 958 49.78 100 1406.27 2,813
Ground Connection 10 ea || 8.2364 82| 167.20 13,772 414.00 4,140 78.14 781 1869.30 18,693
15Kv Ductbank 100 If 3.098 310| 167.20 51,800 182.98 18,298 29.39 2,939 730.37 73,037

4,527 756,892 315,820 42,947 1,115,659

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

110f19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT ESTIMATE DETAIL EST LEVEL: STUDY
PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.1.2
Equipment
480V Swgr 1 ea || 314.16 314| 167.20 52,529 2980.58 2,981 55509.28 55,509
Chargers 5 ea 11 55| 167.20 9,196 104.36 522 1943.60 9,718
Pantographs 10 ea 11 110( 167.20 18,392 104.36 1,044 1943.60 19,436
Cable Tray
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 100 If || 0.5419 54| 167.20 9,060 38.64 3,864 5.14 514 134.38 13,438
36" Cable Tray Fittings 4 ea | 6.3113 25| 167.20 4,221 299.80 1,199 59.88 240 1414.95 5,660
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 561 If || 0.2493 140( 167.20 23,380 36.98 20,744 2.36 1,327 81.02 45,450
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 2846 If 0.098 279| 167.20 46,651 24.64 70,115 0.93 2,647 41.96 119,413
Control Cables & Terms 4269 If || 0.0779 332| 167.20 55,587 4.94 21,081 0.74 3,154 18.70| 79,822
1,310 219,016 117,003 12,427 348,446

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

120f19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH13& 1.4

Equipment
Chargers 8 ea 11 88| 167.20 14,714 104.36 835 1943.60 15,549
Pantographs 16 ea 11 176 167.20 29,428 104.36 1,670 1943.60 31,098
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 300 If || 0.8032 241| 167.20 40,291 40.60 12,179 7.62 2,286 182.52 54,757
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 200 If |[ 0.5419 108| 167.20 18,121 38.64 7,728 5.14 1,028 134.38 26,877
36" Cable Tray Fittings 5 ea | 6.3113 32| 167.20 5,276 299.80 1,499 59.88 299 1414.95 7,075
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 130 If |[ 0.8032 104| 167.20 17,460 40.60 5,278 7.62 991 182.52 23,728
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 400 If 1.6412 656| 167.20 109,765 79.81 31,924 15.57 6,228 369.79 147,918
Swgr To Chargers 600A 690 If || 0.2787 192 167.20 32,158 37.14 25,624 2.64 1,825 86.39 59,607
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 4045 If || 0.1001 405| 167.20 67,724 24.66 99,753 0.95 3,843 42.35 171,320
Control Cable & Terms 6066 If || 0.0604 366| 167.20 61,221 4.78 29,005 0.57 3,474 15.45 93,699

2,369 396,157 212,991 22,479 631,626

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

130f 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.1.5

Equipment
480V Swgr ea | 314.16 314| 167.20 52,529 2980.58 2,981 55509.28 55,509
Chargers ea 11 22| 167.20 3,678 104.36 209 1943.60 3,887
Pantographs ea 11 44| 167.20 7,357 104.36 417 1943.60 7,774
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 300 If |[ 0.8032 241| 167.20 40,291 40.60 12,179 7.62 2,286 182.52 54,757
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 110 If || 0.5419 60| 167.20 9,966 38.64 4,251 5.14 566 134.38 14,782
36" Cable Tray Fittings 3 ea || 6.3113 19| 167.20 3,166 299.80 899 59.88 180 1414.95 4,245
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 140 If || 0.8032 112 167.20 18,803 40.60 5,684 7.62 1,067 182.52 25,553
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 400 If 1.6412 656| 167.20 109,765 79.81 31,924 15.57 6,228 369.79 147,918
Swgr To Chargers 600A 200 If |[ 0.2612 52 167.20 8,735 37.04 7,408 2.48 496 83.19 16,639
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 1386 If || 0.0951 132| 167.20 22,028 24.60 34,097 0.90 1,250 41.40 57,375
Control Cable & Terms 2079 If || 0.0707 147 167.20 24,582 4.87 10,133 0.67 1,395 17.37 36,110

1,800 300,900 106,576 17,074 424,549

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

14 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNIT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST

PH.2.1
Equipment
Transformers ea 180.4 361| 167.20 60,327 1711.54 3,423 31875.08 63,750
Chargers ea 11 11| 167.20 1,839 104.36 104 1943.60 1,944
Pantographs 2 ea 11 22| 167.20 3,678 104.36 209 1943.60 3,887
Cable Tray
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 40 If |[ 0.5419 22| 167.20 3,624 38.64 1,546 5.14 206 134.38 5,375
36" Cable Tray Fittings 1 ea | 6.3113 6| 167.20 1,055 299.80 300 59.88 60 1414.95 1,415
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 135 If || 0.2327 31| 167.20 5,253 36.89 4,980 2.21 298 78.00 10,530
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 540 If || 0.0989 53| 167.20 8,933 24.65 13,309 0.94 507 42.13 22,749
Control Cable & Terms 810 If |[ 0.0645 52 167.20 8,730 4.89 3,961 0.61 495 16.28 13,187
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 66 ea | 9.1779 606 167.20 101,282 422.92 27,913 87.07 5,747 2044.57 134,942
Grounding
4/0 Bare Ground Ring 800 If || 0.1088 87 167.20 14,558 13.01 10,409 1.03 826 32.24 25,793
3/4" Ground Rod ea || 1.6473 13| 167.20 2,203 128.32 1,027 15.63 125 419.38 3,355
Test Well ea 5.247 10| 167.20 1,755 479.17 958 49.78 100 1406.27 2,813
Ground Connection ea || 8.2364 66| 167.20 11,017 414.00 3,312 78.14 625 1869.30 14,954
15Kv Ductbank 100 If 1.549 155| 167.20 25,900 91.49 9,149 14.70 1,470 365.19 36,519

1,496 250,155 76,863 14,194 341,212

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

150f19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNl'I'" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.2.2,2.3&24
Equipment
Chargers ea 11 22| 167.20 3,678 104.36 209 1943.60 3,887
Pantographs ea 11 44| 167.20 7,357 104.36 417 1943.60 7,774
Cable Tray
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 50 If || 0.5419 27| 167.20 4,530 38.64 1,932 5.14 257 134.38 6,719
36" Cable Tray Fittings 2 ea || 6.3113 13| 167.20 2,111 299.80 600 59.88 120 1414.95 2,830
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 276 If || 0.2309 64| 167.20 10,657 36.88 10,178 2.19 605 77.68 21,440
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 1200 If |[ 0.0972 117| 167.20 19,498 24.63 29,551 0.92 1,106 41.80 50,156
Control Cable & Terms 1800 If || 0.0758 136 167.20 22,819 4.92 8,856 0.72 1,295 18.32 32,969
423 70,650 51,117 4,009 125,775

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

16 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.2.5

Equipment
480V Swgr ea | 314.16 314| 167.20 52,529 2980.58 2,981 55509.28 55,509
Chargers 8 ea 11 88| 167.20 14,714 104.36 835 1943.60 15,549
Pantograph 16 ea 11 176| 167.20 29,428 104.36 1,670 1943.60 31,098
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 300 If |[ 0.8032 241 167.20 40,291 40.60 12,179 7.62 2,286 182.52 54,757
(Dc) 36" Single Cable Tray 180 If || 0.5419 98| 167.20 16,308 38.64 6,955 5.14 925 134.38 24,189
36" Cable Tray Fitting 6 ea || 6.3113 38[ 167.20 6,332 299.80 1,799 59.88 359 1414.95 8,490
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 140 If || 0.8032 112 167.20 18,803 40.60 5,684 7.62 1,067 182.52 25,553
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 400 If 1.6412 656| 167.20 109,765 79.81 31,924 15.57 6,228 369.79 147,918
Swgr Tp Chargers 600A 842 If |[ 0.2557 215| 167.20 36,002 37.01 31,164 2.43 2,043 82.20 69,208
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 3726 If || 0.1017 379 167.20 63,385 24.68 91,957 0.97 3,597 42.66 158,938
Control Cable & Terms 5589 If || 0.0996 557| 167.20 93,100 5.30 29,623 0.95 5,283 22.90 128,006

2,875 480,656 211,285 27,273 719,215

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

17 of 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UN|T" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.2.6

Equipment
480V Swgr 2 ea | 314.16 628| 167.20 105,057 2980.58 5,961 55509.28 111,019
Chargers 14 ea 11 154 167.20 25,749 104.36 1,461 1943.60 27,210
Pantographs 28 ea 11 308| 167.20 51,499 104.36 2,922 1943.60 54,421
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 510 If |[ 0.8032 410 167.20 68,495 40.60 20,705 7.62 3,887 182.52 93,087
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 250 If || 0.5419 135 167.20 22,651 38.64 9,660 5.14 1,285 134.38 33,596
36" Cable Tray Fittings 7 ea || 6.3113 44| 167.20 7,387 299.80 2,099 59.88 419 1414.95 9,905
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 100 If || 0.8032 80| 167.20 13,430 40.60 4,060 7.62 762 182.52 18,252
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 700 If 1.1823 828| 167.20 138,384 54.82 38,376 11.22 7,852 263.73 184,612
Swgr To Chargers 600A 763 If 0.353 269| 167.20 45,035 37.54 28,643 3.35 2,555 99.91 76,233
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 5820 If || 0.1042 606| 167.20 101,396 24.71 143,804 0.99 5,753 43.12 250,954
Control Cable & Terms 9603 If || 0.1008 968| 167.20 161,802 5.31 51,026 0.96 9,181 23.12 222,009

4,431 740,886 298,371 42,039 1,081,297

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

18 0f 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: ARCADIA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNIT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST

PH.2.7
Equipment
Transformers ea 180.4 361| 167.20 60,327 1711.54 3,423 31875.08 63,750
480V Swgr ea || 314.16 628| 167.20 105,057 2980.58 5,961 55509.28 111,019
Chargers 12 ea 11 132| 167.20 22,071 104.36 1,252 1943.60 23,323
Pantographs 24 ea 11 264| 167.20 44,142 104.36 2,505 1943.60 46,646
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 372 If || 0.8075 300| 167.20 50,224 40.63 15,114 7.66 2,850 183.30 68,187
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 275 If 0.5371 148| 167.20 24,697 38.61 10,617 5.10 1,401 133.51 36,715
36" Cable Tray Fittings 6 ea || 6.3113 38| 167.20 6,332 299.80 1,799 59.88 359 1414.95 8,490
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 240 If |[ 0.8032 193] 167.20 32,233 40.60 9,743 7.62 1,829 182.52 43,805
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 600 If 1.3666 820| 167.20 137,099 71.49 42,895 12.97 7,779 312.96 187,773
Swgr To Chargers 600A 926 If || 0.2937 272| 167.20 45,480 37.22 34,464 2.79 2,581 89.12 82,524
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000V Cables & Terms 7115 If || 0.0974 693| 167.20 115,833 24.63 175,231 0.92 6,573 41.83 297,636
Control Cable & Terms 10671 If || 0.0864 922| 167.20 154,106 5.15 54,910 0.82 8,744 20.41 217,761
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 37 ea | 9.1779 340 167.20 56,779 422.92 15,648 87.07 3,222 2044.57 75,649
Grounding
4/0 Bare Ground Ring 500 If || 0.1088 54 167.20 9,099 13.01 6,505 1.03 516 32.24 16,120
3/4" Ground Rod ea | 1.6473 7| 167.20 1,102 128.32 513 15.63 63 419.38 1,678
Test Well ea 5.247 5| 167.20 877 479.17 479 49.78 50 1406.27 1,406
Ground Connection 4 ea | 8.2364 33| 167.20 5,509 414.00 1,656 78.14 313 1869.30 7,477
15Kv Ductbank 100 If 1.549 155| 167.20 25,900 91.49 9,149 14.70 1,470 365.19 36,519

5,364 896,866 378,724 50,890 1,326,480

110549 ARCADIA.xIsm

190f 19

2:47 PM 4/25/2019



STUDY CAPITAL COST ESTIMATE
FOOTHILL TRANSIT

POMONA
EV INFRASTRUCTURE
POMONA
BMcD #110549
Engr Equip/ Const.
Direct Material Subcontract Equipment
Area / Discipline MHRS Cost Cost Cost Total Cost
01 |Engineered Equipment $16,942,688 $24,344 $16,967,033
02 |Civil
03 |Deep Foundations 984 $156,155 $153,528 $231,445 $40,619 $581,747
04 |Concrete
05 |Structural Steel $2,092,570 $2,092,570
06 [Architectural
07 [Piping
08 |Electrical 20,475 $3,403,299 $1,797,953 $191,273 $5,392,525
09 |T&D
10 |Insulation
11 |Coatings
12 |Specialty
13 [Demolition
14 |Misc Directs

o
S\ MEDONNEL L g 7

Total Direct Cost $3,559,454  $18,894,169 $2,324,014 $256,236 $25,033,874
Rev. Revision Date Construction Mgmt & Indirects 15% $3,755,081
1 03/06/19 Engineering 12% $3,004,065
2 03/21/19 Start-Up 6% $1,502,032
Permitting 2% $500,677
Total Indirect Cost $8,761,856
] |
Total Direct and Indirect Costs $33,795,729

Cost
Design Contingency 25% $8,448,932
Contractor Fee 5% $1,689,786
Total Project Cost 30% $43,934,448

110549 POMONA xIsm

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



FOOTHILL TRANSIT
POMONA
EV INFRASTRUCTURE
POMONA
110549

Engr Equip/ Const. Indirect, Design

Direct Subcontract Equipment
Description MHRS Labor Cost  Material Cost Cost Cost Total Cost

Contingency and
Contractor Fee Phase Totals

PH.1.1 & 1.2 Foothill Scope (2023) 3,300.6 $543,699|  $1,021,878]  $1,285,419 $52,872 $2,903,868| 176% $5,096,288|
2.0 |PH.1.1& 1.2 SCE Scope (2023) 1,346 $223,657 $472,975 $21,216 $717,848 176% $1,259,824]
3.0 |PH.1.1& 1.2 Chargers (2023) 44 $7,314 $957,214 $776 $965,304] 176% $1,694,109)
4.0 _|PH.1.3 Foothill Scope (2025) 822 $136,560 $579,020 $8,333 $723,913] 176% $1,270,467|
5.0 |PH.1.3 SCE Scope (2025) 176%
6.0 |PH.1.3 Chargers (2025) 33 $5,485 $717,911 $582 $723,978 176% $1,270,581]
7.0 _|PH.1.4 Foothill Scope (2026) 695 $115,442 $576,592 $7,128 $699,161] 176% $1,227,028]
8.0 |PH.1.4 SCE Scope (2026) 176%
9.0 _|PH.1.4 Chargers (2026) 33 $5,485 $717,911 $582 $723,978 176% $1,270,581]
10.0 |PH.1.5 Foothill Scope (2027) 6,074]  $1,009,653]  $2,428,755 $59,603 $3,498,011] 176% $6,139,010)
11.0 |PH.1.5 SCE Scope (2027) 628 $104,439 $143,582 $11,087 $259,108] 176% $454,734]
12.0 |PH.1.5 Chargers (2027) 121 $20,112]  $2,632,339 $2,135 $2,654,586) 176% $4,658,799)
13.0 |PH.2.1 Foothills Scope (2028) 2,325 $384,070 $257,484]  $1,038,595 $32,507 $1,712,656) 176% $3,005,711]
14.0 |PH.2.1 SCE Scope (2028) $1,172,587 $1,256 $1,173,844 176% $2,060,095|
15.0 |PH.2.1 Chargers (2028) 77 $12,799]  $1,675,125 $1,359 $1,689,282) 176% $2,964,690)
16.0 |PH.2.2 Foothill Scope (2029) 4,264 $708,789|  $1,763,239 $41,892 $2,513,921] 176% $4,411,931]
17.0 |PH.2.2 SCE Scope (2029) 314 $52,219 $71,791 $124,010) 176% $217,638]
18.0 |PH.2.2 Chargers (2029) 88 $14,627|  $1,914,428 $1,553 $1,930,608] 176% $3,388,217
19.0 |PH.2.3 & 2.4 Foothill Scope (2030-2031) 604 $100,363 $412,172 $6,088 $518,623] 176% $910,183]
20.0 |PH.2.3 & 2.4 SCE Scope (2030-2031) 176%
21.0 |PH.2.3 & 2.4 Chargers (2030-2031) 22 $3,657 $478,607 $388 $482,652) 176% $847,054]
22.0 |PH.2.5 & 2.6 Foothill Scope (2032-2033) 646 $107,427 $421,953 $6,491 $535,870) 176% $940,451]
23.0 |PH.2.5 & 2.6 SCE Scope (2032-2033) 176%
24.0 |PH.2.5 & 2.6 Chargers (2032-2033) 22 $3,657 $478,607 $388 $482,652) 176% $847,054]
$43,934,448]
PH.1.1&1.2 $8,050,221]
PH.13 $2,541,048]
PH 1.4 $2,497,609)
PH.15 $11,252,543]
PH.2.1 $8,030,497|
PH.2.2 $8,017,786|
PH.2.38&2.4 $1,757,238]
PH.2.58 2.6 $1,787,506)
Total Foothill Scope $23,001,070]
Total SCE Scope $3,992,292]
Total Chargers $16,941,086

Total Direct Cost 21,459 $3,559,454 894,169 $2,324,014 $256,236 $25,033,874

110549 POMONA xlsm 2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT SUMMARY EST LEVEL: STUDY
PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL || EQUIPMENT || EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT 16,942,688 24,344 16,967,032
ESTIMATE TOTALS $16,942,688| $24,344f $16,967,032

110549 POMONA xIsm 30f18 2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:
PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT
POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

ESTIMATE DETAIL
ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT # 110549 DO NOT COPY WHITE CELLS ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL PROCESS EQUIP EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
UMH | MH [RATE®MH] LTTLcosT] uniTcosT | mTTLCcosT || uniT cosT [ s TTLcosT| uniTcosT[ER TTLCcos]|  COST COST
ENGINEERED EQUIPMENT
Transformers (1.1 & 1.2) 4 ea 95721.40 382,886 1471.72 5,887 97193.12 388,772
480V Swor (1.1 &1.2) 1 ea 71791.05 71,791 2562.94 2,563 74353.99 74,354
Chargers (1.1 & 1.2) 4 ea 239303.51 957,214 89.74 359 || 239393.24 957,573
Pantographs (1.1 & 1.2) 8 ea 83756.23 670,050 89.74 718 83845.97 670,768
Chargers (1.3) 3 ea 239303.51 717,911 89.74 269 || 239393.24 718,180
Pantographs (1.3) 6 ea 83756.23 502,537 89.74 538 83845.97 503,076
Chargers (1.4) 3 ea 239303.51 717,911 89.74 269 || 239393.24 718,180
Pantographs (1.4) 6 ea 83756.23 502,537 89.74 538 83845.97 503,076
480V Swagr (1.5) 2 ea 71791.05 143,582 2562.94 5,126 74353.99 148,708
Chargers (1.5) 11 ea 239303.51 2,632,339 89.74 987 || 239393.24 2,633,326
Pantographs (1.5) 22 ea 83756.23 1,842,637 89.74 1,974 83845.97 1,844,611
Chargers (2.1) 7 ea 239303.51 1,675,125 89.74 628 || 239393.24 1,675,753
Pantographs (2.1) 14 ea 83756.23 1,172,587 89.74 1,256 83845.97 1,173,844
480V Swagr (2.2) 1 ea 71791.05 71,791 71791.05 71,791
Chargers (2.2) 8 ea 239303.51 1,914,428 89.74 718 || 239393.24 1,915,146
Pantographs (2.2) 16 ea 83756.23 1,340,100 89.74 1,436 83845.97 1,341,535
Chargers (2.3 & 2.4) 2 ea 239303.51 478,607 89.74 179 || 239393.24 478,786
Pantographs (2.3 & 2.4) 4 ea 83756.23 335,025 89.74 359 83845.97 335,384
Chargers (2.5 & 2.6) 2 ea 239303.51 478,607 89.74 179 || 239393.24 478,786
Pantographs (2.5 & 2.6) 4 ea 83756.23 335,025 89.74 359 83845.97 335,384
TOTALS 16,942,688 24,344 16,967,032

110549 POMONA xIsm

40f18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:
PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT
POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

DEEP FOUNDATIONS

SUMMARY

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 DEEP FOUNDATIONS 984 156,155 153,528 231,445 40,619 581,747
ESTIMATE TOTALS 984 $156,155 $153,528 $231,445 $40,619 $581,747

110549 POMONA xIsm

50f18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT ESTIMATE DETAIL EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE DEEP FOUNDATIONS ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 DO NOT COPY WHITE CELLS ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
UMH [ MH  [RATEsMH] LTTL cosT ][ uniTcosT | mTTL cosT|[ uniT cosT [ s TTL cosT|[ uniT cosT[ER TTL cos]  COST COST

DEEP FOUNDATIONS

Phase 1.1

Qty 40 Depth 25 LF/EA

36" Drilled Piers 1000 | VLF|f 0.4224 422]| 158.71 67,040 46.80 46,805 23.38 23,377 137.22 137,222

Mobilization 1 LS 40600 40,600 40600.00 40,600

Layout 40 EA 1.1 44| 158.71 6,983 174.58 6,983

Reinforcing 36450 | LB 1.51 54,870 1.51 54,870

Waste Spoils Off-Site 270 CY || 0.0495 13| 158.71 2,121 5.40 1,458 13.26 3,579

Pile Cut-Offs 40 EA 4.4 176 158.71 27,933 55.66 2,226 753.99 30,160

Testing

Test Piles 2 EA 9452 18,904 9452.21 18,904

Load Tests 2 EA 30450 60,900 30450.00 60,900

Phase 2.1

Qty 20 Depth 25 LF/EA

36" Drilled Piers 500 VLF| 0.4224 211) 158.71 33,520 46.80 23,402 23.38 11,689 137.22 68,611

Mobilization 1 LS 40600 40,600 40600.00 40,600

Layout 20 EA 1.1 22| 158.71 3,492 174.58 3,492

Reinforcing 18900 | LB 1.51 28,451 1.51 28,451

Waste Spoils Off-Site 140 CY | 0.0495 7| 158.71 1,100 5.40 756 13.26 1,856

Pile Cut-Offs 20 EA 4.4 88| 158.71 13,967 55.66 1,113 753.99 15,080

Testing

Test Piles 2 EA 4770 9,540 4770.05 9,540

Load Tests 2 EA 30450 60,900 30450.00 60,900
TOTALS 984 156,155 153,528 231,445 40,619 581,747

110549 POMONA xIsm 60f 18 2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE DEEP FOUNDATIONS ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 DO NOT COPY WHITE CELLS ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
UMH [ MH  [RATEsMH] LTTL cosT ][ uniTcosT | mTTL cosT|[ uniT cosT [ s TTL cosT|[ uniT cosT[ER TTL cos]  COST COST
TOTALS

110549 POMONA xIsm

70f 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:

PROJECT DESC:

FOOTHILL TRANSIT

POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE

STRUCTURAL STEEL

SUMMARY

EST LEVEL: STUDY
ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019

PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 STEEL 2,092,570 2,092,570
ESTIMATE TOTALS $2,092,570 $2,092,570

110549 POMONA xIsm

8of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE STRUCTURAL STEEL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 DO NOT COPY WHITE CELLS ESTIMATOR:
DESCRIPTION QTY. |UNIT| LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
UMH [ MH  [RATEsMH] LTTL cosT ][ uniTcosT | mTTL cosT|[ uniT cosT [ s TTL cosT|[ uniT cosT[ER TTL cos]  COST COST
STEEL
Phase 1.1 PEMB Structure 30976 sf 25 786,016 25.38 786,016
Phase 1.1 Standing Seam Roof 30976 sf 12 377,288 12.18 377,288
Phase 2.1 PEMB Structure 24653 sf 25| 625,570 25.38 625,570
Phase 2.1 Standing Seam Roof 24653 sf 12| 300,274 12.18 300,274
Phase 1.1 Striping 1686 If 1 1,711 1.02 1,711
Phase 2.1 Striping 1686 If 1 1,711 1.02 1,711
TOTALS 2,092,570 2,092,570

110549 POMONA xIsm

9of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT: FOOTHILL TRANSIT SUMMARY EST LEVEL: STUDY
PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DUE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT #: 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION LABOR MATERIAL SUBCON EQUIPMENT TOTAL
MH COST COST COST RENT / STS COST
P2 PH.1.1 4,034 670,593 268,452 38,276 977,321
"P 3 PH.1.3 855 142,045 76,483 8,108 226,635
"P 4 PH.1.4 728 120,927 74,055 6,902 201,884
"P 5 PH.1.5 6,824 1,134,204 586,118 64,738 1,785,060
"P 6 PH.2.1 2,074 344,791 205,631 19,680 570,102
"P 7 PH.2.2 4,666 775,636 423,140 41,291 1,240,067
"P 8 PH23&24 626 104,020 77,147 5,937 187,105
P9 PH.25& 2.6 668 111,083 86,928 6,340 204,351
ESTIMATE TOTALS 20,475 $3,403,299 $1,797,953 $191,273 $5,392,525

110549 POMONA .xIsm

10 of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.1.1
Equipment
Transformers 4 ea 180.4 722| 166.22 119,944 1711.54 6,846 31697.43 126,790
480V Swgr 1 ea || 314.16 314| 166.22 52,219 2980.58 2,981 55199.92 55,200
Chargers 4 ea 11 44| 166.22 7,314 104.36 417 1932.77 7,731
Pantographs 8 ea 11 88| 166.22 14,627 104.36 835 1932.77 15,462
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 470 If |[ 0.8032 378| 166.22 62,751 40.60 19,081 7.62 3,582 181.73 85,414
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray
36" Cable Tray Fittings 1 ea || 6.3113 6| 166.22 1,049 299.80 300 59.88 60 1408.73 1,409
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 80 If || 0.8032 64| 166.22 10,681 40.60 3,248 7.62 610 181.73 14,539
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 1000 If 1.1469| 1,147 166.22 190,638 64.84 64,837 10.88 10,881 266.36 266,356
Swgr To Chargers 600A 275 If |[ 0.3112 86[ 166.22 14,224 37.31 10,261 2.95 812 91.99 25,297
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 1785 If || 0.1026 183| 166.22 30,451 24.69 44,072 0.97 1,738 42.72 76,261
Control Cables & Terms 2700 If || 0.1018 275| 166.22 45,682 5.33 14,379 0.97 2,607 23.21 62,668
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 28 ea | 9.1779 257| 166.22 42,715 422.92 11,842 87.07 2,438 2035.54 56,995
Lightning Protection 30323 sf 2.21 67,127 2.21 67,127
Grounding
4/0 Ground Ring 810 If || 0.1088 88| 166.22 14,653 13.01 10,539 1.03 836 32.13 26,028
3/4" Ground Rod ea | 1.6473 13| 166.22 2,190 128.32 1,027 15.63 125 417.75 3,342
Test Well ea 5.247 10| 166.22 1,744 479.17 958 49.78 100 1401.10 2,802
Ground Connection ea | 8.2364 49| 166.22 8,214 414.00 2,484 78.14 469 1861.19 11,167
15Kv Ductbank 200 If 1.549 310| 166.22 51,495 91.49 18,298 14.70 2,939 363.66 72,732
4,034 670,593 268,452 38,276 977,321

110549 POMONA .xIsm

110f18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNl'I'" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.1.3
Equipment
Chargers ea 11 33| 166.22 5,485 104.36 313 1932.77 5,798
Pantographs ea 11 66| 166.22 10,970 104.36 626 1932.77 11,597
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 60 If || 0.8032 48| 166.22 8,011 40.60 2,436 7.62 457 181.73 10,904
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 135 If || 0.5516 74| 166.22 12,377 38.71 5,226 5.23 706 135.62 18,309
36" Cable Tray Fittings 2 ea || 6.3113 13| 166.22 2,098 299.80 600 59.88 120 1408.73 2,817
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 80 If || 0.8032 64| 166.22 10,681 40.60 3,248 7.62 610 181.73 14,539
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 100 If || 0.4811 48| 166.22 7,997 38.23 3,823 4.56 456 122.77 12,277
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 1727 If || 0.0978 169| 166.22 28,088 24.63 42,543 0.93 1,603 41.83 72,234
Control Cables & Terms 2625 If || 0.0872 229| 166.22 38,031 5.15 13,532 0.83 2,171 20.47 53,734
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 12 ea | 9.1779 110( 166.22 18,306 422.92 5,075 87.07 1,045 2035.54 24,426
855 142,045 76,483 8,108 226,635

110549 POMONA .xIsm

12 0f 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.1.4

Equipment

Chargers ea 11 33| 166.22 5,485 104.36 313 1932.77 5,798

Pantographs ea 11 66| 166.22 10,970 104.36 626 1932.77 11,597
Cable Tray

(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 110 If |[ 0.5419 60| 166.22 9,908 38.64 4,251 5.14 566 133.85 14,724

36" Cable Tray Fittings 1 ea || 6.3113 6| 166.22 1,049 299.80 300 59.88 60 1408.73 1,409

(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 80 If |[ 0.8032 64 166.22 10,681 40.60 3,248 7.62 610 181.73 14,539
480V Feeders

Swgr To Chargers 600A 235 If |[ 0.2916 69 166.22 11,391 37.21 8,743 2.77 650 88.45 20,785
Dc Cabling & Terms

(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 1640 If |[ 0.0987 162| 166.22 26,912 24.64 40,417 0.94 1,536 41.99 68,864

Control Cables & Terms 2460 If || 0.0641 158 166.22 26,224 4.89 12,021 0.61 1,497 16.16 39,742
General Lighting

Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 12 ea | 9.1779 110( 166.22 18,306 422.92 5,075 87.07 1,045 2035.54 24,426

728 120,927 74,055 6,902 201,884

110549 POMONA .xIsm

13 0f 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNI'I'" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.1.5
Equipment
480V Swgr 2 ea || 314.16 628| 166.22 104,439 2980.58 5,961 55199.92 110,400
Chargers 11 ea 11 121| 166.22 20,112 104.36 1,148 1932.77 21,260
Pantographs 22 ea 11 242| 166.22 40,225 104.36 2,296 1932.77 42,521
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 285 If |[ 0.8032 229| 166.22 38,051 40.60 11,570 7.62 2,172 181.73 51,794
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 400 If || 0.5419 217| 166.22 36,028 38.64 15,456 5.14 2,056 133.85 53,540
36" Cable Tray Fittings 2 ea || 6.3113 13| 166.22 2,098 299.80 600 59.88 120 1408.73 2,817
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 140 If || 0.8032 112| 166.22 18,692 40.60 5,684 7.62 1,067 181.73 25,442
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 2950 If || 0.9271| 2,735[ 166.22 454,616 57.96 170,972 8.80| 25,949 220.86 651,536
Swgr To Chargers 600A 415 If |[ 0.4427 184| 166.22 30,538 38.03 15,781 4.20 1,743 115.81 48,062
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 8750 If |[ 0.0933 816| 166.22 135,679 24.58 215,079 0.89 7,744 40.97 358,502
Control Cables & Terms 13125 0.074 971| 166.22 161,434 5.00 65,646 0.70 9,214 18.00 236,295
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 44 ea | 9.1779 404| 166.22 67,124 422.92 18,608 87.07 3,831 2035.54 89,564
Lightning Protection 23829 | sf 2.21 52,751 2.21 52,751
Grounding
4/0 Ground Ring 750 If |[ 0.1088 82 166.22 13,568 13.01 9,758 1.03 774 32.13 24,100
3/4" Ground Rod ea | 1.6473 10| 166.22 1,643 128.32 770 15.63 94 417.75 2,507
Test Well ea 5.247 10| 166.22 1,744 479.17 958 49.78 100 1401.10 2,802
Ground Connection ea || 8.2364 49| 166.22 8,214 414.00 2,484 78.14 469 1861.19 11,167
6,824 1,134,204 586,118 64,738 1,785,060

110549 POMONA .xIsm

14 of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNIT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.2.1
Equipment
Chargers 7 ea 11 77| 166.22 12,799 104.36 731 1932.77 13,529
Pantographs 14 ea 11 154 166.22 25,598 104.36 1,461 1932.77 27,059
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 260 If |[ 0.8032 209| 166.22 34,714 40.60 10,555 7.62 1,981 181.73 47,250
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 220 If || 0.5419 119| 166.22 19,815 38.64 8,501 5.14 1,131 133.85 29,447
36" Cable Tray Fittings 3 ea || 6.3113 19| 166.22 3,147 299.80 899 59.88 180 1408.73 4,226
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 85 If || 0.8032 68| 166.22 11,349 40.60 3,451 7.62 648 181.73 15,447
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 510 If || 0.3022 154 166.22 25,615 37.26 19,004 2.87 1,462 90.36 46,082
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 4700 If || 0.0955 449| 166.22 74,602 24.61 115,650 0.91 4,258 41.39 194,510
Control Cables & Terms 7032 If |[ 0.0808 568| 166.22 94,437 5.08 35,728 0.77 5,390 19.28 135,555
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 28 ea | 9.1779 257| 166.22 42,715 422.92 11,842 87.07 2,438 2035.54 56,995
2,074 344,791 205,631 19,680 570,102

110549 POMONA .xIsm

150f 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH  [RATE $/MH] LTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT [ mTTL cosT || uniT cost | s TTicosT || uniT cosT [ER TTL cos COST COST
PH.2.2
Equipment
480V Swgr ea || 314.16 314| 166.22 52,219 52219.34 52,219
Chargers ea 11 88| 166.22 14,627 104.36 835 1932.77 15,462
Pantographs 16 ea 11 176 166.22 29,255 104.36 1,670 1932.77 30,924
Cable Tray
(Dc) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 100 If || 0.8032 80| 166.22 13,351 40.60 4,060 7.62 762 181.73 18,173
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 340 If |[ 0.5419 184| 166.22 30,623 38.64 13,138 5.14 1,748 133.85 45,509
36" Cable Tray Fittings 4 ea | 6.3113 25| 166.22 4,196 299.80 1,199 59.88 240 1408.73 5,635
(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 60 If |[ 0.8032 48| 166.22 8,011 40.60 2,436 7.62 457 181.73 10,904
480V Feeders
Xfmr To Swgr 4000A 1700 If 1.0112| 1,719| 166.22 285,744 60.73 103,234 9.59 16,310 238.40 405,288
Swgr To Chargers 600A 760 If 0.267 203| 166.22 33,728 37.07 28,175 2.53 1,925 83.99 63,829
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 8065 If || 0.0907 732| 166.22 121,653 24.54 197,954 0.86 6,944 40.49 326,550
Control Cables & Terms 12093 If || 0.0664 803| 166.22 133,411 4.91 59,410 0.63 7,615 16.57 200,436
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 32 ea | 9.1779 294| 166.22 48,817 422.92 13,533 87.07 2,786 2035.54 65,137
4,666 775,636 423,140 41,291 1,240,067

110549 POMONA .xIsm

16 of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL: STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.2.3& 2.4

Equipment

Chargers ea 11 22| 166.22 3,657 104.36 209 1932.77 3,866

Pantographs ea 11 44| 166.22 7,314 104.36 417 1932.77 7,731
Cable Tray

(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 20 If |[ 0.5419 11) 166.22 1,801 38.64 773 5.14 103 133.85 2,677

36" Cable Tray Fittings 1 ea || 6.3113 6| 166.22 1,049 299.80 300 59.88 60 1408.73 1,409

(480V) 36" Stacked Cable Tray 45 If |[ 0.8032 36[ 166.22 6,008 40.60 1,827 7.62 343 181.73 8,178
480V Feeders

Swgr To Chargers 600A 110 If |[ 0.3512 39[ 166.22 6,421 37.53 4,128 3.33 366 99.23 10,916
Dc Cabling & Terms

(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 2090 If |[ 0.0904 189| 166.22 31,417 24.55 51,303 0.86 1,793 40.44 84,513

Control Cables & Terms 3150 If || 0.0652 205| 166.22 34,149 4.90 15,433 0.62 1,949 16.36 51,531
General Lighting

Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 8 ea | 9.1779 73| 166.22 12,204 422.92 3,383 87.07 697 2035.54 16,284

626 104,020 77,147 5,937 187,105

110549 POMONA .xIsm

17 of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



PROJECT CLIENT:  FOOTHILL TRANSIT

ESTIMATE DETAIL

EST LEVEL:

STUDY

PROJECT DESC: POMONA - EV INFRASTRUCTURE ELECTRICAL ESTIMATE DATE: 4/22/2019
PROJECT # 110549 ESTIMATOR: RHR
DESCRIPTION QTY. UNlT" LABOR MATERIAL SUBCONTRACT EQUIPMENT RENT UNIT TOTAL
[ uwmH MH [ RATE $/MH] LTTLCcosT | uniT cosT | mTTLcosT || unitcosT | sTTLcosT |[ uniT cosT R TTL cost COST COST
PH.2.5& 2.6
Equipment
Chargers ea 11 22| 166.22 3,657 104.36 209 1932.77 3,866
Pantographs ea 11 44| 166.22 7,314 104.36 417 1932.77 7,731
Cable Tray
(Dc) Single 36" Cable Tray 90 If |[ 0.5419 49| 166.22 8,106 38.64 3,478 5.14 463 133.85 12,047
480V Feeders
Swgr To Chargers 600A 70 If |[ 0.4654 33[ 166.22 5,415 38.15 2,670 4.42 309 119.92 8,395
Dc Cabling & Terms
(2) #750Mcm 1000 Cables & Terms 2380 If |[ 0.0893 213| 166.22 35,338 24.53 58,391 0.85 2,017 40.23 95,746
Control Cables & Terms 3930 If || 0.0598 235| 166.22 39,049 4.84 19,005 0.57 2,229 15.34 60,283
General Lighting
Led Surface Fixture & Branch Conduit/Cable 8 ea | 9.1779 73| 166.22 12,204 422.92 3,383 87.07 697 2035.54 16,284
668 111,083 86,928 6,340 204,351

110549 POMONA .xIsm

18 of 18

2:56 PM 4/25/2019



APPENDIX B - DEPOT YARD LAYOUTS



Qty 30 - 43' Double Deck Buses
Qty 160 - 40' Buses

Target: 190 Bus Locations
112 Total Charging Spaces, 56 Chargers
80 Spots for 40° Buses,
32 Spots for 43' DD Buses
78 Parking Spaces

ACHIEVED: 190 Bus Locations
110 Total Charging Spaces, 55 Chargers
46 Spots for 40' Buses,
64 Spots for BOTH 40' SD & 43' DD Buses
8 - DD Bus Parking Stalls

72 - 40' Bus Parking Spaces

Reserve:
32 - 40' Buses No Reserve Scheduled.
8 - DD Buses
6 BUSES \
(”””f” e e e | ‘
| 40' BUS 40' BUS 40' BUS 40' BUS 40' BUS 40' BUS

.

I

I

I

-

Easement

4' FRONT-BACK CLEARANCE
TO MATCH EXISTING

PARKING STALL LINE TO MATCH EXISTING

PHASE LEGEND

PHASE 1.1 (2021)

PHASE 1.2 (2022)

PHASE 1.3 (2023)

PHASE 1.4 (2024)

PHASE 1.5 (2025)

PHASE 2.1 (2026)

PHASE 2.2 (2027)
PHASE 2.3 (2028)
PHASE 2.4 (2029)

PHASE 2.5 (2030)

PHASE 2.6 (2031)

PHASE 2.7 (2032)

PHASE 2.8 (2033)

(2) PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER BY SCE.
ASSUMED 2500 KVA.

SPACE FOR CHARGING EQUIPMENT.
GROUND LEVEL OR RAISED PLATFORM.

16 - 43' DOUBLE-DECK

COMPATABLE CHARGING STALLS

15 KV CONDUIT BY SCE.
6" PVC, 18" BELOW FINISHED GRADE

64 - 40'/43' COMBINATION
COMPATABLE CHARGING STALLS

16 - 43' DOUBLE-DECK
COMPATABLE CHARGING STALLS

/<

COMPLETE
STRUCTURE

16 - 43' DOUBLE-DECK

COMPATABLE CHARGING STALLS

2) PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER BY SCE.
ASSUMED 2500 KVA.

SPACE FOR CHARGING EQUIPMENT.
GROUND LEVEL OR RAISED PLATFORM.

15 KV CONDUIT BY SCE.
6" PVC, 18" BELOW FINISHED GRADE

16 - 43' DOUBLE-DECK
COMPATABLE CHARGING STALLS

AT B A Il B A I B I A I B | ‘ \:"A";\:"B"}\:"A":I:"é"li\:",&"ll:"é"l\:",&"Hl"é"l’ I:",&":i\:"é"ll:",&"ll:"é"l I:"A"H:"é"“",& l:"é'?\: A il B Ht A db B |l A I Confirm Bus Wash
; I il It 10 It | It | y e 1 ik Tt 1 1k 1 1k ik ! ! I ‘ il I b I It T o I it I | Entrance Location
(..., . W ., . . - LR TR PR P PR TR I P PR | TR , |y | ) oy ., ., ., ., ), . '
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
e Tl Tl Tofe T Tle T e T e 17 \ \:J};\:J};\;i;l:i! \:j}!ﬂj}lw:ilﬂil ETHTHTHTI |:TIETHT gil\;il:i! \:ilgilgil\;il
1 1 1 1 1 1 1
. ESor Sl S G o Sl S olr 8ol 4 = S| = T T I ST P T 2 e O B I T T S 2555 O | I | P S | [ o o - = = = = = = =
< m ! m | m m m m m m o oy om hEom fyom 1 m 1 m M M I m I m I m I m I m I m I m 1 m I m I m 1 oM I m i m I m
. | 1 | o | [ [ | F o | [ | [ P M m M m how e M oa M s M om e e e 2 2] P R | 1 = TS| IS § LI oo LIS | SO | TSSO | I
¢ P I I P g R FI Y T P P I ] P S AT I T R T T 2l oy 2§ I P T T & A T ST ST i
PR 2o o T e 2o 2o 2 2 \:b:\:b:\:b:|:b: \:b:|:bl\:b:\:bl Lgl\:gll:gll:gl ':S“:Si I / Ebi‘:bitbl ‘:b“:b“,'o“:'oi
| | A A T (] ] (A \:‘*:\:‘*:\:‘*:h‘*: PO | A | IR T 5555 | I A | P P T S T /1GCHARGER% h‘*l\:‘*lg‘*: \:‘*Ig‘*li‘*l\:‘*l
1
; | il 1l i I il I 7 : [ I :I: ]l 1 i i ] s i [ [ ! ; i I\ // 7 ‘ I Ik I I 1| [ |
1
| Il | | \ \ | 1% | L _:I: 1B i i i ] s i i [ ! i e [t % { i i 1 b i | } [ 1
E L S — —_ = f— — —{ = — —dAb- — Ak = Ak = =i | — — —_ | =m =m0 mmm mm | wm | owm | awmeam wm - v | am owm am wm m | am om0 - - e | e - - —— g - | B e = am - R H . Sl [
5 L i il | {1 | il i iﬁ';‘{ h ik ik il Lo | L[] L[] L[] Lol L] L[] L[] \ \ U L[] 7’/ | L[] L1 L2 | L[] L1 L1 \ BUSWaSh
. \ 7
i A MBI AT B LT A Il s [T A [l B | /3 '//1 AU B A B T AN B A A A B A AT B AF A B N - L /,:/ % CB AF A B AT B A[F A I B |
! 1t 1 1t e Il Il il | | %”y;%’ i e 1 i S i il i ] il il ! il i Z /’fl 7% b it I T I it II l
i h i \ } 1 | " f EEL ! I 1 I 1 1 1
-, -, ., = i, .6 -, ., . %% o | | D L DI - <Y £ -~ < | TR S T /%y - < - i | TR | [
v 1 I ) IE T 1t T ] Tole Tale Tl T “ ‘li//fl e ] ik | 1| | iL Tl Toafe Toafe Toafe Tagss Tl Tl T oo T o T T 1 Gretrers N | A T O N | | L
) @ (A ) | @ @ 0 @ }%} ) (%) L)) ) ) ) ) ) ) "0 " » g | w il o o » /} /},/A T} I} T » L)} (s} ) 7)) l
. S Syl S S Sl S 8 r 8 7 r2 2R g \:gh:gh:gh:gl |::,I\::,I|::,I|:: 58 :I\::I\:: ;/;:';u = = ] L= L= | L= | L= (=T -
. o | L | Lol | i | Lol | [ | (ol 3',/}!: | L | | PR S| o | o | RSO - ol el | ol | Il {555 [ | el [ e :,%,4//,, o P ' B o e e [ n !
v ¥ o ¥ ol ¥ yh < < < < 7 I S T G G | e S | I L | | T | e T | D S T % Y % P o o 2 I R G| S | P
P g e oy T o 2 £ 2 7 ] L L T I | PR st | D | L | [ SO R G T ;/1‘/, O S T - | LIS LS |
e F e S b ¥ ¥ ® 1,//;!, | E T | T S | S PR L L | TR P ST T A,/i,ii/;,,, S T DR | [ L
A - 1 1
; It il |1 || Il I i }%; ; it {|i i i i i I | i i i i I 2 é { I I |k s ] (v i 1
| 1 1 1 1
i i i i j R | Il Il it " ! i|r i i i i i ; | i i i i ; % { ! i i ! b i 1
J | Ny | - | j | | e mmm [ e m=mm | memem | acenee | memee [ acnem | memen | e m | a0 memm=mm | ---= - | -=-- 4 - - - - - - - - - P [ [ pe—
O 1 1 1 o 1 o | o | e o %7/ ] | o] | [t [ il [ini| - [ i) o [ I | 7 [ | | | | —
yi \
2"- L I I 120 N ABB 325 KW CHARGER
—_—
\— 12' PARKING STALL WIDTH TO MATCH EXISTING
4' WIDE RESERVED AREA ASSUMES 2' WIDE COLUMN AT CENTER,
2' SIDE CLEARANCE FROM BUS TO COLUMN
2' SIDE-SIDE CLEARANCE TO MATCH EXISTING
8 - 43' DOUBLE-DECK PARKING STALLS
[ e 1 Sk | i | St [ S M
{ il i 1 It i L i !
! i i i | e i i !
' i | | | \: ' 1k
1 IR} i i LI 1 1 i
(0} (0} (0} 9] 0 I 0 I 9] 9] I
s B s B e N e T | e B s == 1 s B
I m i1 @ 1t m it @M ffr @@ 1 @@ @ i1 @ ¥
te il lig ligiligiig ilgilgl
. AT P ol Z o Z o S e = oqfe T oqr T e Ty
Maintenance Building o fF - - fF - - - o
1 1 1 1 1 i 1
I | | B A
) ik ik ik il ilh i|b ifn i
L | o | - — - — | - — 1
' 1k ik ik il 1 1k i |
NATURAL GAS SERVICE
‘ ‘
l - l
; 40' BUS o |
| | ! |
7777777777 1
l ———————— l
| | 6BUSES - !
‘ 40' BUS | B ;
! : ’ 40 BUSES w
e e e e e e e e 4 7 |
| ————— — — — — —= o /S zZ !
| | D: |
| 40'BUS | = |
| - |
e 2 |
| |
: 40'BUS I |
‘ : ‘
e g
| | |
| 40'BUS E | |
| | 4 | |
; ——— === P |
I /
: 40' BUS | \ y ;
| I \ N ‘
1 =0 ;
| |
l —— | ! l
1
| 40'BUS . o |
1
| | | | l
| ———————— L sg-13me :
l 40' BUS N ; ‘L l
I | |
M S |
| I \ |
| I |
| 40' BUS i | \
‘ ' ‘ FIRE HYDRANT
L 4 |
e 1 \ | A
| , | \ | @] \ \
; 40'BUS : N - ) - - - - : \ \
| | ‘ ~ [ | | | [ | ‘ \ \
: ——————— \ 40' BUS ‘ 40' BUS | 40' BUS \ 40' BUS 40' BUS ‘ : . .
| 40' BUS : \\45'TURN | ]| o T TT—— | \ \
: : N il — — — — = = B | . 7 /7 e/ /= HE | : \ \
7777777777 | \ i i 1 \
} ~————————9  §5BUSES \ 40' BUS ‘ 40' BUS o 40' BUS \ 40' BUS 40' BUS ‘ : \ \
| 40' BUS : - = ]| NN Nt | \ \
| | ; \ \
e & } \ \
L — 4 - - - - - e e e e e e e e U | \ \
\ \
\
\
\
\
\
\
\
UNKNOWN BUILDING ——— \
\ \
Warehouse

ARCADIA CHARGING LAYOUT

0 8' 16'

32'

SCALE IN FEET

Fueling Station

46 - 40' SINGLE-DECK
COMPATABLE CHARGE SPOTS

8 CHARGERS

e

X\
N\

N\

40'BUS
nnn

N\
N

SO

L

408US —l A 40BUS @l A1 | COMPLETE 7
_________ s b ... __ _ . | STRUCTURE o 422
S B e B 7

40BUS —l B | aBUS > B! | //
__________ 4 | .

| : ] & /a/
. 40BUS [ A | | 40BUS [l Al | @ e
| | 1 2 3

- ——————— | - ///

40BUS > B s08US Wl B! | /
777777777 i /j%/
[ A e 7

40BUS —ll A 40BUS —ll A1 | %7

40BUS ] B! 408Us W B | //
,,,,,,,,, - 2w === === 1 /%%

‘ /a7
/-
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ | %Y
| 7/
40BUS I A 40BUS — A | /
" T ! %
| 40' BUS B I 40' BUS B !
-____________j_!_____ -____________j_!___ | 67 - 113/32" //”;
: 40BUS @l Al | 40BUS —fl Al ; | /
1 1 I \
e \ | /é?
: 40'BUS —l B | 408US —ll B| : \ ?2%
i 1 | \ %
| | \ | ///
' . ' . ! | | /
i 40'BUS — A i 40' BUS —> A |
S %_". T %_". | | | /éé
Y e | | %

. . | |

40BUS —[ B 40'BUS —| B | || — SPACE RESERVED |
e ] ] | FORSTRUCTURE :
"""""""""""""""""""""" i \ |

40'BUS —| A 40'BUS —| A i : |

| |
| \ |

40'BUS —| B 40'BUS —|| B i : |

| |
el | |
40BUS [ 4 40BUS [ Al : |
| |
] | | |
40BUS [ g 40BUS [ B| : |
| |
: ! \
| |
l | \
l \
l | \
l | \
| \
,,,,,, - —
|
COMPLETE !
STRUCTURE | = |
| \ o
‘ \ c
\ ! \‘ X
15 CHARGERS | . «
‘ . é
\ \‘ 3
\ \‘ e
\ ‘ \‘ §
o B i
| N 5
\ ! =
N
I/ I/ °:'i
! \
oz |
/’ ‘ E /]
% / [@ / |
s T
/ |
/
y )
/ -
- /
/
,,,,,,,,,,, / %
/
/
/
77777777777777777777777777 _/

Moved closer to wall.
Check Turn.

(2) PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER BY SCE.
ASSUMED 2500 KVA.

15 KV CONDUIT BY SCE.
6" PVC, 18" BELOW FINISHED GRADE

(2) PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER BY SCE.
ASSUMED 2500 KVA.

15 KV CONDUIT BY SCE.
6" PVC, 18" BELOW FINISHED GRADE




PHASE LEGEND

PHASE 1.1 (2023)

PHASE 1.2 (2024)

PHASE 1.3 (2025)

PHASE 1.4 (2026)

PHASE 1.5 (2027)
PHASE 2.1 (2028)

PHASE 2.2 (2029)

PHASE 2.3 (2030)
PHASE 2.4 (2031)

PHASE 2.5 (2032)

PHASE 2.6 (2033)

130 - 40' Buses

Target:

40 Chargers Serving 80 Charging Stalls

12 BUSES NOT SHOWN ON LAYOUT
2 - PROCURED IN 2029
8 - PROCURED IN 2030

60 Parked
65'-0" | / Proterra Blade Charger
I I
r 0 0 T
| L i S
| o ~ LEASED LAND FOR CNG
ree o = ~ -
| r o ~ - >~ -
| | ~ I N
| | T~ S
\ ! - ~ ~
| | T~ S
| | T~ T~ ~_
‘ ‘ \\ 77777777777777 RN
~ N
| | - N
‘ ‘ - ~ AN
~ - \
| : R R I — e e — \
| ‘ «— 40'BUS E «— 40'BUS e «— 40'BUS | N N
| ‘ SRR, N I R I R \\ \
| ‘ e e e I \
! ‘ «— 40'BUS e <— 40'BUS || «— 40'BUS | <— 40'BUS | | \
| ‘ A B I O I I L I SO | |
| | 1 I e e O I | \
| ‘ : «— 40'BUS N «— 40'BUS an «— 40'BUS 0 «— 40'BUS | | |
| ‘ I [ o [ O (OO | L
| ‘ (e 1 T O | N
| ‘ «— 40'BUS R «— 40'BUS (|l < 40BUS e < 40'BUS | s AN
! S [ [ SRSt B I RS Rt I ) R N N
| : I L T I I8 N \\
| ‘ < 40'BUS an < 40'BUS (1 < 40'BUS ]! «— 40'BUS | N )
| ‘ e | | \
| ‘ e e e : r-"""‘""""'f"""' : I(--*—-*—-*—-*—-f-f--*—-*—-*—-ﬂ [T T T \
| ‘ «— 40'BUS i «— 40'BUS I «— 40'BUS || «— 40'BUS i | |
| 38'- 6" | A, I A, I | N I RO | | |
‘—T : —__—__—__—__—__—__?_T__—__—__—I‘ E_f-_—__—__—__—__T_T__—__—__j [--—--—--—-ﬁ-i-"-f--—--—-: [-T—f—ﬁ.ﬁ-T-T-f—f_ﬁ_‘ll ‘ ‘
| ‘ «— 40'BUS i «— 40'BUS ] «— 40'BUS a «— 40'BUS :| | |
| ‘ R | I SRt | [ SR [ [ S | |
| ‘ il T AT T T T T | |
| ‘ «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS 1R «— 40'BUS g «— 40'BUS i | |
PARKING STALL LINE TO MATCH EXISTING . ‘ e e e b P PPy \ |
| T T T T T AT T T T T T T N N 7 | N
| < 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | | | |
| L S ] ] | o
| : ) il T T N I | o
| ‘ < 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | | . |
| I I [ Jle T | S
| : “““““““““ N L | V[ 7 ‘ o
| <— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS N «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | | o
| | e I e [ [ (N ‘ o
| : —————————— e W e 7 ‘ -
| ‘ «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS l | | |
| I e |l | -
| : ********** 3] el 3] T T T | |
- | < 40'BUS N <— 40'BUS N «— 40'BUS | <— 40'BUS | | |
o | | ey o] | |
o | : ********** N VT N 7 | |
- | «— 40'BUS | < 40BUS | < 40BUS 1 < 40BUS | . |
o | | I s [ et oz
| | | : ********** T T T T T AT T T T T N N =
| | | ‘ «— 40'BUS s «— 40'BUS ] «— 40'BUS | «— 40'BUS ( «— 40'BUS | o
o | S B K L 1) e , Y
| ‘ ‘ ;‘ ; ' ~45' TURN h S
| | [T T T T T || [ == e e ey | } )
l | Rowa 40BUS — 1| 40BUS — 1|l 40BUS — | || 40'BUS — L 40BUs — B | . I
I R — g L B I e 1 ) e e -1 I\ o
| T T T W~~~ 3|r—— 77—~ 7] S e | | |
| Rows 40'BUS — ‘ 40'BUS — 1| 40BUS — || 40BUS — ||| 40BUs — M | | ‘
| |
e S s B [ R N [ S L _ | \
: ********** | | T T T Tl ] : | o
45 TURN | FOvA a0Bus —H 1] 40BUs —l 1]l so0BUs —0 1| s0BUs — 0 | 40BUs — Il | | !
I T — [ [ T R [ [ A | | I
D N e = | MEEEamaEsLasALSSSS e | TEaEa e e s | SRR e a e e s ‘ \ \
| N e T | COMPLETE ‘ (.
ROW B 40BUs — W 1| 40BUs — @ 1] 40BUS — @ | 40Bus — @B ] 40BUs — N STRUCTURE ‘
4' WIDE RESERVED AREA ASSUMES 2' WIDE COLUMN AT CENTER, — | | | Ik i 1N | |
2' SIDE CLEARANCE FROM BUS TO COLUMN s e e e e e - | | | |
~s'| ‘
| T e G| T T T T T T T T T T T e | | .
2' SIDE-SIDE CLEARANCE TO MATCH EXISTING | | | D
S| Rowa s0Bus — 0 1| s0BUs —@ 1| 40BUS — 0 1| 40BUS —[ 1] 40BUs — 1 | |
N Jl L R N I S N I S L B ! .
‘ E\I‘ __________ —‘ [ . 7 7 7 - - 7 WI I_ _________ =] [ - — — — - - — ] i_ __________ ‘ ‘ \T — J
| ‘ |
| ROW B 40BUsS — 0 1| 40BUS —@l 1] 40'BUS — [ 1| 40'BUS — || 1] 40'BUS — | | | \
| R 1 [} A S L 1 L] | | |
| T T T T T T T T [ T AT SRRl e R | |
| Rowa| 40BUS — 1| 40BUS — | || 40BUS — 1| || 40BUS — L[ 1] 40'BUS — | | ‘
. | . |
e [ [ S [ S L e
T = T T — — T | (4) PAD MOUNTED |
e ' ; ' ' an ' 15 ' | TRANSFORMER BY SCE. |
12' PARKING STALL WIDTH TO MATCH EXISTING a | ROWB a0Bus — [ || 40Bus —f | 40BUs — [l 40BUs — 0 ||| 40'BUS | ASSUMED 2500 KVA. |
S [ [} SRR [} SR g [ R Y |
- |
— I N e I : | ‘
— 1 ] — 1] |
| m— | 1 1 77777777777‘7777
4000A NEMA 3R S
SWITCHBOARDY — [~7 "7~ """ "7 7" [ f-m- T e s s g [ e em s s s s s sn g [ fose s s s m s s [ e s s em e e e ‘ |
ROW A 4a0BUS — @ ! 408U —N0 |} 40BUS — 0 1|} 40BUS —Q | 40BUS — | ‘ |
et [} [} SR [ | St [ |} S [ [ USSR ‘ |
e e I e B | | |
ROWB | 408U —0 ||t 40BUS — Q! 40BUs — N0 (| 40BUS —QB (| 40BUS — i | ‘ |
L-L-L-L-L--J-J-J-L-L--J \L_.—._-_-__—__—__—__—____-__-__—J L—‘_—._—-_--_--_-—_-.—‘_—-_—-_--IJ L-‘_--_-—_-—_-—_--_--‘.--_--_-—! II!-;-L--_--_--_--_--L-L--_-E ‘ ‘ ‘
T o ERR T i T EN R | |
ROW A 40BUS —W 1| 40BUS —@ ! 40BUS — @ || 4a0BUs — 0 1|1 a0sus —@m | | ‘ |
ot 1 I K R [ SRRt [ [} SRR RN, B | ‘ |
S e B T R e | |
ROW B 40BUS —@ || 40BUS I 0| 40BUS W ! 4a0BUs —0 || 4aBus @ o | ‘ |
ey, [ [ QSRRSO USSRty [ [ A [ | Su et I [} |
COMPLETE ! |
|
r'f'“““'*"'f'““'ﬂ r'—'_—"_'—'—'—'——_:l [Tttt T 'ﬂ [""""""""""""'ﬁl r""""'*'f'"""'i STRUCTURE | \
ROW A 40BUS —[ || 40BUS —[ || 40BUS — [ 1|! 40BUS — [ || a0BUs —[ o | ‘ |
USSR, B I RS RRpRERR, ) I) ARSI I SRS, B I AP RR RSSO, | | |
A e I e A e | |
ROW B 40BUS — [ (|1 40BUS —[I 1|} 40BUS — | |t 40BUS — [ 1|} 40'BUS — | | ‘ |
S, SR, B B AU, N I AR, B B DR | | ‘
A e e O I R | |
ROW A 40BUS [ || 40'BUS —[1 || 40BUS — [ | 40BUS —[ 1| 4a0Bus —p | | ‘ |
A | [ S |} SN | U ) [ SR B ‘ |
A e e O e | |
ROW B 40BUS — [ 1| 40'BUS — | (]! 400BUS — [ || 40'BUS — [ (|| 40'BUS — [ ‘ | |
] ARt [ 1 SRR [} 1 SRR [ [} SRR [ [ SRR B ‘ |
o
_<It' T T T T T T T T ‘ ‘ ‘
40'-0" 40" 40'-0 40" 40'-0 40" 40'-0 40" 40'- 0" | | \
i - = —— - = ‘
|
o
< CLEARANCE RESERVED FROM CNG FUELING AREA | |
A DURING TRANSITION TO EBUS. MAY BE ‘ |
REPURPOSED AFTER FULL CONVERSION. 4' FRONT-BACK CLEARANCE TO MATCH EXISTING ‘ |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
CNG REFUELING BUS WASH | |
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| |
/ |
/
/ J
4 %
4 %
iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii - /
/
/
/
/
iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii _/
VAULTS

15 KV CONDUIT BY SCE.
6" PVC, 18" BELOW FINISHED GRADE

POMONA CHARGING LAYOUT

0 8' 16' 32

™ ey ———
SCALE IN FEET



\
BURNS wSDONNELLM

CREATE AMAZING.

Burns & McDonnell World Headquarters
9400 Ward Parkway
Kansas City, MO 64114
0 816-333-9400
F 816-333-3690
www.burnsmcd.com



http://www.burnsmcd.com/

Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020
To: Executive Board
Subject: Discontinuation of TAP Bus Mobile Validator Purchase

Recommendation

Authorize the Executive Director to discontinue the procurement of TAP
enabled Bus Mobile Validators (BMVs) for Foothill Transit revenue vehicles.

Analysis

On April 24, 2020, the Executive Board authorized a sole source contract
award to Cubic Transportation for the procurement and installation TAP
enabled BMVs on the rear doors of Foothill Transit’s buses to enable TAP fare
payments at the rear door. Foothill Transit staff immediately began
procurement efforts, finalizing quantity, and reviewing requirements to meet
the urgent need of the devices to resume fare collection. In finalizing the
guantity needed, Cubic and LA Metro indicated that there are a limited
number of available devices for the entire LA Region; and other municipal
operators had expressed interest in procuring and installing the BMVs on their
fleet to resume fare collection. After various discussions with LA Metro and
other municipal operators, the number of BMVs allocated to Foothill Transit is
insufficient to outfit the entire fleet and will leave approximately 25 percent of
the fleet to operate without a validator.

In addition to the shortage of devices, Cubic has advised us that another core
hardware component of the system, the pole mounting bracket, is
experiencing a supply chain issue that will certainly impact the project
delivery date. The estimated lead time for the brackets is two to three
months, in addition to the time planned for contract review and negotiations,
fitment testing, and installation. The overall project timeline is optimistically
estimated to be three months and most likely would take six months to
complete. We anticipate that the driver barriers will be installed on the buses
in the next six months and front door boarding can be initiated at that point.

Agenda Item No. 14



Foothill Transit : :
Executive Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
Discontinuation of TAP Bus Mobile Validator Purchase
Page 2

Budget Impact

Discontinuing the procurement for the bus mobile validators will eliminate the
expenditure of approximately $2 million. These capital eligible funds will be
reprogrammed to bus procurements.

Sincerely,
John Xie Doran J. Barnes
Revenue Manager Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 14



Foothill Transit

May 29, 2020

To: Executive Board

Subject: COVID-19 Transit Operations

Recommendation

If needed, provide direction to staff regarding service and operational policy
during the COVID-19 pandemic and Los Angeles County Safer-At-Home
order.

Analysis

Please note that this is the same staff report that appears on the
Governing Board agenda. This item is being placed on the Executive Board
agenda should the Executive Board wish to provide any direction related
to service and/or operational policies.

On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a State of Emergency
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Since then, a number of other actions
have been taken at the local and national levels to control the spread of the
pandemic. As a result of these actions Foothill Transit has experienced a
significant decline in ridership.

In light of the health emergency and the “Safer at Home” executive order,
which resulted in school and non-essential workplace closures, we suspended
operation of all Express Services, Line 690 (linking the Azusa Gold Line
station to cities to the east during peak hours only), and two lines that
primarily serve middle and high schools. This has reduced service by
approximately 20 percent. We continue to operate other Local and Silver
Streak service in an effort to provide critical lifeline transit services while
encouraging social distancing onboard the transit coaches.

Ridership and Service Levels:

Over the past two months, we have seen ridership levels fairly consistently
between 60 and 70 percent below the ridership levels in the weeks and
months prior to the Safer at Home executive order. The ridership decline and
our current service levels are helping to ensure opportunities for proper social
distancing for those needing to use the service for essential trips. However, on
any given day, ridership on a particular trip on a route may exceed the level at
which customers can space themselves throughout the bus. In fact, over the
past week, we have noticed an increase in ridership that is being closely

Agenda Item No. 15



Foothill Transit

Governing Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
COVID-19 Transit Operations
Page 2

monitored. Our transit service contractors, Keolis in Pomona and Transdev in
Arcadia/lrwindale have stationed standby coaches at strategic locations
throughout the service area and work closely with our administrative team to
respond quickly to any reported heavy loads by inserting a standby coach
into service to mitigate customer loads that do not provide social distancing
opportunities. Customers are also being advised to await the next bus on a
route if the bus they are attempting to board appears to be too full to allow
proper social distancing.

Staff representing all functional areas of the Foothill Transit administrative
team participate on a daily teleconference with operations and maintenance
contract staff and customer service staff. These meetings allow the teams to
share updates on staffing levels, discuss any operational challenges, chart
safety initiatives, and determine strategies to adjust to new ridership patterns.
The ongoing communication also ensures consistency across the organization
as we respond to operational challenges. It also supports efforts toward
providing the most up-to-date information as we communicate with
customers and other stakeholders.

In addition to monitoring daily ridership and passenger loads by trip, the
administrative team is working with both operations & maintenance
contractors to verify that staffing levels are adequate to meet the
requirements of the revised service. Should the operations or maintenance
staffing levels be impacted by the COVID-19 virus, the Planning team has
developed service plans that are scalable to the staffing available. These
service levels have been placed into the computer-aided dispatch system and
can be implemented immediately should the need arise. This will enable us to
provide customers and the customer service representatives with information
on bus schedules and locations in real-time.

Onboard Social Distancing:

To help ensure adequate social distancing onboard the coaches, customers
are directed to enter and exit through the rear doors unless they need to
utilize the ramp at the front door or the wheelchair securement locations at
the front of the bus. Once onboard, signage placed throughout the buses
remind customers of proper hygiene practices and direct them to space
themselves appropriately as they take a seat to provide physical distancing. A
plastic chain barrier has also been placed across the aisle at the front of the
bus to ensure passengers remain behind the bus operator compartment. For
several weeks the administrative and operations teams have been evaluating

Agenda Item No. 15



<l
Foothill Transit

Governing Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
COVID-19 Transit Operations
Page 3

methods to further encourage social distancing among customers. After
careful consideration of seating configuration, conferring with other transit
agencies, and endeavoring to balance the need for social distancing and
delivering essential mobility services, the following targeted customer loads
based on the size of each bus size have been established:

0 35’ buses - 10 customers, plus ADA
0 40’ buses - 15 customers, plus ADA
0 60’ buses - 20 customers, plus ADA

ADA seating will be reserved for customers utilizing a wheelchair and/or
mobility device and for any Personal Care Assistants and/or immediate family
members who are accompanying that customer.

In other areas of the bus, signs will be placed inside the bus suggesting
seating configurations that will allow for some social distance, specifically
when customers are riding unaccompanied.

Beginning Tuesday, May 26, operators will begin implementing the targeted
customer loads. When the load for the bus type they are operating are
reached, the operator is then directed to activate a “Sorry, Bus Full” or
“Discharge Only” sign. If there are customers waiting at a stop to board after
the targeted load has been achieved, the operator will make an
announcement on the speaker outside of the bus to courteously inform
customers that the bus is full.

Facility Cleaning and Safety Protocols:

At our operations and maintenance facilities, Keolis and Transdev have put
procedures in place to allow proper social distancing for the members of their
staff. Signage is placed throughout the buildings to remind members of the
team to adhere to proper procedures regarding social distancing, frequent
handwashing, not touching one’s face, staying home when sick, etc. They
have also issued and continue to issue on an ongoing basis, face coverings,
hand sanitizer, disinfectant wipes, gloves, and other personal protective
equipment (PPE). In addition, hand sanitizer units are placed throughout the
buildings. Our administrative team has also ordered reusable cloth masks and
will provide them to both operations and maintenance contractors, our
Customer Service and Facilities contractor, and to members of our
administrative team with instructions for daily cleaning and disinfecting.

Agenda Item No. 15



<l
Foothill Transit

Governing Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
COVID-19 Transit Operations
Page 4

Each operating facility is cleaned and disinfected throughout each day using
disinfecting products from the EPA’s list of registered antimicrobial products
for use against Novel Coronavirus SARS-CoV-2, the Cause of COVID-19. The
janitorial crew contracted to clean the administrative offices also disinfect
high-touch surfaces throughout the offices each day. The Transdev Facility
team have reviewed and updated their cleaning protocols at the Foothill
Transit owned Park & Rides and facilities to align with recommended
guidelines for cleaning and safety.

Fleet Cleaning Protocols:

Both operations and maintenance contractors have also enhanced their daily
cleaning protocols for the bus fleet. Prior to any bus being placed into service
each day, it is first thoroughly cleaned and disinfected using disinfecting
products from the EPA’s list. The service attendants responsible for daily
cleaning of the buses have all been issued and are directed to consistently use
appropriate PPE to ensure their health and safety.

Operator Barriers:

On those buses that have not yet been retrofitted with permanent operator
safety and security barriers, temporary plastic barriers have been placed
across the aisle toward the front of the buses to provide some protection for
operators.

Enforcement of fare collection has been suspended until operator
compartment barriers can be procured and installed, and options are
currently being investigated to determine the feasibility and cost
effectiveness of installing a temporary operator compartment barrier while
procurement of the permanent barriers progresses. This would allow for an
earlier return to enforcement of fare collection in a manner that provides
protection for the coach operator.

Customer Communication Activities:

The Marketing and Communications team has been at the forefront of
keeping Foothill Transit customers and the community informed of service
impacts, agency initiatives, and health advisories. In addition to daily service
advisories, communications campaigns on revised bus boarding practices,
social distancing efforts, utilizing service for essential trips, face covering, and
overall health practices have been developed and are disseminated utilizing a
variety of methods of communications. Signs have been developed and

Agenda Item No. 15



Foothill Transit

Governing Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
COVID-19 Transit Operations
Page 5

placed on-board the bus, in operating facilities and in common areas. Foothill
Transit messages related to COVID-19 activities and prevention are issued on
social media platforms daily.

While the Foothill Transit Stores have been closed to in-person visits,
Customer Service Representatives continue to respond to customer calls for
service information, routing, and TAP payment information through the
decentralized call center.

Enhanced Training Activities:

Coach Operator hours not spent directly delivering service, either in
scheduled service or on a standby coach deployed to be able to respond to
heavy passenger loads, are being devoted to training and skill development.
This includes enhanced behind-the-wheel training, classroom instruction, and
online safety and customer service training. This ensures that they not only
remain current on their operating and safety skills, but that they also enhance
their knowledge and are able to practice their skills under the guidance of a
supervisor. In the coming weeks, maintenance and customer service staff will
also be included in Keolis’ and Transdev’s enhanced training initiatives.

Each week, an average of 195 Coach Operators receive an average of 1,558
hours of enhanced training in the following areas:

e Pedestrian Awareness

e Active Looking

e Vehicle Positioning

e Pre-Trip and Post-Trip Inspection

e Air Brake Testing and Use

e DMV Handbook - Refresher

e Road Skills Evaluation

e DMV CDL Skills Test Equivalent Training
e Occupational Safety

e COVID-19 Safety Training

e Diversity Training

e Social Media - Responsible Communications
e Security Awareness - Human Firewall

Agenda Item No. 15



Foothill Transit

Governing Board Meeting - 05/29/2020
COVID-19 Transit Operations

Page 6
Sincerely,
LaShawn King Gillespie
Director of Customer Service and Operations
Felicia Friesema Doran J. Barnes
Director of Marketing and Communications Executive Director

Agenda Item No. 15



	Agenda: May 29, 2020 Executive Board Meeting
	Minutes: February 28, 2020 Strategic Planning Workshop
	Minutes: March 13, 2020 Special Executive Board 
	Minutes: March 18, 2020 Special Executive Board
	Minutes: March 27, 2020 Special Executive Board
	Item 6: Legislative Summary
	Item 7: Holiday Service Schedule for FY2021
	Item 8: Contract Amendment - Architectural and Engineering Design for the Mt. SAC Transit Center
	Item 9: Contract Award - Firewall Replacement
	Item 10: Contract Award - On-Call Architectural & Enginering Services
	Item 11: Proposed FY2021 First Quarter Budget
	Item 12: Transportation Fund Exchange
	Item 13: Zero-Emission Bus Rollout Plan
	Item 14: Discontinuation of TAP Bus Mobile Validator Purchase
	Item 15: COVID-19 Transit Operations



